
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 

AB    
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 16 JANUARY 2014 
1.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall 
Contact – Gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 452268 

 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 September 2013 
 

3 - 8 

COMMISSIONING ISSUES 
 
4. NHS England / Local Board 

 
 

 (a) Primary Care Strategy Update On Progress 
            For the Board to receive an update on the Primary Care Strategy. 

  

9 - 12 

 (b) Surgical Metastatic Liver Resection Services 
The Board is requested to consider the recommendations  

13 - 16 

  contained within the report. 
 

 

5. Clinical / Local Commissioning Groups 
 

 

 (a) Development of Proposals for use of the Better Care Fund 
(formerly Integration and Transformation Fund) in 
Peterborough 
The Board is requested to consider the recommendations 
contained within the report. 

17 - 44 

    
6. Public Health 

 
 

 (a) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
The Board is requested to consider the recommendations 
contained within the report. 
 

45 - 48 

 (b) Interim Arrangements for the Director of Public Health 
Discussion item. 

 

    

Public Document Pack



7. Children's Services 
 

 

 (a) Joint Child Health and Wellbeing Commissioning Unit 
For the Board to consider the recommendations contained within 
the report. 
 

49 - 108 

8. Adult Social Care 
 

 

 (a) Autism Self Evaluation 
The Board is requested to consider and comment upon the 
contents of the report. 

109 - 122 

    
INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 
 
9. Officer Lead for the Health and Wellbeing Board 
      Discussion item. 

 

 

10. Executive Group Terms of Reference 
     The Board is requested to comment on and agree the terms of reference. 

 

123 - 128 

11. Peer Review Update 
Information to follow. 

 

 

12. Health and Wellbeing Board Delivery Plan Update 
      For the Board to note the updated Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan. 

 

129 - 166 

13. November Newsletter 
 

167 - 174 

14. Schedule of Future Meetings and Draft Agenda Programme 
To note the dates and agree future agenda items for the Board.  To include 
frequency of reporting from other Boards, where appropriate, including Local 
Safeguarding Boards, Children’s and Adults Commissioning Boards, LCG 
Commissioning Board.  Also to consider how we will monitor progress against 
the Health and Wellbeing strategy.  

 

175 - 176 

 (a) SARC 
Discussion item. 

 

    
 
 
 
 

Board Members: 

Cllr M Cereste (Chairman), Cllr W Fitzgerald (Vice Chairman), Cllr J Holdich, Cllr S Scott, Cllr I 
Walsh, Gillian Beasley, David Whiles (Healthwatch), Dr M Caskey, Dr R Withers, Dr P Van den 
Bent, Jana Burton; Cathy Mitchell; Sue Mitchell; Andrew Reed; Andy Vowles; Sue Westcott. 

Substitutes: Dr Neil Sanders and Dr Harshad Mistry 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 
(01733) 452268 or by email gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



HWB5 

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 12 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 
Members Present: Councillor Marco Cereste – Leader of the Council (Chairman) 

Councillor Fitzgerald – Cabinet member for Adult Social Care 
Councillor John Holdich – Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University 
Councillor Irene Walsh – Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion, Safety 
and Public Health 
Jana Burton, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, PCC 
Rechel Boika, Consultant in Public Health Medicine, Public Health, PCC 
Sue Westcott, Executive Director of Children’s Services, PCC 
Dr Richard Withers, Borderline Local Commissioning Group 
Dr Mike Caskey, Peterborough City Local Commissioning Group 
David Whiles, Peterborough LINk – Local Healthwatch 
Cathy Mitchell, Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group  
Andy Vowles, Cambridgeshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
Andrew Reed, NHS England East Anglia Local Team 
Claire Higgins, Chairman Safer Peterborough Partnership 
 

Also in Attendance:  Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer, PCC 
Mubarak Darbar, Head of Commissioning Learning Disabilities, PCC 
Dr Caroline Lea-Cox, Clinical Lead for Mental Health, Cambridgeshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, Assistant Director, PCC 
Chas Ryan, Stroke/CHD/Alcohol Programme Manager, PCC 
Kim Sawyer, Head of Legal Services, PCC 

 
 

Item Discussion and Decision Action 
 

1. Apologies for   
Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Gillian Beasley, Sue Mitchell, 
Dr Ken Rigg and Russell Wate. 
 

 

2. Declarations of 
Interest 

None were received.  
 

3. Minutes of the 
Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2013 were approved as a true 
and accurate record. 
 

 

3



HWB6 

4. Health Watch – 
(a) Hydrotherapy 
in delivering 
outcomes from 
the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s 
Strategy 2012-15 

The Board received a report from Healthwatch Peterborough that 
provided a summary version of a comprehensive report compiled for 
clinicians for members to review the outcomes and impact of the aquatic 
therapy service for local residents and reviewed how aquatic therapies 
provided measurable outcomes and translated into a service that reflected 
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-15.  The report also provided the 
Board with detailed information and reviewed recommendations in light of 
the resent decisions to review the hydrotherapy services.  
 
Members discussed the report and the attached user evaluation.  
Comments included: 
 

• Only slight evidence existed for health improvements for users; 

• Could link with muscular skeletal services; 

• Investment was needed in improving the facility at St. George’s; 

• The service had developed a client list of around 1600 in two 
years; 

• Some clients could be accommodated at other sites; 

• The St George’s site may not be sustainable in the long term; 

• The hydrotherapy pool could be relocated and provided within 
other sites and projects currently under development. 

 
Following consideration of the report, the  Board AGREED to endorse the 
recommendation put forward by Councillor Fitzgerald as below: 
 
The Board endorses the important role hydrotherapy can play in the 
physical and mental wellbeing of people in Peterborough. As 
recommended by the report the board asks the Clinical Commissioning 
Group, Public Health and Adult Social Care Commissioners to work 
together to ensure that access to hydro therapy is part of the council’s 
preventative offer and supports people to live independently.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM, 
SM, JB 
 
 

(a) Metastatic Liver Resection Service Reconfiguration 
 
The Board received a report providing background information concerning 
the service changes required for metastatic liver resection (liver cancer 
surgery) and to obtain the Committee’s views on the process followed to 
identify a single surgical centre for metastatic liver resection.  
 
It was proposed that the single surgical site for the East Anglia region be 
based at Addenbrookes Hospital in Cambridge. 
 
Members discussed the report and comments made included: 
 

• Most Peterborough residents currently attend Leicester for this 
treatment and may choose to continue to do so; 

• Need to consider and manage transport arrangements for patients 
going to Cambridge; 

• Outpatient appointments including chemotherapy can be carried 
out in Peterborough. 

 
Following consideration of the report the Board AGREED that it was 
content with the single centre being located in Cambridge. 
 

 5. NHS England / 
Local Board 

(b) Primary Care Strategy 
 
The Board received a report describing the process NHS England was 
following to develop primary care strategy at a national level and at an 

 
 
 
 

4



HWB7 

East Anglia level. 
 
Members discussed the report and comments included: 
 

• Should not have a single approach for the whole country so 
partners must work together to ensure local needs were 
addressed; 

• NHS commissioned health and justice and primary care for 
prisons; 

• The challenge of increasing GP numbers when GP Practices 
operated under contracts, rather than individual GPs, would need 
to be addressed. 

 
The Board AGREED to receive a further update at its next meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AR 

(a) Local Area Team (LAT) agreement S256 transfer 
 
The Board received a report advising it of a Section 256 funding 
agreement that had been drawn up between the CCG and Peterborough 
City Council (PCC) to align with the local needs of the population across 
the health and social care system.  The Joint Commissioning Forum had 
been asked to comment on the draft plan prior to it being submitted to the 
Area Team for their input and agreement as the budget holders who 
would transfer the funding to PCC.  Details of the Section 256 including 
the metrics were also attached for the Board’s consideration as it was 
required that the Final Version of the Section 256 be presented to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2013 as part of the national 
governance and approvals process.   
 
Members discussed the report and comments included: 
 

• NHS Local Area Team input was required for the final version; 

• A pooled  Integrated Transformation fund would be established 
from 2015 and a plan for this was required by April 2014 – this 
would be presented to the Board; 

• The Integrated Transformation funding agreement would be to 
provide statutory services and  new services; 

• Other grants could be included in the agreement;eg DFG ‘s 

• As the level of funding is due to increase from 2015/16 it was 
important to have a proper framework in place between all parties 
based on National Guidance; 

• NHSE Local Area team to input financial metrics into the Section 
256 2013/14 would be addressed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AR 

6. Clinical / Local 
Commissioning 
Groups 

(b) Commissioning Intentions  
 
The Board received a presentation on the commissioning intentions of the 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG for 2014-15 that included the 
priorities, process and emerging issues. 
 
It was further confirmed that Specialist Inpatient Mental Health Service 
was included in the CCG commissioning intentions for 2014/15. 
 
The Board NOTED the information in the report. 
 

 

7. Public Health (a) Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
 
The Board received a report updating it on its statutory responsibility to 

 

5



HWB8 

maintain and publish a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA). The 
full background to this was presented in a previous report to the HWB in 
June 2013. 
 
The Board was advised that there was not presently a need for a full 
assessment but a revised PNA would be required by April 2015. 
 
The Board NOTED the information in the report. 
 

8. Adult Social Care (a) Winterbourn View Report 
 
The Board received a report in order to provide an overview of 
developments to date and to satisfy it that appropriate action was being 
taken in light of the Winterbourn Review concerning the resettling of all 
the people placed in secure hospitals being settled back into the 
community. 
 
Comments from the Board included: 
 

• The Intensive-behavioural Support Team (IST) should widen its 
age range for those under 18 years of age. 

 
The Board was further advised that the age range for the IST could be 
looked into and that some vacancies existed in the short term but the long 
term ambition was that people were prevented from falling into the 
situation where they were in need of intensive support. 
 
The Board was content with the report. 
 

 

 (b) Learning Disabilities 
 
The Board received a report reflecting on how well, as a region, delivering 
services for adults with learning disabilities had improved, in order to 
further the commissioning processes to improve these services, and for 
consideration of the proposed recommendations.   
 
Comments from the Board included: 
 

• No information was presented on transitional arrangements. 
 
The Board was further advised that the Mencap Charter and performance 
details were for adults only rather than for children.   
 
The Board AGREED:  

1. to sign up  to the Mencap ‘Getting it Right Charter’; and 
2. Jana Burton would lead on learning disabilities for the Health and 

Wellbeing Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Board 
Development  

 

(a) Peer Challenge 
 
The Board received a report highlighting what a Peer Challenge would 
focus on.  The Board was advised that further work was required before 
submitting to a Peer Challenge. 
 
The Board AGREED to wait for further work to be done before conducting 
a peer review. 
 

 

6



HWB9 

(b) Health and Wellbeing Strategy – Delivery Plan 
 
The Board received a report following the development of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.  The Board was asked to consider the wider 
determinants of health that it may want to focus on to support        
delivery of the priorities in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
Comments from the Board included: 
 

• Need to determine the value that the Board can bring; 

• Need to determine what the Board is looking to deliver; 

• Wider partner input and involvement was needed in the document; 

• Focus could be placed on the council’s Operation Can Do area in 
order to improve the health and wellbeing of the residents in this 
area – this could include a collaboration of partners to apply for EU 
funding; 

• Need to determine who would be responsible for commissioning 
once any funding was received. 

 
The Board AGREED: 
 

1. To focus on the Operation Can Do Area; 
2. To determine the best way to commission services with partners; 
3. The Health and Wellbeing Board would be the responsible body 

for coordinating the work; 
4. Relevant aspects of the EU Funding journal to be shared with 

partners; 
5. A project officer should be established for the Health and 

Wellbeing Board.  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn to develop a business 
case to determine funding required from each partner. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WO-W, 
PP, CM 

 
 
PP 
 

WO-W 

10. Public Health 
England’s Longer 
Life Toolkit 

  

The Board received a report following the publication of the Longer Lives 
Tool-kit by Public Health England (PHE). 
 
The Board noted the information in the report. 
 

 

11. Joint 
Commissioning – 
Child Health 
Update 

The Board received a report to keep it appraised of the progress in 
moving towards gaining agreement for a Peterborough Joint Health and 
Local Authority Child Health Commissioning Unit. 
 
The Board noted the information in the report. 
 

 

12. Child Health 
Outcomes 

The Board received documents outlining details of a pledge to improve 
health outcomes for children and young people. 
 
The Board noted the information. 
 

 

13. Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
Event 

The Board received information outlining details of a full day event for the 
East of England to help local government and NHS colleagues think 
through what arrangements – locally and regionally – were needed to 
support an integrated approach to health and social care and address 
the collective challenges and opportunities arising from the NHS reforms. 
 
The Board noted the information. 
 

 

14. Schedule of 
Future Meetings 
and Draft Agenda 

The Board received and considered the agenda plan for future meetings 
and was advised of the schedule of meetings for the year ahead. 
 

 

7



HWB10 

Programme The Board noted the information. 
 

 
 

         3.00 pm 
Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Relating to:  ACTIONS By whom By when 

Health Watch (a) 
Hydrotherapy in 
delivering outcomes 
from the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s 
Strategy 2012-15 

• Clinical Commissioning Group, Public Health and 
Adult Social Care Commissioners to work 
together to ensure that access to hydro therapy is 
part of the council’s preventative offer and 
supports people to live independently.   

Cathy Mitchell, 
Sue Mitchel, 
Jana Burton 

Ongoing 

NHS England / 
Local Board (b) 
Primary Care 
Strategy 
 

• Provide a further update at the next meeting of 
the Board 

Andrew Reed  16 Jan 
2014 

Clinical / Local 
Commissioning 
Groups (a) Local 
Area Team (LAT) 
agreement S256 
transfer 
 

• Provide pooled funding plan for 2015 to the 
Board. 

 

• Address and resolve delays in NHS local team 
processes 

Cathy Mitchell 
 
 

Andrew Reed 

27 March 
2014 
 

ASAP 

Board Development 
(b) Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 
– Delivery Plan 
 
 

• Determine best way to commission services with 
partners for OP Can Do area; 

 
 

• Share relevant section of EU funding journal with 
partners; 

• Develop a business case for a support officer. 

Wendi O-W, 
Paul 

Phillipson, 
Cathy Mithcell 
Paul Phillipson 

 
Wendi O-W 

January 
2014 
 
 

ASAP 
 

ASAP 

8



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4(a) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): NHS England Area Team 

 

PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY – UPDATE REPORT 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : NHS England Area Team Deadline date : N/A 

 

This report is intended to provide an update on the work being progressed by NHS 
England East Anglia Area Team to develop a strategic framework to support the 
development of primary care in East Anglia.    

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is submitted to Board following a request from a member – Mr Andrew 

Reed, Director NHS England East Anglia Area Team 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board on the work being 

progressed by NHS England to provide a strategic framework for primary care 
development in East Anglia. 

 
2.2  This report is for the Board to consider under its terms of reference no. 2.1 ‘to bring 

together the leaders of health and social care commissioners to develop common 
and shared approaches to improving the health and wellbeing of the community’. 
  

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 As part of the national NHS England Call to Action the NHS England East Anglia 
Local Area Team has been working with local Clinical Commissioning Groups and 
the Local Professional Networks to consider what we need to do, both at a national 
and local level, to be confident of ensuring our local population has access to high 
quality, sustainable and thriving primary care services. 

 
3.2 Through a process of engagement and consultation we have tested the propositions 

set out within “Improving General Practice – a Call to Action”, while also working 
with our three Local Professional Networks to begin discussions in advance of the 
launch of the respective Call to Action processes planned for 2014. 

 
3.3 The process undertaken in East Anglia has included a meeting with each Clinical 

Commissioning Group in East Anglia, the circulation of a questionnaire to 
stakeholders and county based stakeholder events.  Through this process we have 
engaged directly with over 450 people including professionals working in, or with, 
primary care, representatives from patient groups, local authorities and the 
voluntary sector to seek their views, collate evidence and test and shape strategic 
priorities.  

 

9



3.4 A key principle of the Area Team approach has been to ensure alignment with our 
local Clinical Commissioning Group and Local Health and Wellbeing Board strategic 
planning processes.  We are confident that this will ensure that the key themes and 
issues set out within the  strategic framework will support the wider health and 
social care planning work that is being taken forward led by the CCGs and Health 
and Wellbeing Boards. 
 

5.  Emerging Themes 

 

5.1 The feedback we have had through discussions with local professionals, clinical 
leaders and the public has confirmed the central role of Primary Care in improving 
health outcomes and meeting local need. It has confirmed that overall, existing 
primary care services across East Anglia are good and improving, providing a 
strong base for future development.  The discussions have, however, helped us to 
be clearer about where we need to focus our efforts over the next five years to 
ensure that: 

 

- Care is increasingly integrated and provided in a joined up way to meet the 

needs of the whole person; 

 

- People will be increasingly able to play a full part in the management of their 

health and wellbeing 

 

- Care is clinically effective and safe, delivered in the most appropriate way 

 

- Primary care can play a full part in helping the wider healthcare system make 

the best use of limited resources 

 

- We create an environment which ensures that we are able maintain and develop 

a motivated, skilled and dedicated primary care workforce   

 

- There is a clear and shared understanding among the public and professionals 

of individuals rights, responsibilities and expectations 

 

- We can be confident that there is equity across East Anglia – equity of “offer”, 

equity of “access” and equity of “outcome”. 

 

6. Strategic Framework  
 

6.1 Our local discussions have confirmed that there is a shared ambition to create 
thriving, high quality and sustainable primary care that works to improve health 
outcomes and support a reduction in health inequalities. To achieve this we 
recognise that we need to develop a strategic framework that responds to the 
current and future challenges as summarised in the figure below.   

 

10



Challenges Facing Primary Care taken from the Royal College of General 
Practice publication Patients, Doctors and the NHS in 2022 

 
 
6.2 There is a growing acceptance that general practice, and primary care more 

generally, will be most likely be able to address these challenges and seize new 
opportunities if it operates at greater scale and in greater collaboration with other 
providers. At the same time there is also acceptance that general practice should 
preserve its traditional strengths of providing personal continuity of care and its 
strong links with local communities. 

 
6.3 Our local discussions have confirmed that there is no single blueprint for how 

general practice can best meet our shared ambition.  It is clear that it will not be 
achieved simply or primarily by adopting new organisational forms, but these will 
have a part to play.  Our focus will be on working collaboratively to understand how 
best we can work with primary care professionals to enable them to provide 
services for patients more effectively and productively, and how we can help 
practices benefit from collective expertise and resources.  

 
6.4 Locally there are discussions taking place among practices to consider how they 

might work more collaboratively through coming together in federations, networks or 
‘super-partnerships’ with the aim of addressing a range of issues which may 
include: 

  
- pooling of clinical expertise, offering a greater range of generalist and more 

specialist services; 

 
- helping GPs and practice staff maintain and develop their professional skills;  

 
- improving patient access (including greater availability of consultations outside 

traditional opening hours, and consultations outside of the surgery); 

 
- supporting innovative approaches to planning and delivering services by way of 

shared learning and ideas; 

 

11



- working collectively to develop more integrated care with community health 

providers, out-of-hours providers, community pharmacy, social care and 

voluntary/charitable providers; 

 
- enabling more systematic approaches to governance and risk assessment; 

 
- providing development opportunities for GPs, practice nurses, practice 

managers and other staff; 

 
- creating opportunities to provide new services outside hospital; 

 
- creating the potential for greater economies of scale in administrative and 

business functions to reduce overhead costs.  

 
 

6.5 With specific reference to Peterborough, the Area Team will be working with the 
CCG to support these discussions, noting specific issues in relation to: 
 

o understanding the implications of new national contract frameworks and 
ensuring fair funding of primary care services; 
 

o ensuring that there is a framework agreed with the CCG and key partners 
to enable the re-procurement of a number of time limited general medical 
contracts to support the continued delivery of high quality, sustainable 
services that meet the needs of the local population; 
 

o progressing agreed, priority primary care estate developments with the 
aim of supporting the delivery of integrated services; 
 

o reviewing the current equitable access centre at St Neots to ensure that it 
is aligned to the local urgent care strategy; 

 
7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to note the progress made to develop a 

strategic framework to support the development of primary care services.    
 
8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 It is expected that the Draft Strategic Framework for Primary Care will be subject to 

consultation with key partners, including Health and Wellbeing Boards as an 
integral part of the five year strategic plan development. 

  
9. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 To raise awareness of the work being progressed to support the development of a 

strategic framework for primary care. 
 

  

12



 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
  

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4(b) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): NHS England 

 

SURGICAL METASTATIC LIVER RESECTION SERVICES 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM :  NHS England Deadline date : N/A 

 
The Board is asked to consider the key recommendation to establish a single surgical centre 
for metastatic liver resection in the Anglia cancer network Area.  Of note the Board is asked 
to confirm: 

 
- The importance of ensuring all patients have access to an IOG compliant service; and 
-   The principle of retaining as much care as locally as is appropriate 

 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following a request from Andrew Reed, Director, 
NHS England East Anglia Area Team and member of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.   

 

1.2 A review of surgical services for metastatic liver resection has been undertaken with 
the aim of ensuring high quality, safe and sustainable services for patients. The 
review has concluded that there should be a single surgical centre for East Anglia, 
working as part of a network with local services to achieve improved outcomes for 
patients. The review has concluded that the surgical service should be located at 
Addenbrookes, Cambridge.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of the review of surgical metastatic 
liver resection services across the former Anglia Cancer Network.   
 

The Board is asked to:  
 

1.  Note the outcome of the review to support improved outcomes for patients. 
 

2.  Note the preferred options for a single surgical centre. 
 

2.2 This report is for Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.1 ‘To bring 
together the leaders of health and social care commissioners to develop common 
and shared approaches to improving the health and well being of the community’. 

 

 3.   BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 A surgical resection service provides curative treatment for people with liver 
metastases. The National Institute for Clinical Excellence Colorectal Improving 

13



Outcomes Guidance (IOG) states that a liver metastases surgical resection 
service should serve a population base of at least 2 million, with all surgery taking 
place at a single specialist surgical centre for patients with liver metastases.  The 
IOG seeks to improve outcomes for patients by introducing a dedicated, 
multidisciplinary team delivering high quality care in a single specialist surgical 
centre that will deal with sufficient numbers of patients to maximise clinical 
expertise.  

3.2 NHS England became responsible for the commissioning of this service, in April 
2013 and is required to commission a service that is compliant with the IOG.  NHS 
England (East Anglia) has therefore been working to take forward the Review of 
surgical services for liver metastases within the boundaries of the Anglia Cancer 
Network region, which covers people living in Suffolk, Norfolk, Cambridgeshire, and 
north Bedfordshire, which was started in January 2011.   

 
4. THE REVIEW 

 
4.1 In 2011, the former Anglia Cancer Network engaged the former Midlands and East 

Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) to lead the work needed to review 
specialist surgical services for patients with liver metastases.   The aim of the 
review was to ensure that all patients have access to an IOG compliant service. 

 
4.2 A Project Steering Group was set up in January 2011 to lead the review of the 

current service and to ensure broad representation from expert clinicians and 
commissioners, as well as patient representatives who had used the service.  The 
review found that the number of people undergoing liver resection for colorectal 
cancer metastases in the region was significantly lower than the national average, 
with five referral pathways for the population in the Anglia Cancer Network region: 
 
a) Three centres within the network which are non IOG Compliant– The Ipswich 

Hospital Trust, Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
undertaking approximately 25 resections/year  and Cambridge University 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust undertaking approximately 45 resections/year 
(NB: The Ipswich Hospital has recently stopped their liver resection surgery). 
 

b) Two centres outside the network which are IOG compliant– Basingstoke (as part 
of Hampshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust) for the Bedford referral pathway 
and University Hospitals Leicester for the Peterborough referral pathway 

 
4.3 The Project Steering Group undertook a comprehensive review, which included 

seeking further advice from the National Cancer Action Team (NCAT).   NCAT 
agreed to conduct a review into possible models that could be used to provide the 
service and advise on: 

a) What the service should look like;  
b) What organisations are best placed to deliver the service; 
c) What should the expectations be for the reconfigured service?   
 

4.4 In August 2012, the NCAT report was published and concluded that :  
 
a. There is strong and compelling evidence to support the principle that 

centres that see more patients produce better short and long term 
outcomes than centres that don’t see a smaller number of patients.   
 

b. Whilst both centres (Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
and Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust) do have 

14



good outcomes for patients, both centres are under performing with the 
amount of patients that are referred for liver resection surgery. 

c. Multiple patient pathways that exist in the network are not sustainable in 
the long term and are likely to continue to impact on the local number of 
referrals 

d. The team did not find any compelling reasons not to support an IOG 
compliant service.  Developing a compliant service was felt most likely to 
deliver the service capable of delivering increased access to and the 
highest quality of surgery 

e. One site, serving the population of potentially 2.9m is the preferred and 
recommended service configuration 

 
4.5 The process to establish an IOG compliant service recommenced in 

September 2012 and following publication of the service criteria, two 
expressions of interest were received from CUHFT and NNUHFT to become 
the single centre for liver resection surgical services. 

 
4.6 The bids were assessed using a scoring criteria developed by the Project 

Steering Group and an External Review Panel, made up of independent 
expert clinicians, a referring surgeon, a service specialist, a clinical nurse 
specialist and a patient representative who visited each provider to discuss 
their service proposal in detail. 

 
4.7 The External Review Panel recommended that the single site surgical liver 

metastases service for the population of the Anglia Cancer Network region 
should be developed at Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust (CUHFT). Only surgery and immediate follow up would occur at the 
single specialist surgical centre, ensuring that as many elements as possible 
of the pathway would be delivered locally.     

 
4.8 Whilst the External Review Panel found that CUHFT was best placed to 

deliver the network wide service, a number of recommended actions were 
identified in the report.   In summary, the key recommendations from the 
External Review Panel report were: 
a) Consideration needed to be given to the transport needs of a rural and 

elderly population, especially from the more remote areas of the region.   
b) Leadership of the network wide service needs review, and sufficient time 

needs to be given to this role.  
c) Ensuring effective engagement of all referring units is key to this service.  
d) A whole team approach to proactive working from the centre will ensure 

close team working with each of the referring Multi-Disciplinary Teams. 
e) Proactive working from the specialist Liver Metastases surgery team to 

ensure improved referral and a demonstrable improvement in resection 
rates.  

f) Ensuring at all times that the new model of working, whilst centralising 
surgery, should at the same time maximise those parts of the care 
pathway that can be delivered to patients locally. 

 
4.9 A Joint Health Scrutiny Committee has been established to consider the 

review and the recommendations.   The report of the Committee is currently 
being considered. 

 
 
 

15



5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 The process of the review was undertaken with significant stakeholder 
engagement.  A Joint Health Scrutiny Committee has considered the 
proposals and subject to the outcome of their deliberations consideration will 
be given to the nature and scope of further engagement and consultation 
required. 

 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 

6.1 The review and the recommendations focus on improving outcomes for 
patients who would benefit from metastatic liver resection surgery. 

 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

7.1 The recommendations support the delivery of a compliant, high quality service 
for people living in the former Anglia Cancer Network area.  

 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 The review considered a number of options, including the status quo and a 
rigorous review of the optimal site for a single surgical centre. 

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 The implications of the proposed service would result in a consistent, 
equitable and sustainable service for our population which is compliant with 
national standards.   
 

9.2 There will be a number of patients who may have to access a surgical service 
in Cambridge, who might previously have been seen in Norwich however the 
vast majority of care will continue to be provided locally. 

 
 

16



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 5(a) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact 
Officers:  

 

 

Jana Burton, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, Health and 
Wellbeing, Peterborough City Council  

Cath Mitchell, Local Chief Officer, Borderline and Peterborough 
LCG, for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG. 

Tel: 

01733-
452409 

01733-
758414 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF PROPOSALS FOR USE OF THE BETTER CARE FUND 
(FORMERLY INTEGRATION AND TRANSFORMATION FUND) IN PETERBOROUGH 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Jana Burton, Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care, Health and Wellbeing, Peterborough City Council  
Cath Mitchell, Local Chief Officer, Borderline and 
Peterborough LCG, for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
CCG. 

Deadline date : N/A 

 
1. For the Board to note the background information and planning timescales for the Better 

Care Fund; 
2. For the Board to consider the “long-list” of proposals for use of the Better Care Fund; 
3. To request that the Board delegate the authority for the formal sign-off of proposals, and 

full plans for the Better Care Fund, to the Joint Commissioning Forum, for ratification at a 
future meeting; and 

4. For the Board to offer its support to using the Borderline and Peterborough Transformation 
Board as a key means of engagement with local stakeholders.  

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is submitted to the Board from the Integration and Transformation Group, 

following the Board’s previous agreement to the establishment of this group to take 
forwards this work. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the developing proposals for the use 

of the Better Care Fund (previously known as the Integration and Transformation Fund) in 
Peterborough.  

 
2.2 The timetable for further development and planning for this fund (as laid down by the 

Department of Health in its December guidance) is very tight (see 3.3 below), with 
deadlines falling between this and the next Board meeting; with this in mind, the Board is 
asked for its views on a long-list of possible proposals, and to delegate the detailed 
working up of these to the local Integration and Transformation Group. 

 
2.3   This report is for the Board to consider under its terms of reference No. 3.5 ‘To identify 

areas where joined up or integrated commissioning, including the establishment of pooled 
budget arrangements would benefit improving health and wellbeing and reducing health 
inequalities’. 

17



 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 The June 2013 Spending Round announced a further £3.8bn of pooled budgets between 
Health and Social Care, starting in April 2015, and building on existing integration funding; 
in preparation for this significant increase, an additional £200m of integration funding will 
also be made available for 2014/15. The fund, originally called the Integration and 
Transformation Fund, but now known as the Better Care Fund is not “new monies”, but 
represents a change to the way that some NHS budget is allocated with the explicit 
intention of integrating health and social care systems and services at a local level. It is 
described in guidance published in December 2013 as a “financial incentive for Councils 
and local NHS organisations to jointly plan and delivery services, so that integrated care 
can become the norm by 2018”. 

 
3.2 The DH Guidance, released late in December 2013 (and attached as an Appendix 1 to this 

paper) identified allocations for Peterborough as follows (noting the inclusion of two other 
funding streams into the total in 2015-16): 
 

Year Disabilities 
Facilities Grant 

(£000) 

Social Care 
Capital Grant 

(£000) 

CCG Transfer 
 

(£000) 

Total 
 

(£000) 

2014-15 - - - 661 
 

2015-16 811 442 10,390 11,643 
 

 
3.3 The £661k allocated for transfer in 2014-15 is in addition to the existing Section 256 monies 

of £2,840,646 in 2013-14, providing a total transfer of £3.5m, but is believed to build on 
Section 256 monies of £455k for the purposes of re-ablement. Overall therefore, the above 
funding allocations for 2015-16 (and subject to confirmation for 2014-15) should therefore 
be seen as including the following existing allocations: 

 

• Carers Break funding 

• CCG Re-ablement funding 

• Capital funding 

• Existing transfer from health to adult social care 
 
3.4 The present S256 agreements with Peterborough City Council includes the following 

priorities, and it is assumed that these will be included in, and indeed may well provide the 
foundation for future arrangements: 
 

Priority A – Interim beds / Acute hospital / City Care Centre 
- Total spend £1,349k 
(Including: Interim beds – Independent Sector; Enablement and transitional Support; 
Community equipment; Telecare development and spend; Transfer of care team) 
Priority B – Patients and carers, voluntary sector, prevention, community - 
Total £575k 
(Including: Preventative services – voluntary sector; ISP respite services; Universal 
Advise and Signposting service) 
Priority C – MDT working, Single Assessment, Care plans 
 - Total £665k 
(Including: Assessment and reviews – increased capacity OP, PD and LD;  
Mental Health assessments) 
Priority D&E – Carer support, assessments and safeguarding 
- Total £251k 
(Including: Carers support Services ; Adult Safeguarding) 
 
Re-ablement – intensive time-limited support following a fall or illness 
- Total: £455k (under separate S256 agreement). 

18



(Directly provided re-ablement service to prevent deterioration, delay dependency, 
and support recovery.) 
 

3.5 Local councils and health services are expected to submit plans to Government explaining 
how they will use this fund to improve local services, and the CCG are actively working with 
Peterborough City Council, and Cambridgeshire County Council (and other Local Authority 
and wider partners), to develop a shared vision and principles for the use of the Fund, as 
well as a set of schemes for its use.   

 
3.6 Planning timescales for development of proposals are exceptionally tight, with draft plans 

for use of the Fund to be submitted by 14th February 2014, for formal agreement by NHS 
England by 4th April 2014. It is with this timescale in mind that the Health and Wellbeing 
Board is asked to give consideration to plans which remain at such an early stage of 
development, and to delegate authority for further development of the plans in advance of 
its next meeting. 

 
3.7 In Peterborough, the further development of plans for the Better Care Fund is being led by 

the Integration and Transformation Fund Group (so called based on the previous name of 
the fund, and presumably subject to update at its next meeting following the recent 
change). The group includes representatives from Peterborough City Council, and the CCG 
(including Jana Burton, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing, 
Peterborough City Council, and Cath Mitchell, Local Chief Officer, Borderline and 
Peterborough LCG, for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG). 

 
3.8 Plans for the scheme must fulfil four conditions: 
 

• They must be jointly agreed, and signed off by local Health and Wellbeing Boards, 
local Councils, and local CCGs.  

• They should identify how adult social care services will be protected by the plans 

• They should facilitate 7-day services in health and social care to support patients to 
be discharged and avoid unnecessary admissions at weekends 

• They should use the NHS number to develop better data sharing between health 
and social care 

 
3.9 Of the total funding, the Spending Round indicated that £1bn of the funding would be linked 

to achieving outcomes; it has now been confirmed that half of this (£500m) will be released 
in April 2015, as follows: 
 

£250m on the basis of four national conditions: 

• Protection of adult care services 

• Provision of 7-day access to support discharge 

• Agreement of the consequential impact on the acute sector 

• Ensuring that there is a lead professional for integrated packages of care 
£250m on the basis of progress against locally agreed metrics during 2014/15, to 
include:  

• Delayed transfers of care 

• Avoidable emergency admissions 
 
3.10 The final £500m will be released in October 2015 on the basis of further progress against 

all of the national and local metrics.  
 

3.11 This significant sum or outcome focused funding represents a significant incentive for 
health and social care to work jointly (and including with other partners) to meet the 
requirements of this national initiative. 
 

3.12 The work in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to date has developed the following Vision, 
Aims, and Objectives:  

 

19



 
3.12.1 VISION FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SERVICES 

 
Our vision is to bring together all of the public agencies that provide health and social care 
support, especially for older people so that we can: 

• co-ordinate services such as health, social care and housing 

• maximise individuals’ access to information, advice and support in their 

communities, and 

• help them to live as independently as possible in the most appropriate setting 

 
To be successful, this transformation will require the contribution of a range of health and 
social care providers as well as the greater involvement of the community and voluntary 
sectors.  
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) offers an important opportunity to transform the health and 
social care system and delivery in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to: 

• meet the needs of a rapidly ageing population better, and by doing so 

• ease the pressure on the system more generally 

• enable the health and social care system to provide better services to the whole 

population of the City 

The BCF offers a unique opportunity to re-think how a significant amount of public money 
could be more efficiently and effectively spent.   
 
Fundamentally, we agree that BCF will be used for genuine transformation of the health 
and social care system in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough; through creating greater 
synergy and hence efficiencies in the provision of social care and health services these can 
better be protected from pressures brought about by increasing demand and reducing 
budgets.   

 
The scale of the transformation opportunity is significant. It is much more than just reducing 
admissions to hospital. Rather, it is about changing the whole system so that services are 
focused on supporting people wherever possible with person-centred and professionally-led 
primary / community / social care guided by the goal of living as independently as possible, 
for as long as is possible.   

 
This approach aligns with the principles set out by Government, NHS England and Local 
Government Association; it is also well-supported by evidence that clinical and service 
integration delivers better outcomes for people, particularly if groups of patients or service 
users are clearly identified and services for them are joined up around their needs. 

 
3.12.2 INTEGRATION AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

The model adopted in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough will have the following 
characteristics:  
 
v A united approach to advice and information on community and public sector 

services.  

This will include developing robust and reliable sources of advice and support for older 
people before they become frail or need to access the statutory system; and providing 
universal information and advice about services from all partner agencies, which should 
be quick to access, clear, friendly and personalised. 

v Investment in community capacity to enable people to meet their needs with 

support in their local community.  

This could include extension of the community navigator system; and work to consider 
people’s social capital alongside their other assets and support people to be engaged 
with their families and in their communities. Further development and investment in 
community capacity building will prevent some people from entering a crisis, accessing 

20



specialist services and potentially reducing long term care costs; and importantly 
helping people to stay where they want to be – at home. 

v Coordinated and intelligence-led early identification and early intervention.  

This might include professionals being proactive in identifying need rather than waiting 
for it to be presented as a formal referral; ensuring that the workforce are able to feed 
back as much intelligence as possible as to the needs of the service users they are 
supporting and how service delivery and deployment of available resources can be 
improved; further improving information sharing between the range of organisations in 
contact with older people about individuals at risk of requiring more support in the 
future;  Social Workers having greater identification with a community and working with 
other agencies to identify those at risk and interventions available , preferably through 
the voluntary and community sector for needs that might be below the thresholds for 
statutory assessment; and giving professional freedom to deliver a flexible response to 
need to avoid escalation of cost (e.g. through use of direct payments, or community 
development interventions). 

v An improved approach to crisis management and recovery.  

This might include a process for rapid escalation and action when a crisis occurs in the 
life of an older person; this is likely to involve a coordinated response from all agencies 
working in or operating as multi-disciplinary teams to provide intensive support in the 
short term and encompassing services such as respite care. Support should focus on 
ensuring that when the crisis is over older people and their carers remain as 
independent as possible and avoid short term crises triggering a deterioration which 
leads to long term health or social care need.   

 
4. LONG LIST OF PROPOSED SCHEMES 

 
4.1 The following table outlines some of the schemes that are under consideration for the 

Better Care Fund in Peterborough. This list has been developed taking into account the 
national conditions, achieving nationally agreed metrics during the period of the fund, and 
with reference to both existing local initiatives and evidence of impact, as well a review of 
evidence recently undertaken by the public health colleagues. Further details relating to 
some of these criteria or characteristics can be found below. 
 

Scheme Brief details 

Enhanced re-ablement 
service 

Building on the provision successfully provided by the 
City Council under present pooled funding 
arrangements, with the proposed impact being reduced 
admissions, reduced length of stay and reduced (or at 
least delayed) demand for long term care. Including 
closer alignment of community therapies to develop a 
structured and intensively supported discharge service 
(in particular for conditions such as stroke for which 
there is an evidence base as to the positive impact of 
e.g. Early Supported Discharge). In addition to include 
a focused and preventative approach to (repeat) fallers, 
including close work with other initiatives including 
medication review, etc. 
 

Enhanced carers 
services  

Building on the future aspiration of the Carers’ 
Strategy, to join up monies from the Council and the 
CCG to improve outcomes for carers; including roll-out 
and implementation of Carers’ Prescription Service, 
support in a  crisis, carers breaks, and better advice 
and upstream support for carers and communities.  
 

Closer alignment of 
present S256 funding 
with existing health and 
care gaps 

Increased investment in frontline care services targeted 
in areas of greatest need which are presently under-
provided by the health and care sector, including (for 
instance): through enhanced Multi-Disciplinary Teams 

21



(MDT) working with adults as well as older adults (e.g. 
to reduce admissions for patients with concurrent 
learning disability and epilepsy); increased social care 
input to all MDT working; 7-day working through MDT 
(or similar) teams, including The Firm (or equivalent); 
improved psychiatric liaison services or mental health 
presence in MDTs. 
 

Admission avoidance 
and intermediate care 

Building on existing intermediate care and admission 
avoidance schemes (including The Firm or equivalent), 
to further reduce the number of avoidable admissions, 
and emergency bed days. To increase patient flow 
through intermediate care sector to ensure access to 
“step-up” as well as re-ablement beds. 
 

Increased funding for 
home adaptations (and 
assessment leading to 
these, including 
enhanced OT service). 

To improve waiting times and capacity by working in 
partnership with housing providers, to provide timely 
and preventative adaptations, as well as to enhance re-
ablement services following admission etc. To consider 
how the existing ICES contract might be aligned or 
more closely integrated with this work. 
 

Increased investment in 
“upstream” preventative 
services.   

Building on existing 3rd Sector provision, to pro-actively 
develop community navigator schemes that improve 
access to advice and information (including for carers, 
and wider communities); and to promote social and 
community capital with a particular aim to combat 
isolation, and the social causes of ill health.  
 
To develop a universally accessible and joined up first 
point of contact, with a view to avoiding escalation of 
demand (including admission to care or acute settings).  
 
To promote empowerment and self-management, 
building on the philosophy of self-directed support, 
whether through development of personal health 
budgets, or associated planning mechanisms for those 
with long-term conditions. 
 
To more closely align community resources that exist 
for different client groups; this could result in 
efficiencies and greater community cohesion and 
support. 
 

Enhanced dementia 
support services 

To develop great community resource, building on the 
development of the Dementia Resource Centre, with a 
particular view to early diagnosis, and “upstream” 
interventions (e.g. psycho-educational, and including 
support to carers and wider communities) which may 
maintain independence and reduce (or delay) 
admission to long-term care settings. 
 

End of Life Enhanced home care support at end of life through 
specialist third sector provision, with the aim of 
improved experience for patients and their families at 
the end of life as well as reduced unplanned care 
costs.  
 

Care Sector Review To develop enhanced services (alongside incoming 

22



Team Lead Integrator for Older Peoples Community Services, 
and with reference to the Primary Care Strategy, in 
partnership with Primary Care) to review the health and 
care needs of citizens in the care sector, to review 
quality of care, and to support discharge (back to more 
independent living), increased independence (for those 
who require longer term care). 
 

Focussed medications 
review 

Coupled with the above (working in, but not exclusively 
in, the care sector) to prioritise timely medication 
review, and with a view to avoid falling.  
 

Telecare and telehealth To invest in areas for which assistive technologies are 
proven (e.g. for people with chronic heart-failure, 
COPD / asthma) with a view to maintaining 
independence, and reducing unnecessary hospital 
admissions. 

 
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 In addition to the on-going work of the PCC Integration and Transformation Group, the 
CCG is actively engaging with both Cambridgeshire County Council, and Northamptonshire 
County Council, to ensure effective alignment (where possible) and disaggregation (where 
necessary) of its BCF plans. 

 
5.2 PATIENT, SERVICE USER AND PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

We have endeavoured to engage with stakeholders as widely as possible given the tight 
timescales for development of the early drafts of the agreement, and to ensure that the 
views obtained through dialogue and feedback from our stakeholders are played 
appropriately into the final version of this plan. We envisage that engagement will continue 
as an on-going activity throughout the duration of the BCF plan so that we can assure 
ourselves that the initiatives we implement reflect, as far as possible, the opportunities 
identified as a result of engagement. 

 
5.3 The scope of engagement in Cambridgeshire and in Peterborough has been 

comprehensive including: 
 

• Health and Well-being Boards in Cambridgeshire and in Peterborough 

• Cambridgeshire Public Sector Board 

• Local Authority Cabinet and Scrutiny members 

• CCG Executive and Governing Body 

• Older People Programme Board 

• Local Clinical Commissioning Groups 

• Chief Executives of all hospitals (acute sector) 

• Several Housing Providers (excluding City/District Councils’ housing services)  

• Independent Sector Providers (Provider Forum and Strategic Provider group) 

• Voluntary Sector Groups 
 

5.4 Our approach throughout has been to: 
 

• secure buy-in to the use of the fund through the active engagement of all key and 

relevant stakeholders 

• ensure there is  engagement on draft proposals prior to discussions at the  Health and 

Wellbeing Boards prior to submission to government 

• be proportionate given the time and resource constraints - so where ever possible 

using existing meetings/forums and communication channels e.g. website consultation 

pages to facilitate the process; and 

23



• ensure there will be further opportunities to shape and influence use of BCF once 

plans have been accepted by government i.e. at the more detailed planning stage  

 
5.5 We have adopted three phases of work:  

 
Phase 1: Stakeholder engagement  

• Development of the Vision and Principles document and associated strategies with 
stakeholders, in particular  Health and Social Care providers, public sector bodies, 
Healthwatch and the community and voluntary sectors.  The aim is to seek ‘buy-in’ to 
the overall proposition; to clarify issues (e.g. funding, scope) and to manage 
expectations 

 
Phase 2: User, Patient and Wider Public Engagement 

• Formal publication of the Vision and Principles document  seeking views from patients 
and service users across the health and social care system 

 
Phase 3: Further involvement of stakeholders (providers, patients and users) to help shape 
final proposals and service design (February to March 2014) 

• The ‘shape’ of stakeholder involvement will reflect the nature of the schemes included 

in the approved plan.   

6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
6.1 The future outcome for the BCF will be improved service integration, community cohesion 

and capacity, and to develop better outcomes for the citizens of Peterborough in terms of 
health and social care service delivery; it should also improve the medium-term affordability 
of services in the stretched local health and social care economy. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board will wish to take a strategic oversight of these plans (once developed, and 
through their implementation), including through regular qualitative and quantitative reports 
to this Board.  
 

6.2 In the shorter term, the hoped for outcome of this paper will be to delegate (and indeed 
authorise) the next step in the planning process, to ensure that local plans can be 
developed within the required time envelope to allow the full allocation of local funding to 
be pooled. It is recommended that an update on this process be brought back to the next 
Board meeting for formal ratification, and to request any recommendations for review and 
refresh of the plans as their detail is developed during 2014/15. Prior to this it is proposed 
that the first draft be taken to the February meeting of the Joint Commissioning Forum for 
approval prior to submission on 14th February, with a revised draft coming to the March 
meeting of that group, prior to being sent to the Health and Wellbeing Board for virtual sign-
off prior to submission of the final draft to NHS England on 4th April. 

 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 The Board should be aware of the development of arrangements (national and local) for 

the Better Care Fund, the developing plans for its use, and the expectation from central 
government that Health and Wellbeing Boards take a central role in signing off these plans. 
The Board is asked to delegate the agreement of more detailed plans for the use of the 
BCF to the ITF Group since the required timescales for agreeing these do not allow for 
their being brought to a subsequent meeting. 

 
8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
8.1 The Board might choose not to consider the plans for use of the BCF at such an early 

stage, or to withhold its agreement to their development, or to delegated authority to the 
ITF or other group. This would risk a missed opportunity, both for progressing the 
development of future integrated working, but also for the development of pooled funding 
arrangements in the future. Moreover, the DH Guidance (published in December 2013) 
makes it clear that the £200m of additional funding for 2014/15 will only be released by 

24



NHS England to Councils that have jointly agreed a Better Care Fund two-year plan for the 
period from 2015. So whilst no action, or alternative delegated authority might be 
considered, it would risk this additional sum of integration funding to delay the final decision 
until the next Board meeting.  

 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 

Information) Act 1985) 
  

• The BCF guidance, released on 20/12/13. 

• Terms of Reference for the ITF Board. 

 

10.       Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – DH Guidance 

Appendix 2 – Joint Letter to LA’s – Better Care Fund 

Appendix 3 – Integration Transformation Fund TOR 

 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Annex to the NHS England Planning Guidance 
 

Developing Plans for the Better Care Fund 

(formerly the Integration Transformation Fund) 
 
 
What is the Better Care Fund? 
 
1. The Better Care Fund (previously referred to as the Integration Transformation 

Fund) was announced in June as part of the 2013 Spending Round. It provides 
an opportunity to transform local services so that people are provided with better 
integrated care and support. It encompasses a substantial level of funding to help 
local areas manage pressures and improve long term sustainability. The Fund 
will be an important enabler to take the integration agenda forward at scale and 
pace, acting as a significant catalyst for change. 
 

2. The Better Care Fund provides an opportunity to improve the lives of some of the 
most vulnerable people in our society, giving them control, placing them at the 
centre of their own care and support, and, in doing so, providing them with a 
better service and better quality of life.  
 

3. The Fund will support the aim of providing people with the right care, in the right 
place, at the right time, including through a significant expansion of care in 
community settings. This will build on the work Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) and councils are already doing, for example, as part of the integrated 
care “pioneers” initiative, through Community Budgets, through work with the 
Public Service Transformation Network, and on understanding the patient/service 
user experience. 
 

What is included in the Better Care Fund and what does it cover?  
 

4. The Fund provides for £3.8 billion worth of funding in 2015/16 to be spent locally 
on health and care to drive closer integration and improve outcomes for patients 
and service users and carers. In 2014/15, in addition to the £900m transfer 
already planned from the NHS to adult social care, a further £200m will transfer 
to enable localities to prepare for the Better Care Fund in 2015/16. 
 

5. The tables below summarise the elements of the Spending Round 
announcement on the Fund: 

 

The June 2013 Spending Round set out the following: 

2014/15 2015/16 

A further £200m transfer from the NHS 
to adult social care, in addition to the 
£900m transfer already planned 

£3.8bn to be deployed locally on health 
and social care through pooled budget 
arrangements 

 
 

APPENDIX 1

27



 

2 
 

In 2015/16 the Fund will be created from: 

£1.9bn of NHS funding 

£1.9bn based on existing funding in 2014/15 that is allocated across the health 
and wider care system. This will comprise: 

· £130m Carers’ Break funding 

· £300m CCG reablement funding 

· £354m capital funding (including £220m Disabled Facilities Grant) 

· £1.1bn existing transfer from health to adult social care. 

 
 
6. For 2014/15 there are no additional conditions attached to the £900m transfer 

already announced, but NHS England will only pay out the additional £200m to 
councils that have jointly agreed and signed off two-year plans for the Better Care 
Fund. 

 
7. In 2014/15 there are no new requirements for pooling of budgets. The 

requirements for the use of the funds transferred from the NHS to local 
authorities in 2014/15 remain consistent with the guidance1 from the Department 
of Health (DH) to NHS England on 19 December 2012 on the funding transfer 
from NHS to social care in 2013/14. In line with this: 
 

8. “The funding must be used to support adult social care services in each local 
authority, which also has a health benefit. However, beyond this broad condition 
we want to provide flexibility for local areas to determine how this investment in 
social care services is best used.  
 

9. A condition of the transfer is that the local authority agrees with its local health 
partners how the funding is best used within social care, and the outcomes 
expected from this investment. Health and wellbeing boards will be the natural 
place for discussions between NHS England, clinical commissioning groups and 
councils on how the funding should be spent, as part of their wider discussions 
on the use of their total health and care resources.  
 

10. In line with our responsibilities under the Health and Social Care Act, an 
additional condition of the transfer is that councils and clinical commissioning 
groups have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for their local 
population, and existing commissioning plans for both health and social care, in 
how the funding is used.  
 

11. A further condition of the transfer is that local authorities councils and clinical 
commissioning groups demonstrate how the funding transfer will make a positive 
difference to social care services, and outcomes for service users, compared to 
service plans in the absence of the funding transfer” 

                                            
1
 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213223/Funding-

transfer-from-the-NHS-to-social-care-in-2013-14.pdf 

28



 

3 
 

12. Councils should use the additional £200m to prepare for the implementation of 
pooled budgets in April 2015 and to make early progress against the national 
conditions and the performance measures set out in the locally agreed plan. This 
is important, since some of the performance-related money is linked to 
performance in 2014/15. 

 
13. The £3.8bn Fund includes £130m of NHS funding for carers’ breaks. Local plans 

should set out the level of resource that will be dedicated to carer-specific 
support, including carers’ breaks, and identify how the chosen methods for 
supporting carers will help to meet key outcomes (e.g. reducing delayed transfers 
of care). The Fund also includes £300m of NHS funding for reablement services. 
Local plans will therefore need to demonstrate a continued focus on reablement 
 

14. It was announced as part of the Spending Round that the Better Care Fund 
would include funding for costs to councils resulting from care and support 
reform. This money is not ring-fenced, but local plans should show how the new 
duties are being met. 
 

i. £50m of the capital funding has been earmarked for the capital costs 
(including IT) associated with transition to the capped cost system, which 
will be implemented in April 2016. 
 

ii. £135m of revenue funding is linked to a range of new duties that come in 
from April 2015 as a result of the Care Bill. Most of the cost results from 
new entitlements for carers and the introduction of a national minimum 
eligibility threshold, but there is also funding for better information and 
advice, advocacy, safeguarding and other measures in the Care Bill. 

 
What will be the statutory framework for the Fund? 

 
15. In 2015/16 the Fund will be allocated to local areas, where it will be put into 

pooled budgets under Section 752  joint governance arrangements between 
CCGs and councils. A condition of accessing the money in the Fund is that CCGs 
and councils must jointly agree plans for how the money will be spent, and these 
plans must meet certain requirements. 

 
16. Funding will be routed through NHS England to protect the overall level of health 

spending and ensure a process that works coherently with wider NHS funding 
arrangements.  
 

17. DH will use the Mandate for 2015/16 to instruct NHS England to ring-fence its 
contribution to the Fund and to ensure this is deployed in specified amounts at 
local level for use in pooled budgets by CCGs and local authorities.  
 

18. Legislation is needed to ring-fence NHS contributions to the Fund at national and 
local levels, to give NHS England powers to assure local plans and 
performance, and to ensure that local authorities not party to the pooled budget 
can be paid from it, through additional conditions in Section 31 of the Local 

                                            
2
 Sec 75 of the NHS Act, 2006, provides for CCGs and local authorities to pool budgets. 

29



 

4 
 

Government Act 2003.  This will ensure that the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 
can be included in the Fund 
 

19. The DFG has been included in the Fund so that the provision of adaptations can 
be incorporated in the strategic consideration and planning of investment to 
improve outcomes for service users. DFG will be paid to upper-tier authorities in 
2015/16. However, the statutory duty on local housing authorities to provide DFG 
to those who qualify for it will remain. Therefore each area will have to allocate 
this funding to their respective housing authorities (district councils in two-tier 
areas) from the pooled budget to enable them to continue to meet their statutory 
duty to provide adaptations to the homes of disabled people, including in relation 
to young people aged 17 and under.  

 
20. Special conditions will be added to the DFG Conditions of Grant Usage (under 

Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003) which stipulate that, where 
relevant, upper-tier local authorities or CCGs must ensure they cascade the DFG 
allocation to district council level in a timely manner such that it can be spent 
within year. Further indicative minimum allocations for DFG have been provided 
for all upper-tier authorities, with further breakdowns for allocations at district 
council level as the holders of the Fund may decide that additional funding is 
appropriate to top up the minimum DFG funding levels. 
 

21. DH and the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) will also 
use Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 to ensure that DH Adult Social 
Care capital grants (£134m) will reach local areas as part of the Fund. Relevant 
conditions will be attached to these grants so that they are used in pooled 
budgets for the purposes of the Fund. DH, DCLG and the Treasury will work 
together in early 2014 to develop the terms and conditions of these grants. 

 
How will local Fund allocations be determined? 

 
22. Councils will receive their detailed funding allocations in the normal way. NHS 

allocations will be two-year allocations for 2014/15 and 2015/16 to enable more 
effective planning. 
 

23. In 2014/15 the existing £900m s.256 transfer to councils for adult social care to 
benefit health, and the additional £200m, will continue to be distributed using the 
social care relative needs formula (RNF). 
 

24. The formula for distribution of the full £3.8bn fund in 2015/16 will be based on a 
financial framework agreed by ministers. The current social care transfer of 
£1.1bn and the £134m of adult social care capital funding included in the Fund in 
2015/16 will be allocated in the same way as in 2014/15. DFG will be allocated 
based on the same formula as 2014/15.  The remainder of the Fund will be 
allocated on the basis of the CCG allocations formula. It will be for local areas to 
decide how to spend their allocations on health and social care services through 
their joint plan.  
 

25. The announcement of the two-year CCG allocations, communicated to CCGs 
and councils alongside this planning guidance, includes the Fund allocations in 
2015/16. In 2014/15, the additional £200m will be transferred directly from NHS 

30



 

5 
 

England to councils along with the rest of the adult social care transfer. The local 
authority and CCGs in each Health and Wellbeing Board area will receive a 
notification of their share of the pooled fund for 2014/15 and 2015/16 based on 
the aggregate of the allocation mechanisms. The allocation letter also specifies 
the amount that is included in the payment-for-performance element, and is 
therefore contingent in part on planning and performance in 2014/15 and in part 
on achieving specified goals in 2015/16. 
 

26. Allocation letters will specify only the minimum amount of funds to be included in 
pooled budgets. CCGs and councils are free to extend the scope of their pooled 
budget to support better integration in line with their Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 
 

27. The wider powers to use Health Act flexibilities to pool funds, share information 
and staff are unaffected by the new Better Care Fund requirements, and will be 
helpful in taking this work forward. 
 

How should councils and CCGs develop and agree a joint plan for the Fund? 
 
28. Each statutory Health and Wellbeing Board will sign off the plan for its constituent 

councils and CCGs. The Fund plan must be developed as a fully integral part of a 
CCG’s wider strategic and operational plan, but the Better Care Fund elements 
must be capable of being extracted to be seen as a stand-alone plan. 
 

29. Where the unit of planning chosen by a CCG for its strategic and operational plan 
is not consistent with the boundaries of the Health and Wellbeing Board, or 
Boards, with which it works, it will be necessary for the CCG to reconcile the 
Better Care Fund element of its plan to the Health and Wellbeing Board level. 
NHS England will support CCGs in this position to ensure that plans are properly 
aligned.  
 

30. The specific priorities and performance goals in the plan are clearly a matter for 
each locality but it will be valuable to be able to: 
 

· aggregate the ambitions set for the Fund across all Health and Wellbeing 
Boards;  

· assure that the national conditions have been achieved; and 

· understand the performance goals and payment regimes that have been 
agreed in each area. 

 
31. To assist Health and Wellbeing Boards we have developed a template which we 

expect everyone to use in developing, agreeing and publishing their Better Care 
Plan. This is attached as a separate Word document and Excel spread sheet. 
The template sets out the key information and metrics that all Health and 
Wellbeing Boards will need to assure themselves that the plan addresses the 
conditions of the Fund.  
 

32. As part of this template, local areas should provide an agreed shared risk 
register. This should include an agreed approach to risk sharing and mitigation 
covering, as a minimum, the impact on existing NHS and social care delivery and 

31



 

6 
 

the steps that will be taken if activity volumes do not change as planned (for 
example, if emergency admissions or nursing home admissions increase). 

 
33. CCGs and councils must engage from the outset with all providers, both NHS 

and social care (and also providers of housing and other related services), likely 
to be affected by the use of the fund in order to achieve the best outcomes for 
local people. The plans must clearly set out how this engagement has taken 
place. Providers, CCGs and councils must develop a shared view of the future 
shape of services, the impact of the Fund on existing models of service delivery, 
and how the transition from these models to the future shape of services will be 
made. This should include an assessment of future capacity and workforce 
requirements across the system. It will be important to work closely with Local 
Education and Training Boards and the market shaping functions of councils, as 
well as with providers themselves, on the workforce implications to ensure that 
there is a consistent approach to workforce planning for both providers and 
commissioners. 
 

34. CCGs and councils should also work with providers to help manage the transition 
to new patterns of provision including, for example, the use of non-recurrent 
funding to support disinvestment from services. It is also essential that the 
implications for all local providers are set out clearly for Health and Wellbeing 
Boards and that their agreement for the deployment of the Fund includes 
agreement to all the service change consequences. 
 

What are the National Conditions? 
 
35. The Spending Round established six national conditions for access to the Fund: 

 

National 
Condition 

Definition 

Plans to be jointly 
agreed 

The Better Care Fund Plan, covering a minimum of the 
pooled fund specified in the Spending Round, and 
potentially extending to the totality of the health and care 
spend in the Health and Wellbeing Board area, should be 
signed off by the Health and Well Being Board itself, and by 
the constituent Councils and Clinical Commissioning 
Groups. 
 
In agreeing the plan, CCGs and councils should engage 
with all providers likely to be affected by the use of the fund 
in order to achieve the best outcomes for local people. They 
should develop a shared view of the future shape of 
services. This should include an assessment of future 
capacity and workforce requirements across the system. 
The implications for local providers should be set out clearly 
for Health and Wellbeing Boards so that their agreement for 
the deployment of the fund includes recognition of the 
service change consequences. 

32



 

7 
 

National 
Condition 

Definition 

Protection for 
social care 
services (not 
spending) 

Local areas must include an explanation of how local adult 
social care services will be protected within their plans. The 
definition of protecting services is to be agreed locally. It 
should be consistent with the 2012 Department of Health 
guidance referred to in paragraphs 8 to 11, above. 
 

As part of agreed 
local plans, 7-day 
services in health 
and social care to 
support patients 
being discharged 
and prevent 
unnecessary 
admissions at 
weekends 

Local areas are asked to confirm how their plans will 
provide 7-day services to support patients being discharged 
and prevent unnecessary admissions at weekends. If they 
are not able to provide such plans, they must explain why. 
There will not be a nationally defined level of 7-day services 
to be provided. This will be for local determination and 
agreement. 
 
There is clear evidence that many patients are not 
discharged from hospital at weekends when they are 
clinically fit to be discharged because the supporting 
services are not available to facilitate it. The recent national 
review of urgent and emergency care sponsored by Sir 
Bruce Keogh for NHS England provided guidance on 
establishing effective 7-day services within existing 
resources. 
 

Better data 
sharing between 
health and social 
care, based on 
the NHS number  

The safe, secure sharing of data in the best interests of 
people who use care and support is essential to the 
provision of safe, seamless care. The use of the NHS 
number as a primary identifier is an important element of 
this, as is progress towards systems and processes that 
allow the safe and timely sharing of information. It is also 
vital that the right cultures, behaviours and leadership are 
demonstrated locally, fostering a culture of secure, lawful 
and appropriate sharing of data to support better care. 
 
Local areas should:  

· confirm that they are using the NHS Number as the 
primary identifier for health and care services, and if 
they are not, when they plan to;  

· confirm that they are pursuing open APIs (ie. systems 
that speak to each other); and 

· ensure they have the appropriate Information 
Governance controls in place for information sharing in 
line with Caldicott 2, and if not, when they plan for it to 
be in place. 

 
NHS England has already produced guidance that relates 
to both of these areas. (It is recognised that progress on 
this issue will require the resolution of some Information 
Governance issues by DH). 

33



 

8 
 

National 
Condition 

Definition 

Ensure a joint 
approach to 
assessments and 
care planning and 
ensure that, 
where funding is 
used for 
integrated 
packages of care, 
there will be an 
accountable 
professional 
 

Local areas should identify which proportion of their 
population will be receiving case management and a lead 
accountable professional, and which proportions will be 
receiving self-management help - following the principles of 
person-centred care planning. Dementia services will be a 
particularly important priority for better integrated health and 
social care services, supported by accountable 
professionals.  
 
The Government has set out an ambition in the Mandate 
that GPs should be accountable for co-ordinating patient-
centred care for older people and those with complex 
needs. 
 

Agreement on the 
consequential 
impact of 
changes in the 
acute sector 

Local areas should identify, provider-by-provider, what the 
impact will be in their local area, including if the impact goes 
beyond the acute sector. Assurance will also be sought on 
public and patient and service user engagement in this 
planning, as well as plans for political buy-in. 
 
Ministers have indicated that, in line with the Mandate 
requirements on achieving parity of esteem for mental 
health, plans must not have a negative impact on the level 
and quality of mental health services. 
 

 
 
How will Councils and CCGs be rewarded for meeting goals? 
 
36. The Spending Round indicated that £1bn of the £3.8bn would be linked to 

achieving outcomes. Ministers have agreed the basis on which this payment-for-
performance element of the Fund will operate. 
 

37. Half of the £1bn will be released in April 2015. £250m of this will depend on 
progress against four of the six national conditions and the other £250m will 
relate to performance against a number of national and locally determined 
metrics during 2014/15. The remainder (£500m) will be released in October 2015 
and will relate to further progress against the national and locally determined 
metrics. 
 

38. The performance payment arrangements are summarised in the table below: 
 
 

 
  

34



 

9 
 

When: Payment for 
performance 

amount 

Paid for: 

April 2015 £250m Progress against four of the national conditions: 

· protection for adult social care services  

· providing 7-day services to support patients 
being discharged and prevent unnecessary 
admissions at weekends  

· agreement on the consequential impact of 
changes in the acute sector;  

· ensuring that where funding is used for 
integrated packages of care there will be an 
accountable lead professional  
 

£250m Progress against the local metric and two of the 
national metrics: 

· delayed transfers of care; 

· avoidable emergency admissions; and 
 

October 2015 
£500m Further progress against all of the national and 

local metrics. 
 

 
National and Local Metrics 

 
39. Only a limited number of national measures can be used to demonstrate 

progress towards better integrated health and social care services in 2015/16, 
because of the need to establish a baseline of performance in 2014/15. National 
metrics for the Fund have therefore been based on a number of criteria, in 
particular the need for data to be available with sufficient regularity and rigour.  
 

40. The national metrics underpinning the Fund will be: 
 

· admissions to residential and care homes; 

· effectiveness of reablement; 

· delayed transfers of care; 

· avoidable emergency admissions; and 

· patient / service user experience. 
 

41. The measures are the best available but do have shortcomings. Local plans will 
need to ensure that they are applied sensitively and do not adversely affect 
decisions on the care of individual patients and service users. 
 

42. Further technical guidance will be provided on the national metrics, including the 
detailed definition, the source of the data underpinning the metric, the reporting 
schedule and advice on the statistical significance of ambitions for improvement. 
 

43. Due to the varying time lags for the metrics, different time periods will underpin 
the two payments for the Fund as set out in the table below. Data for the first two 
of these metrics, on admissions to residential and care homes and the 

35



 

10 
 

effectiveness of reablement, are currently only available annually and so will not 
be available to be included in the first payment in April 2015. 
 

Metric April 2015 payment 
based on 
performance in 

October 2015 payment 
based on  
performance in 

Admissions to residential 
and care homes 

N/A Apr 2014 - Mar 2015 

Effectiveness of 
reablement 

N/A Apr 2014 - Mar 2015 

Delayed transfers of care 
 

Apr – Dec 2014 Jan - Jun 2015 

Avoidable emergency 
admissions 

Apr – Sept 2014 Oct 2014 – Mar 2015 

Patient / service user 
experience 

N/A Details TBC 

 
44. For the metric on patient / service user experience, no single measure of the 

experience of integrated care is currently available, as opposed to quality of 
health care or social care alone. A new national measure is being developed, but 
will not be in place in time to measure improvements in 2015/16. In the 
meantime, further details will be provided shortly on how patient / service user 
experience should be measured specifically for the purpose of the Fund. 
 

45. In addition to the five national metrics, local areas should choose one additional 
indicator that will contribute to the payment-for-performance element of the Fund. 
In choosing this indicator, it must be possible to establish a baseline of 
performance in 2014/15.  
 

46. A menu of possible local metrics selected from the NHS, Adult Social Care and 
Public Health Outcomes Frameworks is set out in the table below: 
 

NHS Outcomes Framework 

2.1 Proportion of people feeling supported to manage their (long term) 
condition 

2.6i Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia 
 

3.5 Proportion of patients with fragility fractures recovering to their 
previous levels of mobility / walking ability at 30 / 120 days 

Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 

1A Social care-related quality of life 
 

1H Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health 
services living independently with or without support 

1D Carer-reported quality of life 
 

Public Health Outcomes Framework 

36



 

11 
 

1.18i Proportion of adult social care users who have as much social 
contact as they would like 

2.13ii Proportion of adults classified as “inactive” 

2.24i Injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over 

 
47. Local areas must either select one of the metrics from this menu, or agree a local 

alternative. Any alternative chosen must meet the following criteria: 
 

· it has a clear, demonstrable link with the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy; 

· data is robust and reliable with no major data quality issues (e.g. not subject 
to small numbers); 

· it comes from an established, reliable (ideally published) source; 

· timely data is available, in line with requirements for pay for performance; 

· the achievement of the locally set level of ambition is suitably challenging; and 

· it creates the right incentives. 
 

48. Each metric will be of equal value for the payment for performance element of the 
Fund. 
 

49. Local areas should set an appropriate level of ambition for improvement against 
each of the national indicators, and the locally determined indicator. In signing off 
local plans, Health and Wellbeing Boards should be mindful of the link to the 
levels of ambition on outcomes that CCGs have been asked to set as part of their 
wider strategic and operational plans. Both the effectiveness of reablement and 
avoidable emergency admissions outcomes metrics are consistent with national 
metrics for the Fund, and so Health and Wellbeing Boards will need to ensure 
consistency between the CCG levels of ambitions and the Fund plans. 
 

50. In agreeing specific levels of ambition for the metrics, Health and Wellbeing 
Boards should be mindful of a number of factors, such as: 
 

· having a clear baseline against which to compare future performance; 

· understanding the long-run trend to ensure that the target does not purely 
reward improved performance consistent with trend increase; 

· ensuring that any seasonality in the performance is taken in to account; and 

· ensuring that the target is achievable, yet challenging enough to incentivise 
an improvement in integration and improved outcomes for users. 

 
51. In agreeing levels of ambition, Health and Wellbeing Boards should also consider 

the level required for a statistically significant improvement. It would not be 
appropriate for the level of ambition to be set such that it rewards a small 
improvement that is purely an artefact of variation in the underlying dataset.  

 
How will plans be assured? 
 
52. Ministers, stakeholder organisations and people in local areas will wish to be 

assured that the Fund is being used for the intended purpose, and that the local 
plans credibly set out how improved outcomes and wellbeing for people will be 
achieved, with effective protection of social care and integrated activity to reduce 
emergency and urgent health demand.  

37



 

12 
 

 
53. To maximise our collective capacity to achieve these outcomes and deliver 

sustainable services the NHS and local government will have a shared approach 
to supporting local areas and assuring plans.  
 

54. The most important element of assurance for plans will be the requirement for 
them to be signed-off by the Health and Wellbeing Board. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board is best placed to decide whether the plans are the best for the 
locality, engaging with local people and bringing a sector-led approach to the 
process.  
 

55. The plans will also go through an assurance process involving NHS England and 
the LGA to assure Ministers. The key elements of the overall assurance process 
are as follows: 
 

· Plans are presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board, which considers 
whether the plans are sufficiently challenging and will deliver tangible benefits 
for the local population (linked to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy). 

 

· If the Health and Wellbeing Board is not satisfied, and the plan is still lacking 
after a process of progressive iteration, an element of local government and 
NHS peer challenge will be facilitated by NHS England and the LGA.  

 

· NHS England’s process for assuring CCG strategic and operational plans will 
include a specific focus on the element of the plan developed for the Fund. 
This will allow us to summarise, aggregate and rate all plans, against criteria 
agreed with government departments and the LGA, to provide an overview of 
Fund plans at national, regional and local level.  

 

· This overview will be reviewed by a Departmental-led senior group comprised 
of DH, DCLG, HMT, NHS England and LGA officials, supported by external 
expertise from the NHS and local government. Where issues of serious 
concern are highlighted the group will consider how issues may be resolved, 
either through provision of additional support or escalation to Ministers.  

 

· Where necessary, Ministers (supported by the senior group) will meet 
representatives from the relevant LAs and CCGs to account for why they have 
not been able to produce an acceptable plan and agree next steps to 
formulate such a plan. 

 

· Ministers will give the final sign-off to plans and the release of performance 
related funds. 

 
What will be the consequences of failure to achieve improvement? 
 
56. Ministers have considered whether local areas which fail to achieve the levels of 

ambition set out in their plan should have their performance-related funding 
withdrawn, to be reallocated elsewhere. However, given the scale and complexity 
of the challenge of developing plans for the first time, they have agreed that such 

38



 

13 
 

a sanction will not be applied in 2015/16. Further consideration will be given to 
whether it should be introduced in subsequent years. 
 

57. If a local area achieves 70% or more of the levels of ambition set out in each of 
the indicators in its plan, it will be allowed to use the held-back portion of the 
performance pool to fund its agreed contingency plan, as necessary. 
 

58. If an area fails to deliver 70% of the levels of ambition set out in its plan, it may be 
required to produce a recovery plan. This will be developed with the support of a 
peer review process involving colleagues from NHS and local government 
organisations in neighbouring areas. The peer review process will be co-
ordinated by NHS England, with the support of the LGA.  
 

59. If the recovery plan is agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board, NHS England 
and the local government peer reviewer, the held-back portion of the 
performance payment from the Fund will be made available to fund the recovery 
plan. 
 

60. If a recovery plan cannot be agreed locally, and signed-off by the peer reviewers, 
NHS England will direct how the held-back performance related portion of the 
Fund  should be used by the local organisations, subject to the money being 
used for the benefit of the health and care system in line with the aims and 
conditions of the Fund. 
 

61. Ministers will have the opportunity to give the final sign-off to peer-reviewed 
recovery plans and to any directions given by NHS England on the use of funds 
in cases where it has not been possible to agree a recovery plan. 
 

Support for BCF Planning 
 

62. CCGs and councils can access additional support for Better Care Fund planning 
from the same routes as for NHS operational and strategic plans: local support 
via CSUs or external providers, workshops and webinars, and specific tools and 
resources. Links to these, and contact details can be found on NHS England and 
the LGA’s websites. 
 

When should plans be submitted? 
 

63. Health and Wellbeing Boards should provide the first cut of their completed Better 
Care Plan template, as an integral part of the constituent CCGs’ Strategic and 
Operational Plans by 14 February 2014, so that we can aggregate them to 
provide a composite report, and identify any areas where it has proved 
challenging to agree plans for the Fund. 
 

64. The revised version of the Better Care Plan should be submitted to NHS 
England, as an integral part of the constituent CCGs’ Strategic and Operational 
Plans by 4 April 2014. 
 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

41



42



  

1 

 

 

 
 

Scoping Group for developing the Integration Transformation Fund 
Action Plan 

 

 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. Purpose 
 

 To deliver integration transformation through partnership 

 Targeting the pool budget to maintain independence 

 To manage the service change effectively to ensure minimal adverse impact on 
customers 

 To review current plans/services attached to identified funding streams and 
agree continuation of plans/services or changes as appropriate  

 To undertake analysis of local needs and customers views on how these needs 
may best be met 

 To agree priorities against the needs assessment and develop outcome focused 
specifications 

 To create plan for 2014/15 against specified outcomes for people 

 To present the plan to the Joint Commissioning Forum 

 To submit the Plan to the Health and Wellbeing Board for sign off by 15th 
February 2014. 

 To align with ‘The NHS belongs to the people: a call to action’ 
 
2. Objectives 
 

 that there is truly integrated multi-agency working so that local health and social 
care systems work as a whole system to respond to the needs of local people 

 to ensure current social care services are protected  

 to further develop a 7 day working approach for both health and social care to 
support patients being discharged from inpatient provision and prevent 
unnecessary admissions and re-admissions 

 to develop better information sharing between health and social care 

 to ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning 

 to ensure that where funding is used for integrated packages there is an 
accountable professional 

 agreement on the consequential impact of changes in the acute sector and how 
these will be managed 

 to ensure an integrated preventative offer is developed and easily accessible to 
the customer 

 to ensure an integrated carers strategy 
 
  

APPENDIX 3

43



  

2 

 

 
 
3. Outcomes 
 

 people are in control and are central to the planning of their care so they receive 
a service that is right for them 

 people get the right support, at the right time in the right place and at the right 
cost 

 carers get the right support, at the right time in the right place and at the right 
cost 

 
Frequency, Structure and Administration 
 

To meet fortnightly to produce the plan, and at agreed intervals thereafter to monitor 
implementation  

 
4. Membership 
 

Cathy Mitchell (Chair) Local Chief Officer, Borderline and Peterborough LCGs 
Housing/DFG Rep  TBC 
Jana Burton Executive Director of Adult Social Care, Health & 

Wellbeing, Peterborough City Council 
Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Director for Communities, PCC 
Chris Rowland  Older People Project Lead, B&PLCG’s 
John Ellis   MH Contract Lead, C&PCCG 
Area Team Rep.  TBC 
Paul Grubic   Asst Director Commissioning, PCC 
Debbie McQuade  Asst Director Care Service Delivery, PCC 
Tina Hornsby,   Asst Director Quality, Improvement & Performance, PCC 
Paul Stevenson  Head of Adult Social Care Finance, PCC 
Margaret Osibowale  System Finance Lead, B&PLCG’s 
Dr Richard Withers  Clinical Lead, Borderline LCG 
 
Substitutes may attend if required 

 
5. Quorum 
 

Where appropriate, identify what is required in terms of a Quorum to enable 
meeting to go ahead. 

 
6. Reporting Arrangements 
 

Local Commissioning Groups and Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
 

 
Author:  Cathy Mitchell, Local Chief Officer, B&P LCGs 

 
 
Version 2: 25/11/13 

44



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6(a) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Jana Burton – Executive Director Adult Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing. 

Tina Hornsby – Assistant Director Quality Information and 
Performance Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing  

Tel.  

01733 452409 

01733 452427 

 

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT UPDATE REPORT  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM: Executive Director Adult Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing.  

Deadline date: N/A 

1.  That the Committee support the proposal to refresh the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment via 
thematic areas. 
 
2. That the committee consider the governance arrangements for agreeing and overseeing the work 
plan for the thematic refresh 
 
3. That the committee receive the update on the Children’s thematic refresh and provide feedback 
on the model developed in partnership with Green Ventures. 
 
4. That the Committee consider thematic areas they would wish to see within the work plan, and 
agree the proposed initial work plan. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following the senior management restructure and 
realignment of responsibilities as presented to Full Council on 9 October 2013  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the work being undertaken to 
refresh the Children’s JSNA and to obtain the Committee’s views on the proposed future 
work plan for targeted thematic JSNA refresh areas. 

 
2.2 This report is for Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2 ‘To develop a 

shared understanding of the needs of the community through developing and keeping 
under review the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and to use this intelligence to refresh 
the Health & Well Being Strategy’. 

  
3. JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) UPDATE. 
 
3.1 The current Peterborough JSNA was published in 2011and is a large pool of information 

covering a wide range of areas.  Although a great deal of information is contained within 
this and it is accompanied by an executive summary the volume of information and needs 
assessments makes it difficult to form a clear picture of Peterborough’s needs.  The format 
is also very traditional, and although located on the website it is not interactive or easy to 
navigate. 

 
3.2  Since the publication of the current JSNA in 2011 we have received updated information 

from a variety of sources including: 

45



• Peterborough Health Profile 2013 – Evidencing that overall the health of the 
population in Peterborough is poorer than England with only one green rated 
indicator and only 4 indicators better than the England average out of the 32 used 
in national health profiling. 

• Local Health 2013 – detailed health profiles at ward and MSOA areas accessible in 
the form of interactive maps and reports. 

• 2011 Census data – which shows marked population increases with lower 
percentages of all age groups reporting good or very good health. The ward 
breakdown shows significant variation between wards. 

• Child Health Profile 2013 – which shows almost a quarter of our children (23.5%) 
living in poverty, with a high rate of young people entering the youth justice system. 

• Longer lives report 2013 – which ranks Peterborough nationally (and within its 
cluster) as one of the areas with relatively high premature deaths from the most 
common conditions - cancers, CHD and stroke, lung disease and liver disease.   

  
3.3 Joint Strategic Needs Assessments should be a readily accessible, easy-to-read document 

supported by “live” tools which reflect the current make-up of the local population and are 
regularly updated to take account of changes.  Over the past few months the Council has 
been working in partnership with Green Ventures to pilot a thematic refresh of the children 
and families JSNA.  This refresh has taken 80 data sets containing the wider determinants 
of health and created an analytical database using Google Earth to allow comparison and 
contrast of data against geographical areas of the city, either at ward or lower super output 
area (LSOA) level.  The work has so far been useful but has been impacted by limited 
availability of some health data sets at ward or LSOA level.  An information sharing forum 
has been established with health colleagues to address the inclusion of health data.  The 
wider determinant work has helped us to identify some health data sets for priority focus.    
We wish to share with the Committee our early work and findings, via some brief video 
presentations.   

 
3.4 It is proposed that following the Children’s thematic JSNA refresh a steering group be set 

up to take forward further thematic refresh work. Although the steering group would in time 
identify items for a refresh work plan it is proposed that the initial work plan would focus on 
the following 

• Completion of the Children and Young Peoples JSNA refresh to include gathering 
of key health data sets to incorporate into the analytical tool.  

• Heart disease and stroke – our early death rates for these are falling further behind 
the improvements seen nationally and hence a refresh of this area is a priority to 
support identification of high impact actions which could be taken. 

• Housing - impact of housing on health and impact of interventions to improve 
housing on health and social care activity. This is an area which has been under 
explored in previous JSNA’s and one for which there is a volume of emerging 
research nationally. 

• Prepare an updated key dataset of approximately 250 indicators split into domains, 

and based on Peterborough’s performance for these indicators, systematically 

select additional themes to work on and build the evidence base for future work 

plan items. (as thematic “deep dive” topics).   

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 The Children’s thematic refresh has been done in partnership with colleagues from the 
Council and Health System 

 

4.2 In order to undertake further thematic JSNA work a steering group will need to be set up to 
lead on focus groups and working groups for the thematic areas. It is possible that the 
Health and Wellbeing Boards Operational Group, should this be established, could fulfil this 
role  

 
 
 
 

46



5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

5.1 It is anticipated that the Committee will review the proposals for thematic JSNA refresh 
work and the pilot work undertaken with Green Ventures and consider how learning from 
this may be used to build up a fuller more useful JSNA.  The committee are asked to 
consider how a JSNA steering group might fit into the governance structures of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  

 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

6.1 There is a statutory requirement to produce a Joint strategic Needs Assessment and 
oversight of this work falls within the Terms of Reference of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  

 
7.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
7.1 An alternative option is to produce a full refresh of the JSNA, however this would take a 

lengthy amount of time before delivery and could risk delay in focussing on key issues.  In 
addition the previous full refresh provided a large volume of data and feedback has been 
that it is difficult to navigate and to identify the key needs for focus. 

 
8.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 Legal – there are no legal implications. 
 
8.2 Finance – there are no financial implications.  
 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

   
• http://www.apho.org.uk/resource/view.aspx?RID=50215&SEARCH=peterborough&SPEAR

= – Peterborough health profile 2013 

• http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-method/census/2011/ - ONS census 

• http://www.chimat.org.uk/resource/view.aspx?RID=101746&REGION=101633 – child 
health profile 

• http://www.localhealth.org/ - local health 

• http://longerlives.phe.org.uk/ - longer lives 
 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 7(a) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Director for Communities Tel.  

 

JOINT CHILD HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMISSIONG UNIT  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle – Welbourn Director for 
Communities 

Deadline date : N/A 

 
1. Receive comments from members of the Health and Wellbeing Board on the draft Section 75   

Agreement and operational policy; and 
2. To get a collective agreement from Health and Wellbeing Board members to support the next 

steps in the development of the Section 75 Agreement and operational policy. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1. This report is submitted to Board following previous submission of a proposal to the Health 
and Wellbeing board for support in the development of a joint child health and wellbeing 
commissioning unit. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

•   Receive comments on the draft Section 75 Agreement and operational procedure from  
the Health and Wellbeing Board members; and 

• To advise and receive comments from Health and Wellbeing Board members on 
proposed next steps.  

 
3. DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT CHILD HEALTH AND WELLBEING UNIT 
 
3.1      Over the last twelve months children’s commissioners from the City Council and CCG have           

been working together to consider the development of a joint child health and wellbeing             
commissioning unit.  The result of this has been the development of a Section 75            
Agreement and operational policy as attached at Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 

 
3.2      The next steps in relation to the development of the unit are as follows: 
 

• Include the CCG financial envelope to align with PCC financial envelope; 

• Take through the formal governance processes of the City Council and CCG. 
 
3.3       We are planning to have the unit in place by April 2014.  
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Through the Joint Commissioning Forum (Membership includes the Local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups chairs, Local Authority Commissioners) and in close liaison with 
the CCG designated lead GP for Children, Malcolm Bishop, we have consulted with 
appropriate stakeholders and received support for the development of the unit.  

 

5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1     The Joint Child Health Commissioning Unit will see an improvement in the efficiency and 

49



effectiveness of child health and wellbeing commissioning; this will result in improved health 
outcomes for children in Peterborough. 

  

6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1     It is important that the members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are given the opportunity 

to comment on and influence the development of the joint child health and wellbeing 
commissioning unit as they are required to ensure that inequalities in child health are 
addressed and they need to be sure that the development of the unit will effectively            
address the health and wellbeing of children in Peterborough  

  

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
7.1   We know that the services we have in place to address child health issues need to be 

improved and that aligning the resources of the CCG and City Council to commission needs 
led services will be more effective and efficient than commissioning separately; hence 
continuing as we have been was not seen as the best option.  An alternative put forward 
during the consultation was to have one unit covering both Peterborough and 
Cambridgeshire; however this option was not supported at this time due to the differing 
needs of the two areas. 

 
8. IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1     The CCG and City Council will be going through their respective governance processes in  
          respect of the Section 75 Agreement and this will address any legal, financial or HR issues. 
 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
9.1     None 

   

50



� � �

� �������

�

�
�

�

�

�

APPENDIX 1

51



� � �

� �������

�

��������

�����������������������������������������������	
�

�

������������������������

�

���������������������������������

�����������������������������

�

�

���������

�

����������	�
��������������������	�
������������
���

��������������	������������������	������������	��������������

�

�

52



� � �

� �������

�

�

�

�

�

53



�

� �����	�

�

������

�

�

54



�

� �����
�

�

���������� �!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"#$"�

�

%��&��!'�

�

�	�� ���� !" "#$%� �&�'� �"#()&*� (���� )�"#()&**+� ��� � ��,� ��		-� %���
�� ������-�

.���������
�-�.�$�$�/�

�

���� ��+! &�$�,%& �������� !" "#$%��*&(&)�*��"++&,,&"(&($�� "#-�(����)���*+�

���0��1��������-�2	����������-�2������
�-�2%"�34���

(�������)�� �(� *������
����������)�� �(� ,*+�

�

���������

�

(�+� ����2����	������	���	����������������	���������������0���	��������������$56"�

(���������+���������	���	������	����������������������������������������"��������

0���	����������������	��������������$56#�������2����	������������������������

�����	����������������������������������	������.���������
������������
�������

��	�
�����������
������2��	������7�������������

�

(%+� ����22�������2	����	�2���������
������������	������������������	������

�����	�2��������"#$"���������������������������	������������������2�������

.���������
���

�

(2+� �������68��������"##9��������������
�	�������		�,������22������:�������

��������	���	��������������������������	���	�����������������:���������������22��

��������������	���������������������

�

(7+� ����.���������������������������������������
������������������,����

����"##9����������
�	������������
����������������������2���������
�

��������������	�
���
����������������
����������������������,���������

�
�������(����)�� �(� ,%&-��  �($�+�(�,*+�������.����������������

,��1�
���
����������	����������������������
�����������������	�����������	���

��������	������������������������������������.��������������
������,�		�

�����	���������������

�

(�+� ����.�������������
��������������2����	�,�		�	�����������������������������

����	���������	���������22��������������2����	�,�		�������������.��������

���������������	�
��;.��	���������������
����������"89��
�����������

���������������������������������������	�����������
����������������������

�
��������

�

(4+� ����.������������������������������.��������������
����������	�1�	�����	�������

�������������������,�����,������������������������	������2���������
�

4������������:���������

�

(�+� ����2����	���������22��������
�%�������������������������������������

�
������������������������������������������������������������������

�		�,������������������������
���������

�

��.��������������.�����������/����.�0��

�

	� ������������������������

�

����� ������		�,�
����������������������������
�������

�

���1��)�� ����!�����	����	���������������"##9�

55



�

� �������

�

�

�$ ��+�(�� �����������
���������	���
��		�

������	���

�

�*&$(����#�$���,�� ���������	�
������
��(�+��������������

������������������������
������������

.�������������������������������������

,���������������������������	��<�(4�����	�

 ������+� �

�

��,��2�*#�� ����������������������������2����	����

�������=��������0���	��������������

$555�

�

�

�*&(&)�*��"3� (�()�� ������������������	�����1�������������

�������>��	����������	���������������

����
�����
���
����������������������

������
��������������,�����

�:��		�������	����	������,�		��	�������

�

�"++�()�+�(������� ����������������

�

�

�"(� �)��� ")# �+�(���

��4#& �+�(�,�� �����������
����	���������>��������-�

�������������
�������-�������	�

��>��������-�������������	�
��������

��������	�������>�����������������������

2����	�2������������;��������������

��>�����������>���������0�,���;���

��>�������������22��������������

��>��������������1�,�����������

	����
����������������������������

�

�"(� &!#�&"(,� ����.����������������������������	�
���

%��
��(�+-����.��	���4������!��.��	���

4����������������������
����������

�������������������������,����2	�����$#�

(.��	���4��-��	�
���%��
��(�+����

2����������+���

�

�"#()&*��"(,�&�#�&"(� ���������,������������������������

2����	�����������������������
��������

�������������

�

�*&$&!&*&�'�� &�� &�� ���������
�����������������������	��9�

�������
�
����������(��������	�+�����22��

�������2����	�����������������������������

��������?��������������������	�
��	����������

���������

�

�+-*"'+�(���&�!&*&�&�,� �����,�������	����������������		������-�

�	����-�����-�	����	����������:������

��,����������
�����'�

�

(�+� �������	�������������������

��	���
�����	���������������

56



�

� ������

�

�����������������
�������������

��������,������������������������

���	����������
�
�����������

�����������������������@�

�

(�+� ����������������������

���	�����@�

�

(�+� ����������������������		�������

�
������@�

�

(�+� ������	�
������,���������������

,�����������������������������������

���	��������������������������

?�����1�
��(.������������

���	�����+���
�	������"##9�

()�?.�*+������������������������

����������������������������

�������������������,��������������

����������������	����������������

������	�����������>��������
����

7���������("##$;"=;�2+��������

�����������������������������

�������@�

�

(�+� �����������,�����������������

���A�������	���
�������������������

������	�,�������	�������������

���	�����������		�������

�
�������������������������@�

�

���������������	�������������������������

��������������(�+����(�+����)0����	�����*�

�

�5&,�&($��� 3&)���"(� �)�� ��������������	���������������

2����������7����,��������������

.�����������������������������������������

�����������������	�.������

�

/&(�()&�*���� � �����$�������	��������������=$��� �����

�����������>���������(��	�����+����������

����4�����4�����	�B����,�����������������

������������������������������������������

�����

�

/& ,��/&(�()&�*���� � �������������������������2����������

7�����

�

/���� ���������4������������������������

"###������������������	�
��	����������

����������������������������������
������

,��������
���������;���������������������

������������������������2��������������

��	�����
����������������������	�����

��������	�
��	������������������������


����������		������������������

	�
��	�����

�

57



�

� �������

�

/#�# ���� 3&)���"(� �)�� �������������������������������������

2����������7���������������������

���������������������������2����	��

� �

�����"6�7"&(���"++&,,&"(&($�� �����������������������	�������������

�������
������������C����

2���������
�?����������������
�����

������	��������������������������(�������

��	�����������������C����2���������
����

����������������	��5�������+���������������

�
������������������
�����������	�������

�����������������������
������������

������������-�������������C����

2���������
����
-������������������������

�
������-��::::::::����

��

�",���� �(� � ����2����	�

�

7"&(���"++&,,&"(&($��(&�� �������������������
������������������	��6��

�

������"++&,,&"(� � ����2����	�

�

��8� ����'�

�

(�+� ����������.��	���������

�����������	�
��	�����,���������

����
�����������"$($+��������

�����������������$563-�������

�:������������������	�.����
�����-�

� �����������	�������������
���

,�������������
�����������"����

������������2��������������

$56"@�

�

(�+� ������	����	��
�������(��	���
�

!��������������(,�������������

����������������7������������

���	��+�% ��
������+-�������������

������������,����,���������22��

�������2����	����������������	��

��������:���������������������

���	������������	��	������	��	�����

�����:�������������������������

������������������������22�����

����2����	�(�����	����+@�

�

(�+� ������	����	��A��
���������

��	��������������	�,�,��������

����
���������-�

�

������������������?�����D�
����

�

�&�!&*&�&�,� ��������-��	����-�	����	�����-��:���������

�������������
��������������������

���������������������	������������	��������

.��������	���
�(�������	���������+�����

��		�,�
��������'�

�

58



�

� �������

�

(�+� ���	���	����	���@�

�

(�+� ���	�������	����	���@�

�

(�+� ����������	���������(��	���
�

�������	�������������������	����	����

����	����	��
	�
���+@�

�

(�+� ���	�������	�������	���
�(����

���	���������+��	��������'�

�

�� ����
��-� ������ ���

�:��������� ��	���
� (����

��� 	������� ��+� �	����� ����

,��
��	� ��� ������

��������	����������?.�@�

�

�� ����
��-� ������ ���

�:��������� �� ��	����� ���

��:-� ����� ��� ������	����

������������� ��� �>��	�

�����	����@�

�

�� ������ �	����� ���� ������� ���

���	�������������@�

�

(�+� E���������,����@�

�

(�+� �	����������������������������

��
��������$553�����	�������

���	���	�,-�

�

���)0����	���*����		�������������

�������
	��

�

��*��+&(&,� ��&"(� ��������������������������������������

.��	���4�����;��������	�
���%��
��(�+�

��;�������!��.��	���4�����;�������

��������-����������������������������

.��	���4�����;��������	�
���%��
��(�+�

��;�������!��.��	���4�����;�������

�����������;��������������	�
�����

��������������,��������������������

,�����������������������
�������

�

��(�$�+�(���(�� �

�#--" ���� 3&)�,� �����������������-�������������-�

������	-���������-���������-�����������

�����	�
�-���������������-�	�
�	-�

��������������������������������

���
�����������
����������	������������

���������>����������������������������

��	���������������������������������������

���������������
��������.����������

����
�����������������������
�������

��

�"(��""*���/#(�,� ��������������	��������������������

.��������������.����������,������������

59



�

� ��������

�

��	�����������.��	���4����������������

�����,���������	������������	�
���

%��
��(�+���������,����

�

�� �(� ,%&-9�� �(� ,%&-��

�  �($�+�(�,� ��������
�����������	����������

�
�������

�

�� �(� ,%&-��"� �� ��������2����	-�������������7������������

.���	��2���������
-���������C����

2���������
@������������22������0���	�

2�����E��������������2�����4�����E��������

�

�� �(� ,%&-���,"# )�,� ���� ��
����������������������������

������������2�����������������	��	�����

�����������������������,��������������

���������
�������

�

�""*���/#(�:���+"3�� ������	������������	�������������������

������������������������
������������

.�������������������������������������

,���������������������2	�����$#�(.��	���

4��-��	�
���%��
��(�+����2����������+�

�

;#� �� � �������������������		�,�
��������������

4�����	�B���'�

�

� $�������	����=#���C���

� $���C�	�����=#�������������

� $���E����������=$���7��������

� $���C���������=$��� �����

� ���);#� �� *'*����		�������������

�������
	��

�

��$#*��" '��"�&�,� �����������
����������������������

��
�	���������������������������������

���������������������������������

,�����,�������������������-���	��-�

��
�	�����-���������������������������,����

��������	��������
�	�������������
��������

����������������������������������
�������

�

��$#*��&"(,� ����!���%���������0���	�������������

.��������������
��������
�	������

"###�(�$�"###;9$6+�(���������+F�2���1�

�

��*�3�(��/#()�&"(,� ���������������!�������������	���	�

�����������������������������������68����

����"##9�����,�������������������.����$����

������	��"��

�

�� 3&)���-�)&6&)��&"(� �������������������������������������

������	��=�������	���������������������-����

�������-���������������������������������

����������:����
���������2�������������

��������������������	�����������������

��������
�����
����-����������
���

�������������������
������������������

60



�

� ��������

�

��������,�������.�������������������

,����������
����������

�

�� 3&)�,� (�+� 4�������22�����	���������������

���	���������������2� ���(������

��������+��

�

�

(�+� 4�������2����	������������	�

����������������	�������������������

������������������	����	������

,�		���
����������	����

�

���,�������		�,���������������������

��	�����4���������
������,���������

������������������������		�,���������

��������������	�����4����������������

.������������
����������������������

����	�������	���������������������

�
��������������������������2	�����

$9�(2��
�����������,+��

�

�� 3&)���"(� �)�,� ���������,���������������������������

��������,������������������������

����������

�

�� 3&)��� "3&�� �,�� ���������������������
�
�����������������

�������������2���������

�

�� 3&)���,� � �����	��,�������������������	�
��	����

����������,����2	�����$$���������

�
�������������;������������,����

��������������������
��������

�

���66� ��������������������������������	����-�

���������-��
�
������������������������

�������.���������������������������������

�

���(�&($�� �� ,� ���������
�E�����-�2������������
�

E�����-�����2�������������4�����	�

��
�	������������������.������

�

� +� �������������������������2����������

7�������	��������������������
���������

����������,����2	�����=�$�(7������+����

2	�����"$�(���������+��

�

$�"� �������������������������
�	��������	��������������������������������G

�����������������

$�=� ������������'�

$�=�$� �����	�����	��������������@�

$�=�"� ��
�	�����	���������	���	@�

$�=�=� ���������	���������������������������-�

61



�

� ��������

�

$�=�<� ��������������,�������������:�������������

$�<� ���������
���������2	���������������
�������������������������	��������		����

�����������������������������
������������������������������������
��������

��	������	���������,������������	�����

$�8� ������������������2	���������G�	������������	��������:������� ����	������

������	��������:������������
��������

$�9� ������������������������
�,��������.�����������>�������������������������1�����

��������������
����������������1��������������������������������
����		��

���������		���������.�����������1�������������������������������
���������������

�����.���������		������������������,��������������������������������������

��������������������������.�����������,��������>�������������������

$�6� ����������	������������
����������		������������������������������������������

���������
�������������		��������		������������������

�� �������������������/���������������

"�$� �������������������������������������
���������������������������	��$����

"�"� ����.���������������
�����������	��	������������������������������������������

2	�����"�$�,�		�	���������������������>��	����������������������������������

��	������������,�����������	�����4����������������������

"�=� ����.��������������������������������������������������G�������
�,�������

����������������.��������������
���������
�������1��������������

�������-����	���������������	��������,��1���
��������
��������������
�������������

�������,������������������������������������2	�����"�$�,��������������	���������

�����������������������	�������������������
�����������	��������
�����������

������	����
����������

"�<� 4������������������������-�����.����������		�����������������,����2	�����"�=���

�����������������������	�����������	����������-���1�
�����������������������������

���.������;��������?����-�������������	�
�������������	���	�������������������

������������2������

"�8� ����.�������,�		'�

"�8�$� ����	��,�����		���	�����0�,-���������������	����	���	����������


������������������������������
��������������
��������(��	���
�

����2����	�2�����������������22��2���������+���������.���������		�

����,�������������	�
�������������
����������@�����

"�8�"� ���������������������	���������.��������������	���������������������

���
������������������������		��������������������������	���������������

�������������������	��	�������������	�����4�������������������

����	�����,��������.����������	�
���������������� ��


� �������<������������������2���������/�������������������

����2�����/�/��������

�# ��&"(�

=�$� ���� .������� �
���� ����� ���� .���������� ����
������ ��� ����� �
������� ���		�

�������� �� ���� 2���������� 7���� ��� ���		� ������� ���	� ���������� ��

����������,���������������������2	�����"$�(���������+��

62



�

� ��������

�

��$�*�����#,�

=�"� ����.������������������	���������������
�������������������������68��������"##9�

�������������
�	�������

=�=� ����.�������������
��������������.�������������		����������������������		�,�
�

�	�:���	������������������������68��������"##9����'�

=�=�$� �����	�
����������
��������	������������������
��������������������

�������		���������	�
�������
���������������
������������.������������

�������������������������,�����������������������
������@����

=�=�"� 	��������������
��������2����	����������������� ������������,��������

���������������
���������

�����������������������������������	��������������������������������������

�������

=�<� %����������2����������7��������.���������������������������	��������>������

��� ��
�	����� <("+� ��� ���� ��
�	������ ��� ��� 2���	������ ��>������ �������� ���

�������"<"��������"##9��������,�		����������������������������	���������������

�����>������(�����0�,+�����
������������������������������������
�����������

�����������

=�8� ����22�����������	�
������������2����	���������������������������
�������

����������22������	�����4��������������������������������������		�����������	��

��>�����-������-�����������������������,���-�������	������2����	������	��	������������

���0����2�������������;��������.�������������������������
������-��������

22������������������
����������,�����������������	�����4�������������>���������

��� ��	�
����� ��� ���	�� ����2����	� ��� ��	��	� ���� �������,����� ���
��� ���� �
�����

��������� ����� ����� ��� ����-��������	�����4����������		����������� ���������

��	�
������

�"3� (�()���(���� �(� ,%&-��  �($�+�(�,�

=�9� ����.��������������
�������������������������������������(����������������

������A����������
�������������������+'�

=�9�$� ���������	����������	��������������
�����
���������������������������

�������A���	���	��������������������������.������������������������

���� ����� ��� ��A�������� ���� ���� �� ������	�� $� ��� �� ��	��	���� ��� ����

��	�����4������@�

=�9�"� ����2����	���1�
�������	�����	�����������������,�������22����������������

��������������������������������������	������	�,�����������'���

(�+� �������
������������:����
���������2�����������4������

��������2��������������	�����������	�����.������(������������

,��������������������+@����

(��+� �����������������4��������������2����������		������������������

����2����	��	��������.��������
����������������,������

��������,������������������������-���������������	����������@�

=�9�=� ���������	�������������������	��������������C����2���������
�?��������

2��	������ ��������� ��������
� ��������� ��� ����������
� ������ ����� ����

2����	������������������������������������������������������������,����

22���������
���������

63



�

� ������	�

�

=�9�<� ���� �����	������� ��� �����	������� ��� ���� ��	�� ��� ���� ����� ��� C����

2���������
����������������C����2���������
�?�������������������	���

��� ���		� ��� ��������� ���� ���� ������������� ����������� ��� ���� ��	�����

4������������������

=�6� ����.����������		�����	��,������������	�������	�
���������������������������

=�3� &����������A�������������
����	�������2	�����=�<-�����.��������
�����������	��,����

���� ������	� �������	�� ���� ���� �� ������	�� <� ��� ���� 
�������� ��� ����������

��	�
���������
������������������������������������������
����������������

�����������������,����������
��������

=�5� ����.��������
����������A���	����������	�����������
������������
����������

.���������� ����
������ ��� ����� �
������� ���� ��������� ��������	�� ��� ��

����������,����2	�����$6�(H�������+���

=�$#� �� ��������� ������������.������ ������ ������ ��� ��>������ ������
������,������

����������������������������	�����4�������������������������-������������
��

,�		������������.��������������
�����-���������		��������������	��,��������������

�����������������	�����������	�-���������������������������������������
���������

���������	����

=�$$� ����.����������		������������������,������������	�����������>�������������������

�����������������,����0�,�������������������������������������.���������		�

��1�������	���������������	����������	�������������������������
�������

������������������������	�����������������

�� �(� ,=�*&�!&*&�'��"��%& ��-� �&�,�

=�$"� ����.��������������
�����������������
����������		����������'�

=�$"�$� ���� 	����	�������������.������������������������������������:����������������

������������������@����

=�$"�"� .�,������������������������������������
�����������������������������������

�������:�������������	���	��������������������

<� .��>/������������������

<�$� .�����������������68��������"##9����������
�	�����$#($+����������
�	����������

.��������
���������������� ����.���������� ������������,����������	��3���� �����

�
������-��������������,�		���1������	��	�������������������������������������

����	����������.�����������������������������	��3��

<�"� ���������		���������������
����������������������
�����������������,�		����

���������������������������C����2���������
��

<�=� ���� �������� ��� ��������
� ��� �������
� ��� ���	������� ����� ��� C����

2���������
����������
���������
��������A��������������
������������

�������������		�������A������������������	���������.���������

<�<� ���A��������	�����<�=-�����������-����
������������������������������������

��������	����		����������������,��������C����.������	�����������������������
�

����������������	��3-�����������	,��������'�

<�<�$� ���������������������	����������������������������.�������������������

�����������������		���	�����0�,����		������		������	����,���@����

64



�

� ������
�

�

<�<�"� ��� ��
������� ��������� �� ������
� 	���	�� �� ��	����� ��� ���� .����������

����
���������		�����
�����������������,�������.��������

?� ����������������2���������������

8�$� .�����������������68��������"##9����������
�	�����$#($+����������
�	����������

.������� ,�		� ����� ���� 2���������� 7���� �������� �� �������� ,���� ����

.�������������������������������������������������������������������	��8����

����� ������ ��
����� ��� �������� ��������� ��� ���� ������� ��������� ���� ����

������������.��������������
���������

�

8�"� ����.�������,�		���������������������������������������������������������������

����������������.���������������������������������,���� �����������������������

2	�����8�$����������	���������������������
������������������������
���������

������������������

�

8�=� ����.�������,�		����������		�������,�����������������.�����������������
�������

,������,��������������
�������������������;�����1����������	����������������

�������������
���������������������	��	����

8�<� ����.�������,�		�������������������1������	��	�������� ��
����������������

�����������������������	��������������������������.��������������
��������

8�8� 4��� ���� ��������� ��� �����-� ���� .������� ,�		� ������� ��� �������� ��� ����������

��������������������,�������������������2����������7�����:�����,������������

�����
��������������.��������������
������,�		����
������,�����,�����������

���������,�		���������������

8�9� �����������������������������.������,�		���1���������
����������������������������

����������2	�����8���

8�6� ���������������		������������������������������������>��������������������������
�

��������������������������������������2	�����8���

8�3� &������������.���������1������1�����
��������������������������������������������

2	����� 8� ��� ����� ���
��� ���� ������� ��� ���� ������ ��� �������		�� ������� ����

.������
�����
�����-����������������
����������'�

��

8�3�$� �
�������������.������@����

8�3�"� ���� .������� ���� �	��� ���1� �� ������������ ���
�� ��� ������ ������	�

�����������������
��������������
���

9� �������������� ���� ���������� /����.��>� @� ���� 2�����

�����������2�������������;����������������

9�$� �		����������������	�������������������������������
����������		�������A�������

������>������������%����H�	���������	������2	����	�������������

9�"� ����2�������.������������>������������		��������	����,��������	�����������

��������2����������

�

9�=� ����.��������
������������������������.��������������
����������2����	�����

�����������������2�������������������,�����������,�		���������������������

��	���
�����	����	����������,���������22��,�		�������������������������	��������

�������
�
�����������������������	���
���������	����������,���������2����	�,�		�

65



�

� ��������

�

������������������������	���������������
�
�(I�&5����� ���� 3&)���"(� �)�,I+�

�������.�������������
�����������		�,�
�����������	����������������������	������

���������	�����������.������������ �:���2������������2�������'�

(�+� ������,�������2����	��������22�������������
������-�����22�����		�

���������1�������������	���������		�������������	����	�����-��	����	���������-�

�	����	����1�(��	���
�����������	��
	�
���+�����	����	�
������������

,��������������������	����������	��(A�*&(&)�*��� �A+-����A�����	,�����������

������������������������2	�����9�=����

(�+� ����	�������� �:���2������������2��������(����	��������,���������22�����

�������������
�������������������������	������������������������2	�����

9�=������+-�����22�����		'�

(�+� ������������2����	��
���������	����-�	�������������
�����

��	��������2	����	�2����(�:��������������������������������������

�:���������������������������������������������������������

2����	����	�
��������	��,����������
�������������������	�
��������

2	�����9�=(�+�������������:��������2����	����		�������������

22���
������������	��
��	����-�	�������������
��+����

.�EH�7�7��0&�B��������

(�+� ����	����	����������.���������������������������.������

���		������������������A��������>�����	�������@��

(%+������������.���������		�����
��������	�����@��

(2+�������!�������.���������		��������	����������������������	������

���	������������@������

�(��+� ��������������������
-��������������������������	������	��������

2	����	�2�������
����������������������,����������	�����������

���������	����� �:���2������������2������(�+�(�����������������

������������	������������22�������������	����������������2	�����

9�=+�����

(���+����������	������������������
-������������	����������1�
�����������

��������������������������������������� �:���2������������

2���������������������������	�������2	����	�2�����

(�+� ����2����	����		'�

(�+�������������������������������������	������������������1��

������������,�������		�,���������������������2	����	�2���@������

(��+�������������������������������������	������������(�����������������+�

�����������22�����������	��
�,����������	�
�����������2	�����

9�=(�+@�

(���+� ������������	��������������������� �:���2������������2�������

���,����� ��� ��� ��������,�������������� (��� ���� ����������������

������ ����22��,�		� ������ ����2����	� ��� ��� ��������� ���� ����� ���

��������+� ��� �� �������� .�������� ��� �������
� ���� 22�� �����

����	��
�,����������	�
����������������2	�����9�=@��

(��+� ��������������22�������1���������������������,���������.�������

�
����������������������������������������,��	�������������������	��

���
����������22�-����������������������	�����$5�,�		����	�@��

(�+� �������������� �:���2������������2��������	��������22�����

�,����������������(�����������������������������	�����9�=(�+(�+�

����22�����		������������������,����������������,���������

��������������
��������������������C����2���������
�?���(��

66



�

� �������

�

��	��������,�����������������C����2���������
������������	��

�����������
�������������02����C����2���������
�4������;22��

�������2����	++@����

(��+������,������������������
��������J�������(,��������������������	�

�	�
���	��������2	����	�2���������������������+������������������

������������������	�����,�������������������2	����	�2���-����,�		�

����������22����������������1�
���������������������������

,�����������<6��������!�����	����	��������������2��������2����

����$55#����

(�+�� �������������������������������������������������������.�������������

��������������2����	�,�		������������	������2	����	�2�����	�����������	��

���������
������� �:���2�������������2�������(�����������������
��
�

���������������������	�
�������������2����	������������������������

�����+���;����	������������������
�����	�������������������������

���������������
�������(�����
����������������
��
��������������������

��	�
�������������2����	�����������������������������+���

(�+������ ��������������:�������������.�����J����������������������	������������������

������
�����(�+����
�-���������.����������		��
�������
�����������

�	�����������	�����������
�������������	�����

(
+� ���	����	���������
�����������������2	�����9�=����		��	������������������

����������,��������	����	�������������������	�����2	�����$3�9��

�
9�<� ����.��������
������������������������.��������������
����������22������

��������� �:���2������������2��������(�������������	�����9�=������+��������

.�������������
�����������		�,�
�����������	����������������������	������

���������	�����������.������������ �:���2������������2�������'�

(�+� ������,�������2����	��������22�������������
������-�����2����	�

���		����������1�������������	���������		�����������������	����������,��������

������������	����������	��(A�")&�*��� �A+-����A�����	,�����������������

������������������2	�����9�<����

(�+� ����	�������� �:���2������������2��������(����	��������,���������2����	�

����������������
�������������������������	������������������������2	�����

9�<������+-�����2����	����		'�

(�+� ������������22���
���������	����-�	�������������
�����

��	�������������	�2����(�:��������������������������������������

�:���������������������������������������������������������

22�����	�
��������	��,����������
�������������������	�
��������

2	�����9�<(�+�������������:��������2����	����		�������������

22���
������������	��
��	����-�	�������������
��+����

.�EH�7�7��0&�B��������

(�+� ����	����	����������.���������������������������.������

���		������������������A��������>�����	�������@��

(%+������������.���������		�����
��������	�����@��

(2+�������!�������.���������		��������	����������������������	������

���	������������@������

�(��+� ��������������������
-��������������������������	������	��������

�����	�2�������
����������������������,����������	�����������

���������	����� �:���2������������2������(�+�(�����������������

������������	������������2����	������������	����������������

2	�����9�<+�����

67



�

� ��������

�

(���+����������	������������������
-������������	����������1�
�����������

��������������������������������������� �:���2������������

2���������������������������	������������	�2�����

(�+� ����22�����		'�

(�+�������������������������������������	������������������1��

������������,�������		�,��������������������������	�2���@������

(��+�������������������������������������	������������(�����������������+�

�����������2����	����������	��
�,����������	�
�����������

2	�����9�<(�+@�

(�+� ������������	��������������������� �:���2������������2�������

���,����� ��� ��� ��������,�������������� (��� ���� ����������������

������ ����2����	�,�		� ������ ����22�� ��� ��� ��������� ���� ����� ���

��������+� ��� �� �������� .�������� ��� �������
� ���� 2����	� �����

����	��
�,����������	�
����������������2	�����9�<@��

(��+� ���������� ���� 2����	� ��� ��1�� ������� ��� ��� ������ ,����� ����

.��������
����������������������������������������,��	����������

���������	�����
����������2����	-����������������������	�����$5�

,�		����	�@��

(�+� �������������� �:���2������������2��������	��������2����	����

�,����������������(�����������������������������	�����9�<(�+(�+�

����2����	����		������������������,����������������,���������

��������������
��������������������C����2���������
�?���(��

��	��������,�����������������C����2���������
������������	��

�����������
�������������2����	��������22�+@����

(��+������,������������������
��������J�������(,��������������������	�

�	�
���	�������������	�2���������������������+������������������

������������������	�����,������������������������	�2���-����,�		�

����������2����	���������������1�
�����������������

(�+�� �������������������������������������������������������.�������������

��������������22��,�		������������	�����������	�2�����	�����������	������

�����
������� �:���2�������������2�������(�����������������
��
������

����������������	�
�������������22������������������������������+���

(�+������ ��������������:�������������.�����J����������������������	������������������

������
�����(�+����
�-���������.����������		��
�������
�����������

�	�����������	�����������
�������������	�����

(
+� ���	����	���������
�����������������2	�����9�=����		��	������������������

����������,��������	����	�������������������	�����2	�����$3�9��

9�8� ����.���������������������������������������>��	��������>��	�����������������

��������������������������������	�����������.�������,�		���������������	���������

��	������������	��������������������,�������������������	���
���A����������
�������		�

�	�����������������������

�

�

6�#� ���/����������������������������+�(����"**"8�'�-*��,��

)%�)B�

6�$� �:����������>���������0�,-������.�������
���������		�����������
��������������

��� ������
���������������� ���� ���������� ���1�������������	��		�������������

�������,�������������������������,������>����������������,�����������������,�����

�������1���)2��������	*��������	����������������,��������������	��������,��	��

����:����������������������������	����

68



�

� ��������

�

6�"� ����.����������		�������������		�������(��	���
��������������	�����+-��
�������

�������������� ����.�������,��1�
�,����� ����.��������������
��������������

�����������������2	����� 3�$@�,����������� ��� ���
������ ������������� �� .������

����	��������������	� ����������������	�����.���������		���1�������������������

�����������������������-����,�����������	�-���������������������������.������

���������������������	���������

6�=� �����.���������		�����	��,��������������������	�
���������������7����.���������

���������

6�<� ����2����	��������22�����		�����	�����������������������
����,����
�����-�

����
����������
�����������������	�������	�������������	�����������7����.���������

����$553���������	����������������	�����������.������������
�����������������

���������	�����	���������������������������������������
��������������������������

���������
����������

6�8� �����.������(����)/& ,���� �(� *+���1�,	��
�����������������
��������>�����

���������������.������(����)��%� ��� �(� *+����������4E�������������������	�

���������� ��
�	������ "##<� (���� )���*+� ���� E����� .������ ,�		� ��� ����	��� ���

��������������������	����������	���
����������
����������,����������,������	�����

�������4�����.�������

6�9� ����E�����.���������		������������	�������������������������4�����.������������

��>����� ����� ���� 4E��� ��� ���� ���� ��� ���� ������� ��� ����	���� ���� ����������

,�����$#�&��1�
�7����(����������������4E��+����������������������>�������%������

����	���
� ��� ���������-� ���� E����� .������ ���		� �������� ��� ��������������

����� ��� ���� 4����� .������ ,����� <� &��1�
� 7���� (��� ������� �� ���� 4E��+� ���

��������������������E�����.�������������4�����.������������������,���������2	�����

3�9��

6�6� ����4�����.��������1�,	��
�������-�����������������������������E�����.������,�����

���������������������2	�����3�=-��������������������������������	�����������,��������

E�����.�����������������������������	���������	����-�����E�����.����������������

������������	�������������������������������������E�����.���������		��������	����

������������������������A���������4E����:��������

6�3� ����4����� .������ ���		� ��G��������,���� ����E����� .������ �� ��������,���� ���

��>����� ��������� ��� ����E����� .������ ����� ���� 4E��� ��� ���� ���� ��� ����� ��G

������������		���������������������E�����.�������

C� ���������������������

3�$� ���� .������� �
���� ����� ���� 0���� 2����������� ,�		� ����� ���� ��		�,�
�

���������	�����'��

3�$�$� ���:������
��������������������������
�����������.����������		��������
�������

�����������������������������������?�����������������������������������������������

���������	�������������	���

3�$�"� ����	����������������2��������������������������2����	��������������������	�����

4��������������22�-�����2����	���������
����������������,�		������,�������	�����

���	��������������
������������	�����������
������������������������	����	�

���-���������2����	��
����������(,������������������	������������+����,�		���
�	��	��

�������������	������������������������� �����������������02���;22���������

�	�������� ��� ���		� ���� �� �	���� ������������ ���
������ �����	� ��� �������
�

���������,�������>������������������	�������>��������������22�����

69



�

� ��������

�

3�"� ������	��������	�����������������������
�E�����������������	�������
�	���������

�������
�����������.��	���4���,����������������������	������������������

,���� 2	����� $#� (.��	��� 4��-� �	�
��� %��
��(�+� ��� 2����������+� ��� ���� ���

��	��������������������-����A�������������	��<@�

3�=� ���	��������������������
�������	������������������	������������������������

���������� ,���� ���� ������ ��� ����� �
������� (���A���� ��� ���� ��
���� ���

���������	������ ��� ����� .������ ���� ���� ��������+� ��� ���	���� ���� .����������

����������(,����������������:��������0����2�������������	�����������	������

����+� �� ���� ,��� ����� ����
��� ��� �������� ���� ��������� ��� ���� .����������

��������	�������������������	�@�

����������	,��������������2	�����5�������A�������2	������9�=����9�<����

3�<� ���� ��	����� ����0����2����������� �� ��	����� ��������
� ����2��������,�		����

�����������������������22����������������	�
������������������	����������	��������

���	������������������

3�8� �����.������ ���		� ���� �������	�� ���������� ��� ������ ����� ���4��������������

2������� �� �������� ��� ��	����� 4������� ��� ����� .������� ���� ��	�� ��� ��� ����	��

����
��� (,������� ��	�
����� �� ������� .������ ��� ��1�� ����� ����
���� ��;���

,��������������
��������������������+���

5� �������/���<�����������������������������������

5�$�����.��������
��������������������������������������������	�����,���������.����������

����
���������,�		���������������������2������������������.������������������

��������������'�

5�$�$� ���	�
���%��
���(���
���������
������
��������,�������.����������

����2����������7���+@����

5�$�"� ��.��	���4���(,�������������
��������,�������.�������������	����������

����		����������������������������������+@�����

5�$�=� ������������������������������.������������
����,�		������������������!��

.��	���4����������.������������
���������	������������	�����	���������

�����������������������������2������������������������������

5�"�����.��������
��������������������������������	��<����		��������������	��������	�����

��������������������
������-����������
������		���������������������,����

2	�����$9�(2��
�����������,+����2	�����$6�(H�������+�����

5�=�����
����������,�������.�������(��		�,�
�������������������������������
�������

��	���
�������
����2	�����$9�(2��
�����������,++���������	������.��	���4���

�����1�����
�������	�������������	�
���%��
���������!��.��	���4����������

������������A�����������	�����,���'��

5�=�$� ���������	������������������������������	�����������	�2����C����?������

����7���������������	������ �����>������ ����	�������������:��������������

�	�:���	���������������"##9����������
�	�����@�

5�=�"� 2���	�����,���������������������������������@����

5�=�=� ������������	����	��0�,��

5�<�����	��������������	����
����-������.���������		'�

70



�

� ��������

�

5�<�$� ������������������������������������.�������������>�����������	������

�������������
����� ��� ���� ��������� ��� ���� .��	��� 4��-� ��� �	�
���

%��
��(�+�������!��.��	���4��@�

5�<�"� ,����� ��������� ��1�� ������� ��� ����	�� ,���� ����� ������� ������

��>��������@��

5�<�=� �������� ���������� ������ ����
������ ,����� ��1�� ������� ��� ��	�����


����������������������2������������������������	���������������
���

�	���	�����������	���������
�������������������������������������
����

�������
��������.���������@���

5�<�<� ����������������� ���	��(����������������������������.��������
���+����

�� ���������� ��� �������� ��� ���� ��� ��� ����� 4�����	� B���� ���,�
�

������ ��������-� �:��������� ��� ��� ��	���� ������
� �� �������� ���

�������,��������������������	���@��

5�<�8� 1������		�����������������������	���������������
����������	���������

��� ����������,�		��������	�������,�������.�����������)�������1*�

�����@����

5�<�9� ����	��,�����		�� �����������2����������������������������������
����

��� �		� 
������� ������� ��� � � ������� ��� 2������� ��
����
� ���� H���

���������������.�����������

5�8��������
��������������.��	���4��-��	�
���%��
��(�+����!��.��	���4�������		��	�����

�������������������������������������
��������������������������������,����

������
��������

5�9�����.��������
���������1�������������������������������������
�����������	����������

������������������������,���������������������������	��<�(4�����	� ������+��

�

��-&��*��5-�(�&�# ���(��"�%� �/*�5&!&*&�&�,�

$#�6� �		�������	��:������������		����������������������.����������,�����

����������������
������������������������������,�������22���������2����	�

�������������"89����69��������"##9�������������������-�����������������		����

����	����������.���������������
��������	��,�����������������������	�
������

���������������"##9����-���	���
������
���������������
�����������

�����
�����������������������������
�������������	�������������������������

��>���������	�,��

$#�3� ������		�,�
������������		�����
�������,����
����,���������	�������������

����������2�����	��:������������������������	������������.����������

����
�����'�

(�+� ����������	���>��������

(�+� �����������������,����������������������������.�������

(�+� &������������.���������������1������2�����	��:���������

(�+� ��������������������
������������,�������22���������2����	����
�

��������"89����69��������"##9����������������������������.�������

���		�����������	�����,����������������������������@�����

(�+� E,��������������,	����>����������������������
�����������������

����.������������������������

71



�

� ��������

�

$#�5� ���������������		�
�����������	���������������������������	�������������		�

��������2�����	��:����������������		���������	�
�����������������������
�

	�� ���������<�����������������������������������

$#�$� ����2����	����		������������
���������������	����������������������������?�����

,��������	�
��	���������������������������������	���
���������	����������,���������

2����	�����(�����������������+��������������������	���������������
�
��������22��

���		� ����� ���� ��
��� ��� ���������	���� ��� ��������� ���� ��������� ?����� ,��� ����

�	�
��	���������������������������������	���
��������	����	����������,���������22��

����(�����������������+��������������������	���������������
�
@����������		�
���

��������������������������������
�����������	����������������������������������

������������������������������		�����������������	�����������.������,�������������

����	����������������������������������������

$#�"� ����.����������		������������������������	������	�
���	����2�������-�,��������������
�

������
����������������	�����������������	�����$$�$���

$#�=� 4������������������������-���������?�����������		������	�
���	�����������������������

����������������������.������-��������������
����
���������	��-��������������

��������������������
� �� ������
������� ���		� ������� �����������?���� �����

���
�����������������������������������	���������������

$#�<� ���A����	���	���	��������������������������
����������		�����������������������

������
�������,�������������������������������.��������

$#�8� ���A�����	,��������	�����$$�$-��������������		��������������1�����
����������

��������� ��� ���� ,��� �� ,����� ����� ���� ��	������� ,������� ������ ����	������ ��

����������,��������������.���������,��������������������������.������������������

�����������	�
�������

		� ��������

$$�$� !����
���������
����������		������������������������	�������!���������������������

�����������������	�����������������������
��������

$$�"� ����2����	����		�������	����������	����(������		������������	������	����
+�����
���

���� ����� �	������ ��� ���� ��������� ���� ,����� 	�
��	����� ��>������ ��� �������� ��� ���

����
���

$$�=� &���������������������
�������	���������,�������
�����������G����
�������

��������� �� ����������?����������-�,������� �����
����������������������������

����
������ ��� ����
������ ���� ���� ��	������ ��� A���	�� ���������������������

����� ����� �
������-� ���� ���� 0���� 2����������� ,�		� ��� ��������	�� �����

��������
������.������	����
���������
������������������������������������
���

������1�
�����	���������������?������������������,������	�����������������������

����
�� ��� ���
� 	������ (��� ���� 22�� ���		� �������� ����� ���������� ��� ���� 0����

2�������������������>�����+��

$"� ���/�����������������<���������������������

$"�$� ����.����������		��������������		������������������������������
�����		�������

�������������1�����������������������	�
�����������������
����������

$"�"� &����������A�������������
����	�������2	�����$=�$-�����.����������		������������	��

���� ������
� ���� ������ �������
� ��� ������ ��������	� ��
�������� ��� ,�		� ,��1�

��
��������������,�����������	����������������������

72



�

� ��������

�

$"�=� �����.���������		����������������		����������������������������	������������������

������������������������������1�������(�����������������������	���������
����

�����2	�����$#+��

$"�<� ����.�������,�		�����	���		������������������	����>��������'�

$"�<�$� ��������:������
������������������������	���������������.��������	���
�

�����:����	�������������������.��������;�����������������
���������������

�������	�����(�+���	�,@��

$"�<�"� �����������������������,������������������������
������������������-�

��	���
���2����	�E������,������������2��������;2/2-�����
���
����

�������.����������	�
������������������	���-������������������������
�

�������	��������		�����
��������,�������.������������������������@��

$"�<�=� ����22���������	��,����������������2	����	���������-�

$"�<�<� ����2����	��������	��,����������������%����H�	����

$"�8� ������������C����2���������
����		�������������������/��������������4�����	�

B����(���������������������������.��������
���+������������������,���'�

$"�8�$� ����.��������������
�����@����

$"�8�"� ������������������������������.������,���������������������������������

������.���������
������	�:���	���������������"##9��������������
�	�����@�

�������������
�,��������������
���	�������������������������������	����

����.�������������		������������-�������		�,�����$#������������������,��������

�������.����������%��������������
����������,������������	����������������

.����������%��������		�������������������������	���������������
������,�����

��������
��������������		�����������������������.����������%��������������������

����������,���������������������������������������������������

$"�9� �������������������������2	�����$=�8����		���	��������������	���������'�

$"�9�$� ������	�������(�+�	�1������������������
���������������������:���������

����������	�����������@��

$"�9�"� �� �������� ������� 	�1��� ��� ���� ��A�������� ���� ���� ��� ������	�� $� ��� ����

������������������������������
����������,��1��������
�����1���

����������� ���������-� ������
��� �	��
� ��A�������� ��� ��� ����������

�������
���>������������>��	������������@��

$"�9�=� �����	������		�4���������������2��������������������������������������������

(���������������������
������������������������������������+�

$"�9�<� ��� ���
��� ��� ���� .���������� ����
������ ��;��� ����� �
�������

�����������2	�����$9�(2��
�����������,+@����

$"�9�8� ����������� ����������������		������>��������� ����.���������� ������� ����

.����������%������������������������

$"�6� &����������A������ ��� ���� �����,���� �������
� ��>������������2	������$=�8����

$=�9-������������
���������������������������������C����2���������
�����	�����

�������.��������������
�����������������������������	��5��

73



�

� ������	�

�

$"�3� ����.����������		����������������	������,�������������������4�����	�B�������

����������������������
���������	���
'�

$"�3�$� ��������	��������	�1������������������
���������������������:���������

���������4�����	�B���@�

$"�3�"� �����	���������������������
������
����������������������������
����

����������������	���
���A�������������������������	��$-�����������������

��� �
����� ����������� ���
����� �����,��1� ��� 1��� �����������

�������������������������2	�����$=�9����������2	�����$=�$#���	�,@�

$"�3�=� �����,�����������
�����������������������������������
�����@�

$"�3�<� �������	����
���������������������A���������
@�

$"�3�8� �� ���	������ ��� ��� ����������� ��� ���������� ��>������ ��� ��� 1���� ��� ����

7���������������	��������������������@�

$"�3�9� ������������������������������.������,���������������������������������

������.���������
������	�:���	������ ���������68��������"##9������������

��
�	�����@�

$"�3�6� ���������������������������		������>�������������.��������������.����������

%������������������������

���,�����9�,��1��������������������4�����	�B����������������C����

2���������
����		������������������������	����������������
�����

�������������������������������������.����������%������

$"�5� ���� .�������,�		�,��1� ��� ����	��� �� ��������������
����� �����,��1� ������

�������������������������.����������,������	�����1���������������������������

������������%����H�	������2	����	���������������������
���������������������

���		������,���������������������	������

$"�$#� �����������������������.���������		������������������������������������������

.������������� ���������������������� ����������,���� ����������
�������� ����

4���������������������������,�,��������������.������,���������,�����
����
���

�����������������������	���������������������������

	
� ����������������������

$=�$� ����.�����������
���������������	�������������������������
������,����������

���������	�,����������
�������������������������2���������
����.�����������

�������������
�����������������,����������������������	�����������������������'�

$=�$�$� 2����/��	����2��������@�

$=�$�"� ����7���������������	��@�

$=�$�=� ����������2��������@�

$=�$�<� �������	��������������:�������@�

$=�$�8� E�����@�

$=�$�9� �����������
�	������%�����@�

$=�$�6� ��������������������������������������	��������������������
����������

74



�

� ������
�

�

$=�"� �����.������,�		����������������:�����������
��������.����������%���������1���

����
����������������������������������������������,�������������������A�����

	D� ����������

$<�$� �����.����������		���������.���������,�		������>������������������������-��������

��������� ��-� ����	����� ����������� �����	� ��� ������ ��
�������� ,����� ���	��

��������?�������������������������������������	����������
�����	������������

���������,���������������������������������������������	��������������	���.������

���������������,���������.��������������������	�
���������������
�����

$<�"� 2	����� $8�$� ���,������� ���A������ ��� ��� ����	������� ��
��� ��� ���� ���� .��������

�������������������������	����������������,��������	����	���

$<�=� ���� .������� ,�		� ��G�������� ,���� ������
������ ������1�� ��� ������ �����������

E���������

$<�<� ����.�������,�		��
�������������	� ��������	��
�����	�����,���������������������

����������������

�

	?� ��������������2��.�

$8�$� %���
���������������.����������������������,����2	�����$6�(H��������+���	�,�

�������������������
�����������������
����������������������,������	���
�����

���	���������'��

$8�$�$� ������������@��

$8�$�"� ����.��������������
�����@��

$8�$�=� ����������	�����
�����������	�����������	��<�(4�����	� ������+@����

$8�$�<� ���� �	����	� 
�������� ����
�����-� ��	���
� ����������	� ��������� ���

�	����	�����������������@����

$8�$�8� ������
����������������		�����������������

$8�"� ����.����������		������,���������������������.�������������������������������	��

������	�����������		����������������������
�����������������
������������

�������������������

$8�=� �%�($�,�&(���$&,*��&"(���)��

����.����������		����������������,���������������������.��������������
������

����		��������������������� ��>������������ ������
�����������������
� ����

��������������	������������������������	�
��	����-��������������
��������������
�

����.��������������
��������;���������	�������������������������������������

���������.��������������
����������	��,���������	�
��	������

	1� 2��������

$9�$� 2��
�������������������������
�������(,�����������������2	�����$9�(2��
���

��������,+���������,���+����		������,����
������
�����������.��������

$9�"� ���� .������� �
���� ����� ���
��� �
����� ���� ���� �������
� �������� ��� �����
�

����
������ ����� 2	����� $=� ,�		� ��� ���������� ��� ��� ���������� ���������

��������������������	��������������������
�����������������	���������(�����	�����

75



�

� ��������

�

��������������������������������
�������,�����������������
������������������

�
�������������+-���������
�����������.����������

	E� ����������������������������������

�

$3�$� ������		�,�
����		����	������������'�

(�+� ����.����������		-��������������������	������������	�����������		�,��	�����

	�,����
������-��
��������������������������������������
��������

������������		��������	�	����	�����������
����������.����������

����
���������

�

(�+�������������������������22���������������-������
������!�����	����	�����������

0���
��������������-��	�������������
�������������������!�����������

��	����������������	�����������	���
��������
�������������������

0����	���������������.������������������>����	����������2	����	�!�
	�
����

�����������������������������������������������������������������������

������������!�����	����	�����������0���
����������������

�

(�+�������������������������2����	-�����2����	����		���������������������������

��������������������-���	���
���	�G��������,��������	����	�����

��	������

�

(�+�������������	�
�������������2	��������		����	�������������(����>����	��+�

����
����������
���������������������������������������������������

�
���������������������������������������������������
���������������

�������������

�

(�+� ���� .������� �� ����	������ ,���� ������ �������� (��� ���� !�����	� ���	���

��������0���
�����������������������������+������
���� ����� ����� ��� �����

��������	����������������	�� ���� �������	�
���� �	���������������� ����

.�������� �������� ����
������ (��� �>����	��+� �� �������� ��� ����

.��������������
����������������������������	����������������	�����		�

�����		�,����������.���������

�

�(��+(&�&�,�

�3�(�,�- &" ��"��%���"++�()�+�(������0�

$3�"� �����.������(�����I/& ,���� �(� I+�,�		������������������������������������������

�����������,�����������������	�0����	������,������������
�������	������������	��

�����������������������������������	������������4�����.�����J����	�����

4������������-��������
��������������2����������7�����

�3�(�,��",���"++�()�+�(������0�

$3�<�������A�������2	�����$3�3����2	������9�=����9�<-����,����������A�������������

��������	����	������������.����������������	�����4������-���������������������68�

(8+(�+����(�+��������"##9����-������.������(����)��������
�.�����*+��������

�
���������������������������
��������0����	������������	������0����	������

76



�

� �������

�

�����
����������	�������������������������-�������������������������������
�

.������������;���������	�����-����������������
�����������������:��������������

	����	�������		���������������������������������������������������������������

.����������������	�����-����������������
����������������,����������		�,�
�

���������'��

(�+������������	����	����������.���������������������������.���������		����

��������������A��������>�����	�������@��

(�+�������������.���������		�����
��������	�����@��

(�+��������!�������.���������		��������	����������������������	���������	�������

���������

$3�8����������.������������
�����	��������������������������������
�����������

�������������������������,����2	�����$9�(2��
�����������,+����2	�����$6�

(H�������+��

� �&�!&*&�'��

$3�9��������������
������-�����2����	����		������������	�������������������������������

���������	����-��
�����;��������������������2����	��������22�����		����

��������	����������������������������������������	����-��
�����;���

�����������������22�-��:�����,���������������:������,����
������������������

����������������������A�������������������������	������9�=����9�<@����

����������������������������	������9�=����9�<��������������	�����������2����	����

����22������������-���������������������������������.��������(���
���

)���������*���������������������������	����+����������������� �:���2������������

2������-�,��������������2����	��������22�-�,�		��������������������������

,����������	����������-�,������
���������������������������������	�

���������	���������������������2����	��������22������	������������������
�����

��������	�����4������������������	�
�����������������
����������

�

$3�6� &�������	����	��������������������	����� �	�����������������
	�
����������

.�����-������	����	�������		��������������������������.��������

�

$3�3� 4������������������������-�����	����������
�����	������������������������������

�����������������
����������		�������	��,����������������,�����������������

��������������
��������

	FG� ��������/���������

$5�$� �������2����	��������22��(����)����������.����*+����������,�����������������

���������
���������������	����������	�����$3��
���������������(����)��������
�

.����*+-�����������������������		����
��������������������	�����������������
�

.�������

$5�"� ���� ����������.����� ���		� 
���� ���� ��������
� .����� ��������������� ��������

���������������	������	���-�����������
	�����������������������	�����������

������	���������-��������-����-������-�������-������	-�������������������������

������	�������	����	����(��	���
-�,�������	��������-���1�
��������	��������������

�	������
������������������+�����������������������	�����������������
�.�����

������������������������������	�������������
�-��
�����������������	�-������

�������������������������
������������������������	����	�������		�����������������

����	�������������������.������������	�������		������������������-����������

����������	���,��������������������������������
�.�������������������
�.�����

�����	�������������������������������������

77



�

� ��������

�

$5�=� &������� ���A������ ��� ���� ��	������ ��� ���� �	���� ��� �		�
��� �	���� �� >������-� ���

,�������������������������
�.����������	���������������������������	���-�

����� ������ ���		� �		�,� ���� ������ ��� ���� ����������	� ��������� ��� ������
���� ����

�����������������������		�
������
������������������	�������,�������������,����

�:���������������������	���������������������	���-������������������������		�


���-����A����������
�������		��������	������������:�����-��		����������������

������������-���	���
�����������������������������	-����������
�������:�����

����������������
��������������-��������-��������������������-��������������

�����������������������	���������������������	����>�����.�EH�7�7����������
�

�� ����� �	����� $5�=� ���		� ��� ��������� ��� ��>����
� ������� ������ ��� ����	���� ���

��������������
�,���������������A���������������	�
��������������������
����������

�
��������1�����		�������������������������	�����	��������������������������������

��� �����������������

"#�$� ��������������		���������������������������������������.����������%�������

"#�"� ����	����������������������������.�������A���	���
�����������������������������
�

����������
��������������;�������	��������������������:�����(�����:���	��

����	���������������
���������+���������.�����������A���	���
������������������

������� ��� 
������� �������;��� ����	����� ��� �� ��������� �:����� ��� ���	��

���������
������,������������������������	���-����������������������.���������		�

����������������������-�
��������������	������

"#�=� ����������������	������������	��������������2	�����(��������,��������������������

.���������+�����������������������������������
	������&�	�����

"$� ������������������

"$�$� ����.����������		�����	��,�����		�0�,���	���
��������.��������������
���������

���������������

"$�"� �����.����������	�������������,��:����
���������2��������������������.������

�� �������� ��� .���������� 2�������� ��� 4������ �������� 2�������� ���		� ,��������

���	����	�� ��>����� ���� ���������� ��� �������� .��������� ��� ������ ������� ��� ���	���

������������ ,��� �:������
� �������� ��� �� ���	��� ������ ��� ���		� ��>����� �����

��������.������������������������������������������������������������	���������

����	�����,������������������������������������������
��������$553��

��� ����������

""�$� ������
����������		����������(���A�����	,�������2	�����""�"+'�

""�$�$� &��������.������
��������	������,�	����������,�������������������������

.������(������������������������������.������������
������,����
+������

�����,����������������������
����������������������:�������=$� �������

������	�����4�����	�B���@�

""�$�"� &���������������������������������	�-�,��������.��������������������

���������	�����	�
��	����������	������>������������2����	�����������		����

�������������������������
�������������	�
�������	���������.�������

������������	������
�������
��������,��	�����	�������.�����������	��	�

������	�
�����������������������.������
���������������.�������������	��

,�����������@�

""�$�=� &����� ������ ���� ���� �������� ���	���� ��� �� ����>����� ��� ,����� ����

���������� ��� ���� �
������� ,��	�� ��� ���������	� ��� ���� ��������-� ��

��������?���������.������������	������������������,���������������
���@�

78



�

� ��������

�

""�$�<� &���������.��������������	������
����������������
����������
�������

������������������������2�����������������������������������������������

������������
��������������	��	�������2	�����8���;�����������������

���� ������ ��� ���� .������� ���� ���	�� ��� �
���� �� ��������� �	�� ��;���

���
������������ ������������,�����������������������
�������� �&�����

������������������������������>���������������.����������.�������,�		���		��

���������������	������������
��������A����������
���������������	��������

������
���������������������������A����������
�����������
�����,�����

"3������������������>����������������.�������������������������
�������

���
���
����	�����������������,�����������@�

""�$�8� ���������	����,������������,���������������������������	������������

������	�����.�����������
���		�,�������������������2	�����"#�(7�������

����	����+@�

""�$�9� ���������	����,������������������.�����������������������	�����������

������������	�
�����������������
�������,����������������	������������

��� ,����� ��� �����	�� ��� ������� ���� ���� ��� ���� ��������� ,����� ����

�������	�� ����� ���������� �� ���� ,������ ������ ����� ���� .������ �����
�

��������>����
���������������������@�

""�$�6� ���������	�� �� ������ ��� ������� .������ ��� ��	��	���� ��� ���� ��	�
������

�����������������
�������,��	�����?	����H����@�

""�$�3� ������� ����������������������	����������-� ���������	��,���������.�������

A���	���
������,����
-�����������,��������.������
��������	������,�	���

�������,�������������������������.������(������������������������������

.������������
������,����
+�����������,����������������������
�������

����������������������	������������

""�"� ?���������������,��	����������������������-�����.����������		�,��1���
������

��'�

""�"�$� ��������	��������������������������������,�������������������������
�

������������������������?����@�����

""�"�"� &�����������������(������������������	������������1�
�����������,��������

�����������������.�����������������?����+���������2�����������		���������

�	���� ��,��������
� ���� ���������-� ��� ���� .������� ���		� �
���� ����

�������	� ��� ��� ���������� ��� ��� ������ ��� ��������� ��������� ��� ����

��>���������
������������������������
��
@�����

""�"�=� ���������������������������	����������������������
������������������

����������������
����������������	����������������

""�=� �� ���� ����� ����� ��� 	����	������ ���		� ������ ����G���������� �� ��	����� ��� ����

.������������������������������
���	����	���������������	�������	�������������

,�����,���������		����������������������������������������������������	������

���������-����������
����������		��������:������-�,��	�����������������
��

������.��	���4��-������	�
���%��
��(�+����!��.��	���4���������������	�����

��������������������������.����������		���������������	�������	����������������

��1�������������������
��,�����=#���������������
��,���������������
���

""�<� �����������������������	��<�(4�����	� ������+�������������������		����	������������

��������������������������������������	�������	�������������������.�������

���		���1�����������������������������������		�
���������������������	�������	������

������� ��;��� ��� ���	���� ����� ������������ ��� 	����	������ ������� ��� �
����� ���

79



�

� ��������

�

����������,����� =#� ����� ��� �������� ����� ���� 2����	� ��� ���� ���	� ������	������

���������������������������������������

""�8� ���� .������� ���		� ���� �� 
���� ������ ��� �� �� �������	�� ����� �� ������
�

�
��������������������������������� ��2	������""�"����""�<���� �������	�����

�
�������,����� ����.����������%����� ����.����������������� ����������� ������

���������� �� ���������� ,���� ���� ��������� ���������� �� 2	����� "#� (7�������

����	����+����

""�9� �������������	��
����������������������������
�����������������������������

������������������������������������������������������.��	���4��-��	�
���%��
��(�+�

���!��.��	���4��������
������������.���������������������������

""�6� E
��
�������,��������������������>������������������������������
�������

��� ���� ���	������� ,���� �,� ����
������ ���		� ��� ����� ��������	�� ��� ����

.��������������
��������,�������.��������

""�3� �������������������
����������		����,����������A�������������.����������
������

����������������������������������������	�����	���������������>������ ���
����

���������������2	��������

�
� �����������������H����������

"=�$� ������
�����������		���
��������������������������
�����������������������

.������,�����������������,�������������������������.�������.�EH�7�7��������

��������������		�����������������������
���������������������22���������

2����	������������������������������������������������������������������	��������

������
��������

"=�"� ?������������
�����������������������
�������������������		����������������

����
����������������������������,������������1�
��������	��,��������������

���������������������
������������������������,������������������������
����

�����	�������������
�����������������������������	����	�����:������������������	����	����

�����������������������������������
����������������

�D� ���/������/��������

"<�$� ���� .������� ���		� ��� ��������	�� ���� �����
� ����� ���� ���	������ ��� ��� ����

������	����������������,����������������������������������	�������

"<�"� &����������A�������������
����	�������2	�����"<�$-�����.�����������������������		�

����	�� ,���� ������ �,� ��	������ ���� ��������
� ������
�
� ���	����� ��� ��������

,�������	���'�

"<�"�$� ����:����
����	��������������������������	����	���������������@�

"<�"�"� ������	�������������������������	����	���������������,���������������������

������@�

"<�"�=� �����
� ����� ��������	� ���	������ (����� ��� ��	�����+� ���� ��� ���

������1��������������,��1�
�,���������.��������������
������,�����

���	�����,�������������������	��������������.����������������-����,�������

���,���,��1������	������������������������������	�����������.����������

�������
�����������������������������.��������������
�����@�

"<�"�<� �������
�����������������������������C����2���������
���������������

�� ���	���� ��� �������� �:����� �� ��	����� ��� ������ �,� ��	�� ��� �������� ��

80



�

� ��������

�

�������� ,���� ����� �
������� ����� ���		� �� ���� ������ ������� ��>�����


����������������.����������%����@����

"<�"�8� �������
�����������.���������		� ��>����� �����������	��������	��������

�������� ����.��������������
��������������� ����������	������� ��������

�:����� �� ��	����� ��� ������ �,� ��	�� ��� �������� �� �������� ,���� �����

�
������� ����� ���		� ������ ��� ��>�����
������� �����		�� ����� ������ 	���

���
�������	������	������������:��������7�����������2��	�������B��
�

.���	�����������(,������		����������������������������.����������%�����

,�������������+���

"<�=� ����.����������		�������������������������������	�������������
�
������������
�

���	�������������������������������-�,�����������	�-�����
��������	���,��������

��
�����������	���	�������	��
��

�?� ��2�������

������2	��������������
�������������
��������������	����������		������	�����

����		�
�	�����G��������	������������������������
����������		���������������

����������

�1� ���/����������������������/�������

����.��������
�����������������		������,��������������7���������������	����������

�:���������������	�:���	���������������68��������"##9�������������
���������

����������,��������
���������������������7���������������	����

�E� ����������������

� !����
������������������������������������������������������������2��������

(��
�������������.������+�����$556���

�C� ����������������������

"3�$� ?	�����
����������,���� ��,����
���.���������������� �����
���������������

.��������

"3�"� ����.�����������������
�������������������������������������������������

������� �� 	�
�	� ����������� ���� ���� ��������� ��� ���� .���������� ����� ���� ������� ��

������������	������������,�������.��������������������������������"##9��������

������
�	��������

"3�=� !��,��������
���������������
����������������������������.������-�,��������

�:����
���������2���������;���4��������������2�����������
����������������

.�������	��������������		������������	���	����������.�����������������.������

���		-��	���������,����������������������������	����:����
���������2���������;���

4��������������2������-�����������
���������������������:����
���������2�������

���4��������������2�������(�����	����+-��������������������2	��������		������������

������������������'�

"3�=�$� ������� ��������� ���
������ ��� ���� .���������� �� ��� �:����
� ��������

2���������;���4��������������2������@����

"3�=�"� ���������.��������������������	�
�������

"5� �������

"5�$� ������������������������������������		������,����
��

81



�

� ��������

�

"5�"� �������������������������������2����	�������������		��������������������	��

�������������������
������������������	���������������������2����	����������������

��������������������1������������:��������7�����������2�����������������������

�����������������������������������������������������������������2����	��������

��������������������������������2����	��

"5�=� ��� ������ ��� ������������ ��� ���� 22�� ��������� ���		� ��� ������� ���������	��

�������������������
������������������	�������������������������������������������

������1��������������������������2�����2	����	�E�����������������������������������

��������������������������������������������22�����������������������������������

22���

"5�<� ���������������������	���������		�����������������������������������������������

��	��������������������������&���������������������������		����������������������������

����������,���������	������������������������������������������		�����������

�������������������,��������������<3�������������������������,�����������


�� ��2���������.�����7�����������

=#�$� ������
��������������������������	����������
���������������������,����������

�������A�����������������������(��	���
��G���������	��������������	����+�,�		����


����������������������������������,��������	�,������
	����

=#�"� ���� .������� ���������	�� �
���� ����� ���� ������� ��� �
	��� ����� �G�:�	������

A������������������	�����������������	������������������������������������,���������

�
��������

�

82



�

� ��������

�

�!�&��!����,��������������������������������:�������������
�������������������������

���������������������,������

�

�

����2E  E!����0���������������������� �+� �
��������,�������:��������������������������'� �+� � �
�

�������������
�����'� � ������������������������������������������������

�

�

�

�K�2?��7������7��7����!���������������������+�
������������������������������������ +�
������,���������������2��������	�,���� � +�
������������:�������������������� � � +�
�

�������������
�����'� � ������������������������������������������������

�

�������������
�����'� � ������������������������������������������������

�

83



�

� ������	�

�

���������	�

��7���2���

�

�&+,<��#�)"+�,<��!I�)�&3�,��(����(� �*�� &()&-*��

��������-����������������������A���������������.��������������
����������

�
�������������������	����������	����������
�����������1������������������
����������

�����
��A����,��1�
-���������?��������,������������������������	���������	������

�����	�����������������.���������
������������������������������������	���	���	����������

������������	���������������������	��	�����.������������������������������������������

�������'�

�� ��������� �������� ��	������ ����	��
� ����� ����� �	���	�� ��G��������� A����

����������
�����������@�

��  ���������������	�:��	��A��������������
�����������-���������	������������������

����������	��������
���������������	����������@�

�� ���������������	�����������1�
����������	�����������	������������@�

��  �����������
������������������������������������	�
�	������,��1�@�

�� ���������������
�������������������������,��1�
����,�������22���������

2����	-���������	����
�����������������������������
����������
�������1���
��

���������,��������,�		��	����������������������������		�
���

�� �����������������-��������
�����:���������������	������-�������������������.�

��������������	�����
�����������
�����A���������������������@��

�� ����������
������������������������������,���������������������
�����������

����� ���1�
��� ������� ���� ���	��� ��� �����	� ����� ��������� ��� �������� �� �����

����	��������������������@�

�� ���	���	�����
����������������������������������	�����������	����������������	�-�

�����������������������	�����������
�������������
����������������������������

������������@��

�� ��������	���	�����������1�
����������	���������	�����������	��������������@�

�� �����	����	������������,�������������������	��������,���������	��	���@�

�� ����������������������	��������	��������������@�

��  �������������,��������������
���������@����22��2��	������.����������

�� &��������������
������	��:�	����-����1	�
���>��	����������������
����	������

�����	�,�		���
����	���	�����������@�

�� ����������������� ������ ������� �������
��������� ���
���������1�
������ ��������

������
������:������������
�������
����������	������������������@�

�� ���
��
�	���	�����	��������������������������������,����0�,��������C����

������
���!���������������

�� ������������������
��>��	�������������,�������������-�������������������������

����������@�

84



�

� ������
�

�

�

��������������������������,�		������������������������������
���������'�

�� ?��
���������������A��������������
����������@�

�� ?��
�����.��������������
������������������������������	��
������	���������

���
�������	������	�����������������������,�������������
������@�

�� ?��
� �������� �� ���� �������� ���� �������� ������ ��� 2������ � ��� ���� ������ ����

�������
����������������
���
����������@�

�� 2�������
����������		�������
�������������������2����	��������22���@� �

�

�

85



�����������

�

� ��������

�

������������

����2���/��������

�

��� 2����	�4��������

�����������,����������
�
�����������	�������������������������������������?��������,�����

�������������������:�������	������������������'�

�� ��� ���
� �������	� ���	��� ��� ,�		���
� ��� ������	���� ��������� ,����� ��	���� ��� ���	������

���������

�

%�� 22��4��������

���������������������
������1�
�����
����������������������������������'�

������
�2��	������2�����������	�����������-�0�2�������������2� ��L�2�����
�2����(������

�������+�

�

86



�����������

�

� �������

�

���������
�

���2�����

������������	

����	����	��������������������������������
�

������������������������������
�

�������� ������!���"�#���������$�����
�� ������������������������������

 �������!�"���#����������$%�
&��#����'��(�������$�!�
��$��'������$)��

�� *'++#���$�*��(����,��-#������
�� *'++#���$�������������
�� ������(�-�����-#������
�� ./#��+����

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������0'#�����'�(��1����#�������(%�
��������������'+�(������(���������

����������$�����
�

*�+2�����������!������2'�'#���-3��
4'#�����'����#���

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

**5�

�(���������
�

�

���!������������$��!��
�

�

�+���"����������������������
�

�

����������)!�&������%�����������%���
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

����#�����������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

"''6����7����*��(�����

����������$�����
�

*�4��

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

*�4��

�(���������
�

�

���!������������$��!��
�

�

�+���"����������������������
�

�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�
�
�

������������������������������
�

��
#���

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������0'#�����'�(�������1����+����(�
���(����������

����������$�����
�

*�4��

87



�����������

�

� ��������

�

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

*�4��

�

������������������������������
�

������!��&�����,	������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

�

����������$�����
�

�

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

�

�(���������
�

�

���!������������$��!��
�

�

�+���"����������������������
�

�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�
%����)���!&�����"���!��������������	

����	����	�������
�

������������������������������
�

����������-�����������������7'��
�������8�������'7����(���������$'#�����'�(��
1��������2�(�������9��(#�����7�������''(�����
�'(���$��(#2�%�������(����$'#����(#2�%���'���%�
�(�$���������������������������7'����2(������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

4�+�(����'7����(���������$'#�����'�(��1����
����2�(���������������%�2�����'�����������
�������

����������$�����
�

:���'#��;���'��������''(<����1'������#��<�
*���(���-��1'�6<�=��(<�:������$<�>9=��

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

�**�

�(���������
�

����(������

���!������������$��!��
�

?�%����'��(�7'���'+2������'��������

�+���"����������������������
�

=��(��'����������'���$�����'�+�����,�	��&�����
�'���������'�@�����A���

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

.� ������������'���/)���&���2���7�A��(6����
������$,�����������'����'�$'#�����'�(��1����
�+'��'��(�1�((�2��������#����

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

0'#�����'�(�������1�'������������������
�+'��'��(�1�((�2��������#���1���������
�+��������'��������2�����'#������7#����'�����
2#�������'�����������'#����'�����������
���������7'��*��(��������'(�������@����(�
3��(�������������

����������$�����
�

=���6�������'���(�.����������

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

�**�

88



�����������

�

� ��������

�

�(���������
�

����(������

���!������������$��!��
�

?
�%���� ����8�	)�

�+���"����������������������
�

@��������
�

�

������������������������������
�

�������!����&���#�������(����(�����������
7'�����(����%�$'#�����'�(��������������������
1�������'+'�������(�������+����(����(��%�
��(������������������'���++����'�'���+����
���(���������'+'����(�����������'#���1�((�
2������������(#��'�����

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(�������
��������
��������������1�'�(����������������2'�'#���
"'��(��#��'���$�������

����������$�����
�

*�4��

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

�**�

�(���������
�

����(������

���!������������$��!��
�

?��%�	��

�+���"����������������������
�

@��������	�

�

������������������������������
�

���-������������������%�"�����&"����$����
���(�����(���$��'('�$���������7'��(''6����7����
���(������9��(#�����������������+��������
����������'��1'�6�1�������(���������7�+�(���%�
������������������������7'�������������
��'7����'��(���

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

"''6����7�������(�����1�����+'��'��(����(���
����1�((�2��������#��%��'�����'���'���#��'���
��������������'��(�����#+��������*��(�����
-�����

����������$�����
�

*�4���'������,������'����'��+'���������'#���
�'��**�2$�+#�#�(������+����7�'+�&���,����

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

�**�

�(���������
�

����������

���!������������$��!��
�

?��
%���� 2#������(('�+����7'����8�	)�

�+���"����������������������
�

�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

�����"����&�������������������
���������������������'����������������(�����%�
��$�����%��7�������''(����������'#�������
������������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1�����'+�(���
����2�(�����8�������(������������2�(�����������

89



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

� ���������������7�+�(���%�2�����'�����������
������

����������$�����
�

�**�

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

9���'#�����'����'��

�(���������
�

&���'����

���!������������$��!��
�

?
	�%
	������B#������(('�+���������8�	�
 ���(#����������'+�����������'��'7�?
��%�
�)�

�+���"����������������������
�

-8��

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

����
������������������������'���2���6��
���������������7'�����(���������$'#�����'�(��
1��������2�(������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1��������2�(������
��������������������7�+�(���%�2�����'��
���������������

����������$�����
�

�**�

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����
�

9���'#�����'����'��

�(���������
�

&���'����

���!������������$��!��
�

?
��%����B#������(('�+���������8�	�

�+���"����������������������
�

-8��

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

#�����!���������$�����;��'+���(���$������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1�����'+�(���
����2�(�����8�������(������������2�(�����������
���������������7�+�(���%�2�����'�����������
������

����������$�����
�

:���'#��;��������*���<������3'+�����<�
*�'���'����*���<��((����3��(������<�
9�����������3��(������������

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����

�**�

�(���������
�

��'���#���������'�+�������������������

���!������������$��!��
�

?��
%�������#�(�������7'������8����
?�%��	��(('������7'������8�	�

�+���"����������������������
�

-8��

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

�

90



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

������������������������������
�

�������%�"������/��

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1��������2�(������
��������������������7�+�(���%�2�����'��
���������������

����������$�����
�

�*:���'����������'���'�������7'�+���'�%�
������������#��'����'�7�+�(������'#����������
��$+������
��$+�����+����������($��'�7�+�(����

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����

�**�

�(���������
�

����(�A���

���!������������$��!��
�

?���%���� 2#������(('�+�������
��8�	)���9��(#����?�����'�������1�����*:��

�+���"����������������������
�

@�����A�	�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

	��!���������������"�0�����������1���&��
������+�������������������'�����'#����'+��
2�����������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1��������2�(������
��������������������7�+�(���%�2�����'��
���������������

����������$�����
�

�**���#(���'���(�*�����

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����

�**�

�(���������
�

����(������

���!������������$��!��
�

?��%����

�+���"����������������������
�

@��������	�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

�

������������������������������
�

�2!�����������'����'��'7�������(����
�/#��+����7'(('1����������+����'7������

%����������������&��!�������$��&����$�����
!������������������
�

*��(���������$'#�����'�(��1��������2�(������
��������������������7�+�(���%�2�����'��
���������������

����������$�����
�

:���'#��

'���(�����������������(������)"*�%������
����

�**�

�(���������
�

'���'����

���!������������$��!��
�

?���%�	���2#������(('�+����7'������8�	�

�+���"����������������������
�

�

����������)!�&������%���������������
�

�

91



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

���������D�

/���������������

�

�����������	��<���������������	�����������������		�,�
������'��

�

$�� ��,����
����,�		�����������������������������������������

�

"�� ��,��
��������
����,�		�������
�������
����
��������������,���	�
���������������,�		����

�:�������	�������
������������������,����������:��������������������

�

=�� ��,�������	������������,�		��������������

�

<�� 4�����������
���

�

�

�������������	�������������������
��������
����������������"#$<;$8�������	������

�

����&($�!#�$��,�

�

$�$� ����.��������
����������		�,�
�������	�������	�������������
����
��������������������'�

�

$�$�$� �����.�������������������
���������������	����������������,����
��-�����
���
�����������

����	��	�� ���������-� ���������� ��	�
�����-� 	���		�� ���������� ����������� ��� ����� ������

����������������������������������@�

$�$�"� �����.����������
����������������������������������������������������������-��������	���	�

���,���������������������-�����������		�������������������	��������������	�
�������������

������.�����@�

$�$�=� ������
��������������������������������������������������,�������.������-������.������

�
������������	���������������������
�������������	�-��������������
��������������������

���������(���A�����������
�����$�$�$������+@�����

$�$�<� �����.��������1�,	��
�������� �������
��������
��������� �����������������������

�������-� ��	���
� �� �������	��� ���� �		������� ��� ���������� ����� �����	� 
��������

�
�����-�����������������
��������������������������		��������������������������

��������������������������������������	�����������.�������������.��������������������
�����

�������������������������������,��������������������������
�������	����������(�������

�������	�+�,����������,����
��������
��������-���������������
�������������������������

��������������	��<�(,������������������������������������������,��		��������������+�

$�"� �

�

$�"�$� �����.������,�		���������(�����������+������������������������
������������
��	�1���

��������������	�
������������
���4�������2����	������,�		����������������(�����������+�

�����������	��
���������������22��������������(�����������+��������		�����
��		�������

���������7���������������	���(���������������)��
�����������
��������*+����

�

$�"�"� 2�����������,�		����������A������������	�������
��������
G����������
������������

�

$�"�=� ���������-��,���
G����������
���������������������������.������,�		���������	��

������������$##M��������A���	�����������������
���,������������	��������������������

�	���������	����

�

$�"�<� �������������������������������-���A����������.���
������$�$�$����$�"�"-������-�,�		������

��������	�������
�	���	������:��������

�

92



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

$�"�8� ���������	�������
� 	���	�,�		�����������������A������������	�������
��� �����-�����

�:���	��������	��������
����������
�-����������	����������>�����������������.���������

�����	�������1����������������������������
������

�

$�"�9� .���
������$�"�$����$�"�"����������������������������,���������.�������,�		�����������

��������	�������
�	���	-������,�����������������������
����������
�������	����	���	�

����������� ��� ���������� ���� ��� ��� ������ � ���� �:���	�� ��	�,� ����� ���� ���� ����� ���

��	��	������ ��� ��� ��		�,��� �� ������
� ��� ����� ����	��� 	���	�� � ���� �����	� ��
����� ����

�		�����������	������������
��

�

�

�

� �"#()&*� ����

�

� J+� J+�

�

�
�����::����
����

�

� �

7����::����
���������	������	��
�����

�

� �

7����::����
����22���		�������� � �

2��
������	�������
G������
����;����
�

�		�������

�

� �

������������	����		�������7����:::�

�

� �

�

�

"�=� ����������-����������������
���������-����������	�������������	����		�������������������������

����������1�,����	���	�����	��	�����������������-��������	��������		�,�����
��	�����	������

���,�������.�������������.�������,�		����������������������������������������������������	��

�������������	������(��������	���������=$� ��+����
�������������
�������������������������

���������������������������������������������	�1�	���������-����	���
�������������������,���

���������������������
������������
��������	��	��(����	�
G���������������������������	�����
�

"3�4�����������������-��������A���������������������+��

�

"�<� ?��
�������������������	�������
�������������������,������������������������������
���

����������������.������,�		�����������������(�������	��������:���
�������������,�����
����+����

������ ����� ���������� ��� ���� 	�1�	�� �����	� ���������� ����� ���� ��	�� ��� ���������� ��� ���� A���	��

������������������������=#�C������������-�������������	�1�	��	���	��������
������������,�		����

���1�
������1��,���������������(���
��,�������������,�		�������1�
�����		�����+��

�

"�8� �	������=#�C�������������������������C����2���������
�,�		��������������.������,����������

����� ����	��	�� ��������� ��� ���� �������� ���������� (��
�� �����
� ����� ���
�� �� ����
�������-�

����	������ ������-� 	�
��	����-� ��G������
� ��� ��������� ���+� ��� ������������� (��
�� �����

���������������+�,�������������	����������������
����

�

"�9� 4��������������.������,�		������	�����������	���������������
����������������������,���������1��

��������������������������������������������		�,�
������(����		�����=$�C�	�����������-����������

�������������	������+����������������	��,�		�����������
���������������������
�����
��,���

�������� ��� ��� ����	��	�� ,����� ���� ���
��-� �� ������ ����� ��
���� ��� ��� ���� ��� ����
��	�

����	������ (�����,���� ������ ��� �� �	�:���	���� ��� ,������,-� �	���� ��� ����� �������	�� ��� ���� ����

����	��	�����������������������������	�����+��

�

"�6� �����.������,�		�������������		������������������������	��,��������������,������������������-�

�	����
�� ���� �����	� ������� ��� ����� ��������� ����	�� ��� ��������� ����� ������ ,�������

������	���

�

93



�����������

�

� �����		�

�

"�3� ������������-�������A������������������������������������-�����.�������,�		����1�����
��������

��������������	�-����A��������������.������������	������
����	������	�������������������,����
���

�

"�5� �������	������
��������������.����������������
���������������������
������� ������������

,�����	�����"$��

�

�

�G� ��(�$&($�!#�$��,��# &($��('�$&3�(�'�� �

�

"�$� �����	�

�

&��	������������,�		����������������A���	�-�,��������2����	�����
����	���������������-�������������	�

���	����������2����������7����,�		��������������.�������������������������	�������������������������

�,�����������������������������	������?��	���������������		����
�����������	�������		��������������	���

�������2����	����	���������������������.������,�		��������������������������	��������������������

��	�����������	����������������������������	�������������,��:���������(���,�������	����-�

�����+��

�

����������	�����������		�,��������	��
��������������������		�,�'�

�

(�+� �����.�������������������������
�	���������	����
���������������,����������������

�� )���� ���1*� ������� � ����� ,�		� ��	���� ����� ����	�� ��� ������ ������	� �������
�

��������������������		����������-���������.�����������������������
����������������

�������	����>������������������	������������

�

(�+� �������������
�����������������
����������������,�		����������	������.�������������,�

����	��:����������������������������
�����A���	����������������������-� �������������

�������	���������	�����
�������������������������������������������������������

,��������������-�������	���������������������-��������������������
����������������

,�������(�����:���	�-���������������������������������+��

�

(�+� �����.����������
����������������������������������������������������������-��������	���	�

���,���������������������-�����������		�������������������	��������������	�
�������������

������ .�����-� ��� ���������� �������� ��� �	���� ���� ������ ������	�� ��� ��� �������	�

������������(��
���������������������+������,�		���>������������������������
������������

�G�����	���	�������������������������������	���������������������������	�����������	���

�

(�+� �����.������������������������������������������������������(��������������������+�

������������
����������������:��������-������:���	�������,�
���A������������������

.�����������
����������������������������)��
������*� ������������������	�������������

����������������	��������
���������������	�����������������	����1���

�

(�+� !��,��������
� ����� ����� .������ ������� 	����	���� ���� ���� �,� ������ ��� �:��������� (��

��������������
������������		��������	����
���+�����.��������
��������������������

���������������������������������
��������������������������������������������

���		����1������������������������,����������������-����A���������������	������
������

�������.�����������A���������

�

(�+� &������������������	�
������
������������	���������������
�������������.�������

�
��������������,�		����������,����8#M������������������������������������������	�
���

���
��������������		�,�
�����-�������
�������	�����������������������������������������

��
����������

�

"�"� 0����
����������

�

������		�,�
�������	������	�'�

�

8�3�$� �		��:����
���������2�������������������	�	�����������	������,�		����	����������2����	����

�		��:����
���������2�������������������	�	���������	��������,�		����	����������22�-������

94



�����������

�

� �����	
�

�

���������������������������������,�		���������������	�����������������
���
��������

(�����������=���������������	��<������,������������������,�		�������������+�

�

(�+� &�������������������������	�����������	�����'���

�

(�+� �� �������� ,�		� �������� �� ����� ����� ��� ���� ����� ��� C���� 2���������
� (���

�����������������������+�������,�����.���������		����������������
�.������

(���A�����������
�����"�"(�+���	�,+�@����

�

(��+� �� ����
����� ��� ���� ��������� 	�
��� ���������� ��,����� ��		�� ���
������ 	����

����������
��������2����	-����������	�������������		�����		����������4������

��������2������������	����������2����	-��������.��������
�����	���������������

�������������,����������		�
����������:�������������������@����

�

(���+� �������=���������������	��<����������,������������,�������.�����������������

��������������������������:����
���������2�����������4��������������2��������

,�		� ������������-� ��� ��		�,�� ����������	�� ����-�,������������	-� ����
������

���		���������������������.��������������(���
���+�����������	�������	�,�	����(���


��+�����������
������������������������������

�

(�+� ��	����
����������������	���������2����	�������������C����2���������
����		�������

���������2����	��������������
����	���-��������������
�������-�������������	�
�����

�����������	�������>������������������������		��������	����,��������		����������������

��������������
���������1�����������������������������
��
���������������������������

���
��� ����� ���� 2������ � ���� �		� ��������� ,���� �� ��	��� ����� ���� ��		� �������� ����� ���

N8##-###+��:�	���������H����

�

(�+� ��	����
����������������	���������22��������������C����2���������
����		�������

�����!�����������������>������������		��������	����,��������		������������������������

������
������-�����1������������������������������
��
���������������������C����

2���������
�,�		����������������������������
������������22���������������,��������

�4�������4E���������������������������������>�����������������		�������	���������

�������������������������������2����	��

�

(�+� ��� ��
����� ����
����� (�+-� �����-� ������ ,�		� ��� �������� ,����� ���� ����� ��� C����

2���������
�������������������,���������������������22���������,���������������-�

,���������2����	���������-�,��	����>������������������������������������������7��������

.���	�� 2���������
� ��� 2������ (2�������+�� � �� ��	����� ��� ������ ��������-�

��,��������
���������������������������7��������,�		��������	������
������������������

C����2���������
� ���� .������� �
���� ����� �� ����� ������������� ����22��,�		� ������

	����	���������		�����������������

�

�


G� �"8�6&(�()&�*�� �(,�)�&"(,�8&**�!��- ")�,,���

=�$� �����.������,�		����������������	�������������,�����������������������������

=�"� �����.������,�		������������������:����
���������2������������,���������������	������&��������

.����������	������������������	���������������(���������	����������.������+����,�		���������

��������.�����������,�		����������������������������.�������������������������������������������

,�		���������������	��(�	������������	���
����+���&�����������	��������������	��������������

������������������	�������������������������	��	��,���������	���������������������������

��		�,�
������������	�������A���������������������������,��������	������������������������

�������
��������

=�=� ����.�������������
������������,�		����������������,�������������	��������������	���������=#�

���������������������

<�� /��,��(���%� $�,�

95



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

����������
��������������22�������������������������������������������������
	��������������
���

���������	���������22�������������&���������2����	��������������������
�������������������-�����

�����,�		���		���������������
�����������
���������������������������
�����$������������1����

�����������������,����������������
�����������������2����	���������������������������,�		������

,��������2����	���

96



�����������

�

� �����	�

�

���������?�

��������������������������/���������������������

�

����.����������		���1������	��	�������������������������������������1�
�����	������(��	���
���������

������1�-������-����	��
-����������������	�
��������������������>����������������������

�����
������+�������		�����������	����>��������������������������������
���������������������������

�������������
������������.��������������������������������.��������������
�������������������G

�:�	������	���������������������������

�

97



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

���������1�

�������������������

�

$�� ������������	�����������	�������	����	�������������������,���������22��������������	��
��������	�-�����������������������	����	�������������������'��

�
�� ��������	��2����������������������������7���������������	���
�
�� 22�J��2���������
�.�	�������

�
�� �����7���������������	��J����������������	
�����	�������������������������
�������������������������������"##6��

�
�� !���������
�2����.����������������G�7���������������	���"#$#�
�
�� ����������22�J��2���������
�.�	���������2���������
�������
��.	���������������	�

4����,��1��
�
�� ������������
��������;����:�������	�����������
�������������������������������������

�����
�
�� !�2��
������-�������������������������22��

�

�
�
"�� ������������	�����������	�������������������,���������2����	�������������	����������	�-��������

���������������	����	�������������������'��
�

�� 2��	��������$535�(���������+���

�
�
��
�

� �

98



�����������

�

� �����	��

�

���������E��

��2����������������

$�� ��(� �*�

(�+� �����������	��,�		����,���,�����.�������,�		����������������	�������������	����������A����

����������
��������������������2����	�������
�����	��������������
���	���

(�+� ���������,�		����������������,�����������,��1-�,����������������������������������������

�����.�������(�������������	�,+�,�������
�����������	�����������	��,�����������		�������������

������������2����	����������22�J������������1�
���,������

(�+� ��������������1�
���,�����������2����	������������������2��������� ��
�������������

2�����-���1�
����������������2����	J�������	�I�������I������������,�������������������		�

2����	��

(�+� ��������������1�
���,�����������22��������������������22����2���������-�,�����	�������

������������
���1���������22��������
�%�����

"�� / �+�8" B�6" ���)&,&"(�+�B&($�

(�+� ����2��	���������	���������
���.����������(I2��.I+�

��������������������������������������������������,��1���E�����2��.-�����2����	����

��������������������������7��������.���	��2���������
��������22�����������������������

7�����������/��	���-��������L�.�������:�����������

���,�		������������������		������,��1����������������������������,��1�
���.���������
��������

2��.�,�		��
������������������>����������������������������A��������������
����

����2��.��������������,����	�
�	�����������1�
���,������������	���������������1�
���,����

�����������������2����	-�����22��������������������������������

��

�(�+� 7������7��� ��
�����

C����2���������
�?����

����C����2���������
�?��������������	�������		�A��������������
�����
�������������������

���������������������2����	-��������������������������������C����2���������
�(����

��������+-�������	�������,�������������������������2����	�������22����1�����������������������

��	�����������������C����2���������
�?����������������C����2���������
�������1���

���
�
�����������
���	���������������������
���������������>������������������
����		����

������������C����2���������
�����������������
����,���������C����2���������
�?������

��	����������	��������������	�����������������������������������
��������
����������

���
����,�		���1�����������(,�����������	�����������	�
���������������O�������	�,+������	��

���������������������������������������������������������������-��������������������
����

�

������	��������
����,���������C����2���������
�?��-���	���
�������������C����

2���������
�����������	�����,�����	������9�=����9�<����������
���������

�

�� 7�	�
���������������

������������C����2���������
���������(������	��+��������.���������
�����%������	���22���-�

������������������7��������.���	��2���������
�,���������2����	��

����C����2���������
�?��������	�������1�������������������������������������������
����

,�������	�
��������������-�������A�����������22���������2����	��������	�������������:����
�

99



�����������

�

� �����
��

�

�����������������-���������������������������������
�������������������������������������

,��	���������	������������2��.���������������������������������������2����	��������22�����

�������������������������������,�		����	�����
���������������������������������
����������

�	�:��	������������������
�
���������

(
+� 22���������������	��������2	����	�����������.����������

����22���������������	���������������
����������������>��	������������������������	���

������������������������������.����������������/��	����2������������

�

100



�����������

�

� �����
��

�

��

���������C�
�

������/�7����������������������������������

�
�# -",��"6�7"!�

�

$�� �����1����������
���	�������	��
��������������
��������������2��	�����������������

�

"�� ��� �������� ���� �������� 7�������� .���	�� 2���������
� ��� ���� ���	������� 2����� �:�������� ��

�������������
����������	�����������������	�������������	������������-�
��	������������	�����

�

�

��&(���,-"(,&!&*&�&�,�

�

�" -" �����"*�,��

�

=�� ��������������	�����������������-������
��������������������7����������� ��
���������-�

���������������	������2����������������	������������2�����������

�

<��  �����������������2��.����24C2%���2��������������������������=��	��
���������������
������

�����>�������

�

8�� ������������������������	�������������	���������������������������	���	�,����������������������

��� ���1���	����� ��� �������� ���� ����� ���	������� ��� ���	������� ������
��� ��A�������� ���� ���

��	�����
��:��		������������

�

9�� ����������������������	���������������������	��2����������������
�-�����.��������������	��

����������������
����� ����.���������
�����%������	���2���������
�������
�����/�..�

�	�����

�

/#()�&"(�*��"*��

�

6�� ��������������	��������������������������
��>��	��������������
����������������������	��������

���	����������������	���
���������
�����������������������
�������������
������

�

3�� ��� �	�� ��� ���������� ��������� ,����� ���� ���������� ����	��	�� ����� ���� ����� ���	����� ���

���	�����������
����������������������	���	��
��������,�������������������
����
�����

�

�

5�� �������	�����������������������-����	��
�������������������������������������������1���	�����

�� ������ ��� �������� ����	���� ��������� ���� ��������	�� ��� ������ ���������� ���
����� ���

�������
����������������	�������������	�����������������������	����������������

�

�

������������������������	�����������	�����������������	�����������	������������������������

�����������
������
������������������	���
�������	�����-�����������������-������������������

��������

�

$#�����������������		�0���	�����������������
������������
�������������	��,����������	���������

��	�������������
��������������������������		�������������������������������>������������

������	�������
�	��������������

�

$$����������������	������,����
�����������
��������������>�����������������	�����2������ ������-�

�������������-���	�����E������,������������2���������-������>�������

�

$"�����	��������������������	�����������	��������������
�����������	���������	�������	�
���

�	����
��������
������

�

101



�����������

�

� �����
��

�

$=����� �������� ����������A�������� ���� ���	������ �����������-� ���������
����������������
�����


�������� ���
���-� .���������� ���������� 4����,��1� ��� ���	������� ��	�� ����������

������������

�

$<����������������	��������������������������������������������������������	�����������	��������

������������������	����������������>����������

�

$8����� ������1�� ��� ������ ������� ��� ���������	������ (��	���
� ��1�
� �� 	���� ���������	���� ����

�������	����������������A����+�������������>���������������������	�����������	������

�

�� ,"((�*��(����(�$�+�(��

�

���������������C����2���������
�?�������2��	����()C2?*+���������
�����������������������
�

������������������	�������

�

$9������������		����
��������������	���������������	����������������	�����������	�,�����C2?-�

��	���
� ������1�
� ����������-� ��������	-� 
����
-� ����������� ��� ��������	� ��� ������ ���

��	��
���������������	�������������������������������������
�����		�������������������,����

������	��������	���������������	������������	������������������������������	�����(����

���	����������������	����+�������������������	�����(�������	���������������������	����+-����

������	����������������������������������������	��
���������������	����	�����,���������

C2?��

�

$6��D����������������,������������������		������������������������	��������.�����	�

�

>�'���*&3� �!*�,�

�

$3��7�	��������	��������2��	���������������������������,������
��������	����
���� �����	����


���������������
���

�

$5���������������
����������	���	�����������	�����������������������	�����������	�������A����

����������
-� �������� ��� ��������� ��	���
� ���	�����
� �	��� ���� ������������ ,�����

�������������

�

"#�����������������
������A��������������
�,�������	����������	����
������,�����������������	�


������������
�������

�

"$������������������	����������� ���
��������������
������������ A�����	����
��������	������

�����	���������������

�

""��2������������������	���������D���.����������������������
����������������	����-��������	�����

���2����/��	����2�����������>���������

�

�

102



1 
 

          Appendix 2 
 

Operational Policy for Borderline and Peterborough Joint Child Health and Wellbeing 
Commissioning Unit.  (JCU) 
 
 
 
Strategic Functions 
 
The strategic aim for the JCU will be to align assessment of local needs, commissioning 
activity and improve  outcomes for children through improved  Provider performance :- 
 
Integrating and co-ordinating the commissioning intentions of CCG/LCG’s and 
Councils [Peterborough, Cambridgeshire and Northamptonshire] to reflect local 
priorities:  commissioning intentions and priorities will be aggregated and will form the basis 
for developing the overall commissioning strategy. This will ensure the JCU strategy is 
grounded in local priorities and reflects local development needs and fully aligns to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board strategies and action plans. Plus incorporating the NHS 
Commissioning Board child health developments in the strategy ensuring comprehensive 
commissioning approach. 
 
Ensuring equity and quality of service delivery: the JCU will determine the required 
delivery approach to deliver on the integrated commissioning intentions. This goal ensures 
that the children’s services are aligned to meet the needs of the local population, close gaps 
in current service provision and enables children and young people to receive quality 
services in their community. Achieving this goal will also mean that children and families 
experience a seamless pathway regardless of the different organisations providing services 
or who commissions them. All those services in the pathway of care will be involved in 
shaping the outputs produced by the JCU. 
  
Increasing children’s services performance and delivering improved health outcomes: 
the JCU will work with providers and develop a performance framework by which local and 
national targets including outcome based performance indicators will be measured. Quality 
and experience of early access and appropriate support will be monitored while effective 
delivery models will be explored to reduce admission rates into acute and specialist services 
plus address inequalities in access. This will enable an effective delivery of savings plans as 
a system wide approach to commissioning and delivery will be adopted. 
 
Ensuring services offer quality and value for money: by developing close collaboration 
and commissioning relationships with a variety of providers, the JCU will be able to drive up 
quality and value for money through identification and dissemination of best practice. 
 
Ensuring that the children, young people & families/carers experience continually 
improves: through improved feedback mechanisms the JCU will fully understand children & 
young people’s concerns such as dignity, choice and quality of care, access, clean and safe 
environments. The JCU will be able to address these priorities through improved 
commissioning relationships and more effective performance management of providers. 
 
Delivery of effective children’s commissioning function to the partners: the JCU will 
enable all partners to significantly improve their commissioning competencies relating to 
children’s commissioning. The JCU will operate as a delivery vehicle, which serves its 
partners equally whilst recognizing their varying needs. It will consider and align its functions 
with other commissioning priorities and cycles i.e. CCG Governing Body, LCG’s Boards, 
Health and Well Being Board and Children’s Joint Commissioning and Delivery Board and 
work with Public Health and the NHSCB to deliver on the Outcomes Frameworks, inform the 

103



2 
 

JSNA and facilitate the Healthy Chid Programme and Special Educational Needs and 
Disability reforms. 
 
Principles of Operation 

• The JCU will seek to improve the children, young people, and family/carer 
experience at every possible opportunity by improving provider performance.  
Children & Young People are at the heart of all activity. Commissioning is the key 
lever to ensure children and young people receive quality services and care. The 
JCU will be designed with the necessary ability to effect positive change for children 
& young people. 

• Do things once rather than multiple times, wherever beneficial.  Where there is 
opportunity to minimize bureaucracy and maximize value for money, activities will be 
undertaken once only for the CCG/LCG’s and Council Children’s Services. 

• Lean, simple and robust governance.  The governance structure of the JCU must not 
add to bureaucratic procedure; the design will ensure the JCU management structure 
is lean and the governance is simple to navigate, but not at the expense of quality or 
effectiveness.  

• A delivery vehicle that serves its CCG/LCG’s and Council Children’s Services as 
equal customers.  The joint arrangement is a delivery vehicle and does not challenge 
the statutory basis of the CCG/LCG’s and Councils Children’s Services remain 
accountable for commissioning. The JCU will undertake commissioning activities to 
achieve the CCG/LCG’s and Council’s children’s Services strategic goals. In this role, 
the JCU will serve its partners equally and be responsive to their needs. It will work 
closely with the Area Team across joint pathways. The JCU will build on the existing 
capabilities of people including Children’s Clinical Lead.  The JCU is about all the 
partners becoming better commissioners, not about removing and changing existing 
capabilities. To achieve effective commissioning, the CCG/LCG’s and Councils 
Children’s Services are committed to enhancing their capabilities and expertise within 
the JCU by developing expertise as required, to deliver its objectives.  

 
Operational Functions 
 
The JCU will support integrated working and will offer:- 

• A comprehensive analysis of need 

• A whole system approach to planning and investment 

• An alignment of commissioning cycles and intentions 

• An effective use of resources that:  
o prevent duplication of activity/effort, 
o offer solution focused early intervention  
o increase efficiencies in activities 
o create seamless, co-ordinated  pathways to service delivery 
o deliver value for money, investing to achieve greatest community impact 

and reduce inequalities 
o deliver safe / quality outcomes 

• Improved access to and effective provision for service users/patients 

• Seamless, co-ordinated, flexible & responsive services 

• A common market development  and procurement approach 

• Most important, improved outcomes for children, young people and their families. 
 
Our approach to the use of resources will be:-  
 

• Streamlining inputs, achieving statutory targets and measuring outcomes and impact 
on service users/patients 

104



3 
 

• Reducing costs by reducing duplication (procurement, labour costs etc.) for the same 
outputs, results and impact 

• Measuring activity against cost and workforce skill mix 

• Seeking proportionally more outputs and improved results and impact or improved 
quality in return for an increased resource 

 
Specifically the JCU will: 
  
Assess needs and prioritise 
- Analyse health and local authority data to identify health and wellbeing needs: disease and   
population group 
-  Develop detailed plan for service delivery design  
 
Develop Care Pathway and Service Design 
- Support roll-out of new pathways and develop comprehensive service specifications 
- Provide a basic workforce framework to accompany both care pathways and service 
design 
- Make the necessary links with other CCG/LCG’s and NHSCB contracts to support the 
above 
 
Offer Strategic and capacity planning 
- Build a baseline of current activities and capacity (financial and operational) 
- Offer strategic options based on trends and models of good practice 
- Calculate the necessary capacity to match demand and study how capacity can be further 
developed  
- Provide budget management via aligned budget arrangements 
- Prepare reports for Health and Social Care / Boards and Partnerships  
- Work across services and directorates to oversee any additional health and Social Care 
related commissioned work 
 
Ensure Service User/patient feedback 
Whilst insight is critical at every stage, this is where it really matters. Finding out as much as 
possible about the service users/patients; their needs, experiences and barriers. Evidence 
sources can include surveys, community engagement, focus group participation, 
demographics, and social trend data. The approach will not just be a dialogue, but will 
involve co-design, co-production and consultation involving the respective organisations 
resources. 
 
Stimulate the market  
-    
- Work with providers to develop new delivery models 
- Develop new providers and identify opportunities to commission integrated delivery 
 
Manage the supplier network 
- Work with the existing providers to ensure optimum delivery of the strategic plan 
- Develop robust performance management methodology and tools 
- Monitor provider performance/quality e.g. Clinical and analyse activity 
- Benchmark data against national and international standards 
- Manage the improvement programme for failing providers 
- Identify where pathways are not working or do not exist 
- Ensure Action Plans are implemented 
- Work with services, directorates and partner agencies to identify need, gaps in provision 
and plan for system wide delivery 
- Decommission existing services where these are no longer required 

105



4 
 

-  
Inform contract and procurement activity 
- Develop commissioning strategies 
-  Develop service specifications 
- Inform contract negotiations 
- Inform procurement process  
 
Resources Implications  
 
Accommodation 
 
Officers supporting the functions of the JCU will be based at Council premises and should 
have access to an nhs.net account and other health premise hot desks to enable working 
across the partners. 
 
Human Resources 
 
The JCU will be managed by the Head of Children’s Community Health Commissioning in 
Peterborough City Council working in partnership with Directors and Heads of services to 
deliver the aims and exercise key responsibilities of the JCU. There will be close working 
with other commissioning leads in the CCG/Local Authority and Children’s Clinical Lead in 
the LCG’s. 
 
The Local Authority Head of Children’s Community Health Commissioning will support: 

a) The required clinical governance of all the commissioning activity 
b) Interface with CCG and LCG structures 
c) Engagement with other CCG commissioning activity and contracts, particularly the 

Head of Commissioning for Children’s acute services and Maternity. 
d) Link to CCG/LCG’s and LA Commissioning Board structures 
e) Guidance and updates on any policies and regulations 

 
Additional Support Requirements 
 
The following support needs have been identified and would be required from CCG and 
Council 
 

• Performance management data 

• Safeguarding information 

• Quality information 

• Public health support including identifying needs as part of the JSNA process, advice 
on the evidence base, outcome measures and evaluation 

• Links into Participation, Professional and Clinical Networks  

• Communication (strategy, protocols and pathways) 

• Workforce development 

• Specialist input re Procurement and Tendering  

• Finance 

• Legal services 

• HR 

• Formalized agreements for information sharing that are Information Governance 
compliant and appropriate NHS Net Accounts, etc. 

• Commercial support for market stimulation and development 
 
What will not be included in the Joint Commissioning Unit   

- Children’s acute and maternity services  

106



5 
 

- Specialist services commissioned by NHSCB 
 
Operational Responsibilities 
 
Develop a S75 to delegate the commissioning function and responsibilities from the CCG to 
the LA and aligned Budget Arrangements within a Joint Commissioning Unit model for: 
 

• The Looked After Children Health Team 

• Therapy services including occupational therapy, physiotherapy & speech and 

language therapy 

• Nursing Services including continuing care, community and special school 

nursing. 

• Equipment 

• Community Paediatrics/Child Development Centre 

• Children’s Mental Health Services, including CAMHs 

• Early support, including portage and children’s centres 

•  Short break services and home and community services for children with 

disabilities and complex health needs 

• Palliative Care  

• Drug and Alcohol Services for children 

• Youth Offending Service – Health 

• School Nursing  

• Sexual health services for children and young people 

• Services for children and young people who have been impacted on by domestic 

abuse 

 

• Working closely with Health Visiting, including Family Nurse partnership and 

Midwifery services 

 

• Ensuring the requirements of the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

reforms are met by health and local authority providers; particularly in relation to the 

Education, Health and Social Care Plans. 

 

• Ensuring governance arrangements are in place and further develop performance 

management and quality assurance frameworks building on existing joint commissioning 

activity. 

 

• Develop service specifications for future pathways to support children in the local 

system. 

 

• Establishing the strategic commissioning plans within a devolved budget management 

infrastructure subject to the Partners agreement. 

 

• Operating in collaboration with CCG/LCG’s to a commissioning cycle of identifying need, 

prioritizing resources, securing effective and efficient services, monitoring impact through 

robust performance management arrangements and effective business planning. 

Financial Baseline 
 

107



6 
 

To be agreed 
 
Governance  
 
The JCU will be formally constituted through Section 75 allowing the CCG to delegate its 
Commissioning function under the Health Act and using a Section 256 Agreement to enable 
transfer of funding as and when required related to specific projects.  
 
The Children’s Health Strategic Partnership (CHSP) will manage the partnership 
arrangements as outlined in the S75.  To oversee the JCU operations, evaluate impact of 
JCU functions and monitor delivery and impact of services for children and young people in 
Peterborough. (Including in Cambridgeshire, Northamptonshire and Herts where 
appropriate) (As set out in the Section 75 Schedule 7)  
 
Furthermore, an operational local JCU group will also be established to provide a focus for 
the operational functions as described above. Members will include leadership officers 
across the Council and CCG/LCG’s who will review performance management information, 
identify issues and where provision needs improving, make recommendations and inform 
planning and future commissioning.  
 
Financial Governance 
 
As set out in the Section 75 Schedule 4. 
 
Compliments and Complaints 
 
Compliments and Complaints will be dealt with through the host organisations policy and 
procedure. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The JCU will develop and maintain a risk register.  
 
Review 
 
The Section 75/256 Agreements maybe reviewed at the request of Peterborough City 
Council or the CCG/LCG’s .The Agreement will run initially for 2 years. 
 
 
 
6th December 2013 

108



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 8(a) 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Jana Burton Executive Director Adult Social Care, Health 
and Well Being 

Mubarak Darbar Head of Commissioning Learning 
Disabilities and Autism 

Tel.  

452407 

452509 

 

AUTISM SELF EVALUATION REPORT 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Directors, LD Partnership Board, Autism Working 
Group 
 
 

Deadline date : Annual Self 
Evaluation. 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider and comment upon the contents of this report. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Board following a request from Public Health England that all 
local authorities with social care responsibilities complete an Autism Self-Evaluation and 
share findings with the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the outcomes of the NHS England 
Autism Self Evaluation.  NHS England have made it a requirement that the outcomes of the 
Self - Evaluation be reported to Health and Wellbeing Boards. 

 
2.2 To assure the Board that Peterborough City Council, with its partners, are working 

collaboratively and have put an Action Plan in place following the Self-Evaluation. 
 
2.3 This report is for Board to consider under its Terms of Reference No 2.1 ‘to bring together 

the leaders of health and social care commissioners to develop common and shared 
approaches to improving the health and wellbeing of the community’, 2.2 ‘to actively 
promote partnership working across health and social care in order to further improve 
health and wellbeing of residents’, 3.5 ‘to consider options and opportunities for the joint 
commissioning of health and social care services for children, families and adults in 
Peterborough to meet identified needs (based on the findings of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment) and to consider any relevant plans and strategies regarding joint 
commissioning of health and social care services for children and adults’ and 3.10 ‘to 
ensure effective working between the Board and the Greater Peterborough Partnership 
ensuring added value and an avoidance of duplication’. 

 
3. BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 Public Health England requested all local authorities with social care responsibilities to 

complete an Autism Self- Evaluation to assess the progress made in each locality in 
delivering the aims and objectives of the national Autism Strategy, ‘Fulfilling and Rewarding 
Lives’. The National Autism Strategy was published in 2010 and NHS Peterborough 
published a local Autism Commissioning Strategy in 2011.  

 

109



3.2 A key feature of the self-evaluation was the requirement that it be reported to Health and 
Wellbeing Boards. This requirement is to ensure that the importance of the autism agenda 
is recognised within each locality. (See summary of the Self-Evaluation Appendix 1). 

   
4. AUTISM SELF EVALUATION - OVERVIEW 

 
The self-evaluation had 4 substantive sections covering: 

 

• Planning  

• Training 

• Diagnosis  

• Care and Support.  
 
The questions within the self-evaluation required either a RAG rating or a yes/no response.    

 
4.1 PLANNING 

 
4.1.1 The purpose of the planning section was to gauge the progress made in providing the 

structure within which service improvements can be made. In response to this the council 
and its partners have established a multi- agency Autism Working-Group of the Learning 
Disability Partnership Board which drafted the 3 year Autism Commissioning Strategy in 
2011. The council is also able to collect data on adults with autism known to adult social 
care through Frameworki and from GP practices as part of the Directed Enhanced Support 
Health Check programme. Whilst autism is included within the JNSA this is only at the level 
of prevalence rates. 

 
4.1.2 The Clinical Commissioning Group/Local Commissioning Group is engaged in the planning 

and commissioning of services through the lead GP for Learning Disability and Mental 
Health and the s.75 Executive Commissioning Board. 

 
4.1.3 An area which the self-evaluation was RAG rated as Red was on the implementation of 

reasonable adjustments to everyday services to improve access and support for people 
with autism. The reason this was RAG rated as red was that whilst autism awareness and 
the requirement is more prevalent within health and social care, this is not the case across 
everyday services within the wider health and public sector.  

 
4.2 TRAINING 

  
4.2.1 The purpose of the training section was to gauge the progress made in the provision of 

autism training and associated awareness within health and social care organisations 
specifically, and the public sector more generally. 

 
4.2.2 In terms of good practice the Autism Sub-Group have developed an autism competencies 

framework to support organisations identify training requirements within their workforce, 
and in partnership with City College Peterborough an autism awareness training module. 
The autism awareness training module has been accessed by a number of social care 
providers and local Housing Associations in addition to Adult Social Care Staff. 
Peterborough City Council has developed an eLearning module which can be accessed by 
all its staff in addition to a 4 day course run by Northumbria University for its health and 
social care staff. Peterborough City Hospital has also developed an eLearning module.  

 
4.2.3 Whilst there are areas of good practice, further development work within Primary Care is 

on-going.      
 
4.3 AUTISM DIAGNOSIS 
 
4.3.1 The purpose of this section was to gauge the progress made in developing an autism 

diagnosis service and associated pathway. The provision of this was a key requirement in 
the National Autism Strategy.  

 

110



4.3.2 A Peterborough diagnosis service and pathway was commissioned in April 2013. The 
Peterborough diagnosis service is an extension of the existing Cambridgeshire wide 
‘CLASS’ Clinic provided by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Foundation Trust, with 
the ‘CLASS’ clinic providing surgeries at the Cavell Centre in Peterborough. The diagnosis 
pathway was developed at a multi-agency workshop led by CPFT and has been distributed 
to all GP Surgeries within the city. 

 
4.4 CARE AND SUPPORT 

 
4.4.1 The purpose of this section was to gauge the progress in identifying and recording those on 

the autistic spectrum, both with a co-morbidity of a learning disability and a diagnosis of 
autism, receiving community care services and the support available in accessing support 
including the provision of advocacy and information 

  
4.4.2 Peterborough City Council provides an integrated health and social care service for adults 

with a learning disability and autism and through its Frameworki data base is able to collect 
data on those on the autistic spectrum eligible for community care services. The self-
evaluation did identify areas of improvements required in relation to the provision of 
information and advice for adults on the autistic spectrum, whether or not in receipt of 
community care services, and provision of advocacy and their skill base of advocates in 
providing advocacy to adults with autism. The provision of a training programme to ensure 
advocates are trained to support adults with autism was RAG rated as Red. Both of these 
issues will be taken forward as part of the Adult Social Care Transformation programme 
and re-commissioning of advocacy services.     

          
5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 The self-evaluation was considered and validated by the Learning Disability Partnership 
Board Autism Sub-Group on Thursday 19th September 2013 and the outcomes entered on 
the Public Health England web page: https://www.improvinghealthandlives.org.uk/   

   
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

6.1 The Autism Sub-Group and its partners have worked successfully to begin the process of 
raising awareness of autism and improving services through the provision of reasonable 
adjustments. The autism commissioning strategy has provided a framework within which to 
undertake the work required and the Autism Working-Group monitors implementation of 
the strategy action plan. The commissioning of a Peterborough based diagnosis service 
and associated pathway has been a notable success which will allow people to receive a 
diagnosis without the requirement to travel to Cambridge. The City College Peterborough 
training programme has been well attended by local learning disability service providers 
and housing associations, and the intention is to further develop this going forward to 
engage providers of everyday services. The deficiencies noted in information and 
advocacy will be addressed through the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme and 
re-commissioning of advocacy services.  In terms of supporting people on the autistic 
spectrum who are not eligible for community care services, it has been recognised that 
transitional support and reablement should be offered to reflect the time required by the 
individual to gain independent living skills and community support using mainstream 
services.    

      
6.2 An Action Plan arising from the self-evaluation has been developed and is reviewed by the 

Autism Working-Group. The Action Plan will inform the Autism Strategy refresh which will 
take place during 2014 (See Action Plan Appendix 2). 

 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 Public Health England have made it a requirement that Health and Wellbeing Boards 
review the outcomes of the Autism Self-Evaluation. The Board is recommended to note the 
contents of the report as the Self-Evaluation has been reviewed and validated by the 

111



Learning Disability Partnership Board Autism Working-Group and will be presented to the 
Learning Disabilities Executive Commissioning Board. 

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 The option of the Health and Wellbeing Board delegating responsibility to the Learning 
Disability Partnership Board was considered and rejected due to the requirement with the 
Autism Self-Evaluation guidance that it be reported directly to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. The rationale for this was to ensure that the Autism agenda is recognised and 
promoted by members of the board. 

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 There are no legal or governance issues relating to the report. 
 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  

  Autism Self- Evaluation Report 2013 
 
 The National Autism Strategy 2010  
 
 Peterborough Local Autism Commissioning Strategy in 2011.  
 
  

112



 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

Autism Self-Assessment Summary 2013    

 

Local Authority Area 

1. How many Clinical Commissioning groups do you need to work with to 

implement the Adult autism strategy in your area? 

Answer: One, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 

   

2. Are you working with other local authorities to implement part or all of the 

priorities of the strategy? 

Answer: No 

 

Planning 

3. Do you have a named joint commissioner/senior manager responsible for 

services for adults with autism? 

Answer: Yes. Head of Integrated Health and Social Care Mental Health and 

Learning Disability Commissioning.  

 

4. Is autism included in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment? 

Score: Amber 

Comments: JNSA includes prevalence rates for autism. 

 

5. Have you started to collect data on people with a diagnosis of autism? 

Score: Amber 

Comments: Data collection protocol being agreed with CCG after commissioning 

of the Peterborough diagnosis service in April 2013. This will establish a baseline 

of the gaps in services after diagnosis. Health data is also collected as part of the 

annual health and social care learning disability self assessment. 

   

6. Do you collect data on the number of people with a diagnosis of autism 

meeting eligibility criteria for social care (irrespective of whether they receive 

any)? 

Answer: Yes 

If yes, what is: 

• Total number of people? 105 

• The number who also identified as having a learning disability: 83 

• The number who are identified as also having mental health problems: 13  

• Remaining 9 people have neither a learning disability nor mental health 

illness. 

Comments. Data is sourced via Framework (council ASC database). Frameworki 

database further informed by GP patient specific documentation, psychology and 

psychiatry assessments. Data feeds into the annual health and social care learning 

disability annual self assessment. 

 

   7. Does your commissioning plan reflect local data and needs of people with 

autism? 

Answer: Yes 

Comments: The Commissioning plan contains local and national data available on 

autism and reflects the needs of people with autism as expressed during strategy 

113



 

 

development consultation. Strategy action plan has been reviewed and updated every 

year. 

 

8. What data sources do you use? 

Score: Amber 

Comments: quantitative data sources include social care data from the councils adult 

social care database frameworki, transitions and JNSA, health data collected as part of 

the annual health and social care learning disability annual health self assessment and 

qualitative data sources such as views and experiences of self advocates and families. 

A service user satisfaction survey has been developed and was issued during August 

2013 in partnership with the local NAS branch which will inform development of new 

commissioning strategy in 2014.     

      

9. Is your local Clinical Commissioning Group or Clinical Commissioning 

Group (including the Support Service) engaged in planning and 

implementation of the strategy in your local area?  

Score: Green 

Comments. LCG is engaged through the lead GP for Learning Disability and Mental 

Health and partnership between the council and CCG through the s.75 agreement 

which permits the council to provide integrated health and social care services for 

adults with a learning disability and autism.  In order to manage the s75 agreement 

specifically, and develop services more generally, a learning disability commissioning 

board has been established to which the LDPB nominates two members to attend. The 

commissioning board reports to the Health and Wellbeing Board. The Autism Sub-

Group of the LDPB formally nominates one member to attend the LDPB, thereby 

establishing a formal link to the commissioning and health and wellbeing board.  The 

lead GP chairs the LDPB Health Sub-Group.    

    

10. How have you and your partners engaged people with autism and their carers 

in planning? 

Score: Green 

Comments: The LDPB Autism Sub-Group provides the forum for engaging statutory 

and voluntary sector partners and self advocates and their families and carers. The 

sub-group is co-chaired by the learning disability integrated health and social care 

commissioner and a representative from the local NAS branch. An example of active 

engagement was the development of a set of staff competencies to support 

organisations to identify the training requirements of their staff.   

 

11. Have reasonable adjustments been made to everyday services to improve 

access and support for people with autism? 

Score: Red 

Comments: The autism sub-group has led on a programme to raise awareness of 

autism which is leading organisations to improve their services through making 

reasonable adjustments. The sub-group have worked in partnership with City College 

Peterborough to develop an autism awareness raising course which has been made 

available to statutory and voluntary sector organisations to purchase from the college.      

 

 

 

 

114



 

 

 

12. Do you have a Transition process in place from Children’s social services to 

Adult social services? 

Answer: Yes 

Comments. The council has a transitions policy and protocol. This is automatic for 

young people identified as being eligible for adult social care service. Parental 

consent for referral of young people’s details to adult services is required for those 

under 18 years of age.    

  

13. Does your planning consider the particular needs of older people with autism?  

 Score: Amber. 

Comments. The commissioning strategy provides a structure to improve services for 

younger and older adults with autism. No particular emphasis has been made for older 

people with autism, for example autism awareness training is available to all health 

and social care provider regardless of their focus on younger or older adults. 

 

Training 

 

14. Have you got a multi-agency training plan? 

Answer: No 

 

15. Is autism awareness training being/been made available to all staff working in 

health and social care? 

Score: Amber 

Comments. The Autism Sub-Group have developed a competencies framework to 

support health and social care organisations to assess their staff knowledge and skills 

in supporting adults with autism, and in partnership with City College Peterborough 

(CCP) an autism awareness training module which is delivered in a classroom setting 

by tutors from the college and a self advocate. The training module is available to 

purchase to all health and social care organisations in the city. The autism strategy 

action plan identifies the autism awareness training being provided by health and 

social care organisations.  

 

Peterborough City Council has developed an on-line training module which can be 

accessed by all staff within the council. This has been accessed by 37 staff members 

and completed by 28.   

 

16. Is specific training being/been provided to staff that carry out statutory 
assessments on how to make adjustments in their approach and 

communication? 

Score: Amber: ASC staff are able to access the CCP autism awareness course training 

free of charge. 

 

17. Have Clinical Commissioning Groups(s) been involved in the development of 

workforce planning and are general practitioners and primary care practitioners 

engaged in the training agenda?  

Answer: No.  

Comment. The autism staff competencies framework and training module have been 

made available to the CCG and individual GP practices. Further engagement with 

CCG and GP practices will be co-ordinated through the lead GP for learning disability 

115



 

 

and mental health. Individual GP practices have benefitted from nurse and 

receptionist training to support delivery of the Learning Disability Directed Enhanced 

Service annual health check programme delivered by learning disability health staff 

within the council, which includes autism awareness. 

 

18. Have local Criminal Justice service engaged in the training agenda? 

Answer :Yes.  

Comments: Cambridgeshire Police and Safer Peterborough Partnership are members 

of the LDPB Autism Sub-Group and supported development of the competencies 

framework. 

 

Diagnosis led by local NHS Commissioner 

 

19. Have you got an established local diagnosis pathway? 

Rating: Green 

Comments. A Peterborough based diagnosis service and pathway was commissioned 

in April 2013. The diagnosis service is an extension of an existing Cambridgeshire 

wide ‘CLASS’ service provided by Peterborough and Cambridgeshire NHS 

Foundation Trust (CPFT). The Cambridgeshire wide ‘CLASS’ service was previously 

available to residents of Peterborough. The diagnosis pathway was developed in 

partnership by Peterborough City Council, CPFT, CCG and autism sub-group.  

 

20. If you have an established local diagnosis pathway, when was the pathway put 

in place? 

Answer: April 2013        

 

21. How long is the average wait for referral to diagnostic services? 

Answer: Awaiting data.  

 

22. How many people have completed the pathway in the last year? 

Answer: Awaiting data. 

 

23. Has the local Clinical Commissioning Group(s)/support services taken the 

lead in developing the pathway? 

Answer. No. 

Comments. The responsibility for learning disability health commissioning has been 

delegated to Peterborough City Council under the s.75 agreement, and as such the 

council led on the development of the diagnosis pathway. The diagnosis pathway was 

developed at a multi-disciplinary workshop which included representatives the CCG, 

provider foundation trust, learning disability health team, council Carers Lead and 

NAS representative. The pathway was reviewed by the LDPB Health Sub-Group 

which is chaired by lead GP for mental health and learning disability.     

 

24. How would you describe the local diagnosis pathway, ie integrated with 

mainstream service with a specialist awareness of autism or a specialist autism 

specific service? 

Answer: Specialist autism specific service. 

Comment. The pathway has three elements, for those with co-morbidity of learning 

disability or mental health referral is into an integrated mainstream service. For those 

with autism/aspergers referral is to an autism specific diagnosis service.   

116



 

 

 

25. In your local diagnosis pathway does a diagnosis of autism automatically 

trigger an offer of a Community Care Assessment? 

Answer: Yes 

 

26. What post-diagnosis support (in a wider personalisation perspective, not just 

assuming statutory services, is available to people diagnosed? 

Comments: Peterborough City Council is commissioning a range of preventative and 

transitional support  services for those people not eligible for community care services 

after an assessment.   

 

Care and Support 

 

27. Of those adults who were assessed as being eligible for adult care services and 

are in receipt of a personal budget, how many people have a diagnosis of Autism 

both with a co-occurring learning disability and without? 

 

a) Number of adults assessed as being eligible for adult social care services and in 

receipt of a personal budget: 57 

b) Number of those reported in 27a. who have a diagnosis of autism but not learning 

disability: 4 

c) Number of those reported in 27a. who have both a diagnosis of Autism AND 

Learning Disability: 53      

 

28. Do you have a single identifiable contact point where people with autism 

whether or not in receipt of statutory services can get information signposting 

autism friendly entry points for a wide range of local services?  

Answer:  No.  

Comments. The council has launched an on-line community care directory which will 

be developed to provide range of information on autism friendly services. 

 

29. Do you have a recognised pathway for people with autism but without a 

learning disability to assessment and other support?  

Answer: Yes. 

Comment. The council has as an established pathway for all adults to access a 

community care assessment.  

   

30. Do you have a programme in place to ensure that all advocates working with 

people with autism have training in their specific requirements? 

Answer: No. Red  

Comment. Advocates have had the opportunity to access the City College 

Peterborough autism awareness training course.  As part of the new contract this will 

be a requirement.   

 

31. Do adults with autism who could not otherwise meaningfully participate in 

needs assessments, care and support planning, appeals, reviews, or safeguarding 

processes have access to an advocate? 

Rating: Amber. Advocacy services are secured to meet this objective as required. 

 

117



 

 

32. Can people with autism access support if they are non fair Access Criteria 

eligible or not eligible or not eligible statutory services? 

Answer. Yes.  

Comments. Those people who are not assessed as being eligible for services will be 

offered a preventative or reablement service if this is deemed to be appropriate to 

support/maintain their independence without recourse to statutory services. 

 

33. How would you access the level of information about local support in your 

area being accessible to people with autism? 

Rating: Red   

Comments. The council has launched an on-line community care directory which 

does/will include services for adults with autism. 

 

34. Does your local housing strategy specifically identify autism? 

Rating: Green.  

Comments A learning disability and autism housing strategy was developed in 2013. 

This is an appendix to the main council housing strategy. 

 

35. How have you promoted in your area the employment of people on the 

Autistic spectrum? 

Rating: Amber. Comment. Employment opportunities for adults with autism are 

promoted through the councils in-house supported employment service. An initiative 

to raise awareness of the benefits of employing adults with autism with the local 

Chamber of Commerce in partnership with the local NAS will be taken forward 

during 2013/14. A representative from JCP sits on the Autism Sub-Group. 

 

36. Do transition processes to adult services have an employment focus? 

Answer:  Yes. Rating – Amber 

Comments: The councils’ transitions strategy recognises the importance of 

employment as part of the transitions process. 

 

Criminal Justice System (CJS) 

 

37. Are the CJS engaging with you as a key partner in your planning for adults for 

adults with autism? 

Rating: Amber Cambridgeshire police and the Safer Peterborough Partnership (SPP) 

are members of the autism sub-group and supported the development of the 

competencies framework. The police have presented to the sub-group on their 

approach to hate crime and the SPP have made available funding for the ‘safe place’ 

scheme which supports adults with autism in the community.          

     

        

                   

118



APPENDIX B  

2013 Autism Self Evaluation 

2014/15 Improvement/Action Plan 

 

Question  RAG Rating Comments Action Owner By When 

Is Autism 

Included in the 

local JSNA? 

Amber Prevalence 

rates currently 

included.    

To provide 

comprehensive 

data within 

refresh of JSNA. 

RM Next refresh 

of JSNA 

Have you 

started to 

collect data on 

people with a 

diagnosis of 

autism? 

Amber Data collection 

protocol to be 

agreed with 

CCG. 

To agree 

protocol with 

CCG to collect 

data from GP 

practices on 

outcomes of 

diagnosis – 

identify gaps in 

services and 

trends.  

 

 

RM On-going 

What data 

collection 

sources do you 

use to inform 

commissioning 

strategy? 

Amber Available 

health and 

social care data 

sourced and 

utilised. 

To utilise data 

from local NAS 

branch service 

users 

satisfaction 

survey and 

conference(s). 

RM 31.03.2014 

Have 

reasonable 

adjustments 

been made to 

everyday 

services to 

improve access 

and support for 

people with 

autism?  

Red Autism Sub-

Group has led 

on autism 

awareness 

raising – CCP 

course. 

Market CCP 

course to 

independent 

health sector 

organisations. 

 

Agree feedback 

from Serco on 

contract 

monitoring – 

EoE ADAS 

Contract.    

RM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RM 

31.03.2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31.03.2014 

Is autism 

awareness 

training 

being/been 

made available 

to all staff 

working in 

health and 

social care? 

Amber Competencies 

framework/CCP 

course 

Survey health 

and social 

organisations on 

provision of 

autism 

awareness 

training. 

RM 31.06.2014 

119



Is specific 

training 

being/been 

provided to all 

staff that carry 

out statutory 

assessments 

on how to 

make 

adjustments in 

their approach 

and 

communication 

Amber Access to CPP 

course. 

Learning 

Disability and 

Autism team to 

undertake 4 day 

bespoke autism 

course run by an 

external 

provider early in 

2014.   

 

Representatives 

from 

Community 

Team and 

Learning 

Disability Team 

to undertake 

CPP training 

course. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RM 

 

On-going 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31.03.2014 

Have CCG’s 

been involved 

in the 

development 

of workforce 

planning and 

are general 

practitioners 

engaged in the 

training 

agenda? 

No CCP course, 

DES training 

Raise 

importance of 

autism 

awareness 

training with 

GP’s through 

Lead GP writing 

to practices. 

Offer CCP 

training as an 

option.     

 

RM 31.03.2014 

Do you have a 

single 

identifiable 

contact point 

where people 

with autism 

whether or not 

in receipt of 

statutory 

services can 

get 

information 

signposting 

autism-friendly 

entry points for 

a wide range of 

local services?  

No Developing on-

line community 

care directory. 

To ensure 

autism reflected 

in work streams 

in ASC 

Transformation 

programme. 

RM On-going 

Do you have a 

programme in 

place to ensure 

Red Advocates have 

opportunity to 

access CCP 

To include 

requirement 

within Advocacy 

RM On-going 

120



that all 

advocates 

working with 

people with 

autism have 

training in their 

specific 

requirements? 

course. Service 

Specification for 

providers to 

evidence ASC 

training 

provided. (Re-

commissioning 

of advocacy 

services)   

How would you 

assess the level 

of information 

about local 

support in your 

area being 

accessible to 

people with 

autism?  

Red PCC is 

developing an 

on-line care 

directory. 

To ensure 

requirements of 

autism is 

included within 

the 

development of 

the on-line 

directory and 

‘new front door’. 

RM On-going 

   

121



122

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

16
 
JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Director for Communities Tel. 01733 
863749 

 
EXECUTIVE GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Director of Communities Deadline date N/A 

The Board is asked to comment on and agree the Terms of reference for the recently formed 
executive group that will support the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board following the agreement of the 
Board to the development of an executive group to support the work of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek comments on the Draft Terms of Reference for the Health 
and Wellbeing Board Executive Group. 

 
2.2 To agree the Draft Terms of Reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board Executive Group.  
 
3. BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY  
 

3.1     It was acknowledged by the Health and Wellbeing Board that to drive the delivery of activity            
required to address the priorities in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy the formation of an            
Executive group would be appropriate. 

 
3.2      The Executive group has met twice and developed terms of reference attached at Appendix 1.  
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board were in support of the development of an 
Executive group.    

 

5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1    The Executive group will ensure that the activities required to deliver the priorities in the            

Health and Wellbeing Strategy are driven and will inform the future development of the 
Strategy.   

 

6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1    The Health and Wellbeing Board need to be confident that the terms of reference of the            

Executive Group reflect the needs to support the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board. . 
 

7.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
7.1      None 
 

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



�

���������	�� 	

���������	�
��������������
����������
������
��������������������������� ���������� ����!��"#��

$��%#����&���������

�
�
�'� ��"�#��

�

������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������� ����������������������� �������������������������������!������"#��
$�������������������������"�����������%����������%�������������������������� ��������
��  ������������������������������ ��&���������������� ��������������'�������������
������  ����������������� ����#��
��������������������������������������"��������
����#�
�
���������������������������"��������(��)*+����������������������������������
����������������������������������#���

�

�����������������������������������)*��������������������������������������
������������������������������������������"���,�

�

�� ��������������������

�� ��������������������

�� �"�������������������

�� �������������������

�� ��������������� ��

�� �������������������#��
�

-�������������������  ����������������� ����������������������������������"�����
���������.�����"%����������������������������"%������������������������������������
� ���������� ����������/�������������������� ���#��

�
�'� ��#����

�
!���������������� ��������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������
���0�#�

�
('� ����
�)� ���*�+���� �#�
�
�

�� 
�� ����������0�������������������������������������������� ���� �
��������������������������������.������������������ � �����������������������#�

�

�� 
������������������%��� ���������������������������������������������� ����
�����������������"������������������������#��

�

�� 
������������������������������������������������������� ��������������� ����
����� ����������%���������������������������������������������� ��������
����������������������� ��������������������������#�

�

�� 
��������������������������%��������������������������� ���������������
 �'����"����������������������������� ���������������������������� ��#�

�

�� 
��������������  ���������������������������������������"��������������
����������������������������������������������"�����������������������������1�
�����������"�������  �������������������"����������#�

APPENDIX 1

125



�

���������	�� �

�

�� 
����  ����������������������������%���������������������� ��"���������#��
�

�� 
������������������������� ��������������"���������������"#�
�
�'� ,��� ����#�
�


����������������������������,�
��

�� ����������������

�� -�����!���������������������������������� ������������ ���������������
���������������������������������������

�� 
�����������������������������

�� -����������� �������� ������

�� 
������������������ ������������������

�� 2�  ���������������������"�����������"��������������������������

�� �������������������������������������.��������������������������.���������

�� )������ ���������  ����"��������"����������������� �������� �����
�
�
	'� ,���������������������#����%�-����

�
�������������"���������������������������������������������������������������������
!������"�2�  ������������"����������������������#��

�
�

.'� /�%���#
�"��������0��������%������#�
�


������������������������ ��������,�
�

�� 3�������������"������%�2������������2�  ����"��!��������

�� 2�������4� �����������������������������

�� 5�������

�� ����������2��������!��������������������

�� 2��������2�  ����������*�����

�� !��������

�� -���2������5�����

�� ������������

�� 6�������"�!������7���������������

�� �������
�

������)*0�������������������������"������������ � ���������������������������
���������������������%������������� ���������������,�
�

�� �������2����8����

�� -�����2�  ����������8��� ������������2����8����

�� -!9��

�� 2������������8� ������-�����2�  ����������������(����� �"������������������
������0������"����������������������������������+�

�

�����������������282������� ������ ��� � ����:������"#�
����������������������
�������������������������� ����������������������������������#��

�

���������������������������� �"��������������������"���#����

�

126



�

���������	�� ;

��������������������������� �����������������������������������������������������
���� �������#�4������������������������������������������������������������"���������
 ������#�5������������2��"�2��������������������������3�������������"��������������
�� ����������������������������������������������������#�

��

�

������<���=����������

)������������2�  ��������

>���-�����"���	?�

127



128

This page is intentionally left blank



 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 12 

16 JANUARY 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officer(s): Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, Director for Communities Tel. 01733 
863749 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY DELIVERY PLAN UPDATE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Assistant Director 
Strategy, Commissioning & Prevention Children’s 
Services 

Deadline date N/A 

The Board is asked to note the updated Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan (Appendix 1).  

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Board following an update to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
Delivery Plan. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to present the updated Delivery Plan that supports the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and for the Board to note the updates and progress made on the 
performance measures. 

 
3. BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY  

 

3.1 Following the development of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy a delivery plan was 
developed that details work across adult, children and health services that will support 
delivery of the priorities in the Strategy.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 A number of consultation events supported the development of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  

 

5.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

5.1 That the Board notes the updated Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan and 
continues to receive updates as appropriate. 

 
6.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The guidance about health and wellbeing system improvement identifies the need for 
Health and Wellbeing Boards to focus on the wider determinants of health and not just the 
more obvious determinants and actions of agencies such as the Local Authority and 
Health.  

 
7.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
7.1     Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan.  

129



130

This page is intentionally left blank



 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 O
n
e
: 
S
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
J
a
n
e
t 
D
u
ll
a
g
h
a
n
 

A
im
s
: 

 1
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 l
if
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 l
if
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

1
.1
.1
 

P
re
g
n
a
n
t 
m
o
th
e
rs
 

w
h
o
 s
m
o
k
e
 a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
to
p
 

s
m
o
k
in
g
. 
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 

ra
te
s
 i
n
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

fr
o
m
 1
7
.7
%
 t
o
 1
6
%
 

b
y
 2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 t
o
 1
4
%
 

b
y
 2
0
1
6
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 b
o
rn
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 

b
ir
th
 r
a
te
s
. 

 

P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

le
a
d
 

C
h
e
ry
l 

M
c
Q
u
ir
e
  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
h
e
 L
iv
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 S
m
o
k
e
 f
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 

o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

q
u
it
te
rs
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 t
ra
je
c
to
ry
  

A
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
m
o
k
e
 f
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 

p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
w
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 s
m
o
k
e
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

a
t 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 L
iv
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 
W
e
 a
re
 

e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 h
o
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 

u
s
e
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  
 

S
u
c
h
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 m
o
re
 

w
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 s
m
o
k
e
 b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

. 
‘L
o
w
 b
ir
th
 r
a
te
’ 
is
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

 L
a
te
s
t 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 (
2
0
1
1
) 
is
 

th
a
t 
o
f 
a
ll 
liv
e
 b
ir
th
s
 a
t 
te
rm
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 

b
ir
th
 w
e
ig
h
t 
w
a
s
 2
.8
3
%
, 
th
is
 i
s
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 

th
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
2
.8
5
%
. 

A
m
b
e
r 

131



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
it
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

re
g
io
n
, 
L
u
to
n
 s
ta
n
d
s
 a
lo
n
e
 a
t 
5
.3
0
%
 

w
h
ile
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 i
s
 N
o
rf
o
lk
 

2
.0
3
%
. 

  
 

1
.1
.2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
; 
T
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
s
e
t 
b
y
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 f
o
r 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 

in
it
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 o
f 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 a
t 
6
-8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 i
s
 4
8
%
 

in
it
ia
ti
o
n
 

 

N
H
S
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
  

S
h
a
ro
n
 

P
a
lm
e
r 

C
C
G
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
i

o
n
e
rs
  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

d
a
ta
 

M
a
te
rn
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 w
h
ils
t 
H
e
a
lt
h
 V
is
it
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
. 
Is
s
u
e
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

n
e
w
 m
o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
P
F
T
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
; 
o
v
e
ra
ll 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 l
ie
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
  

 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 U
p
d
a
te
: 

B
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 

in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
in
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 w
a
s
 

3
6
.6
%
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

fi
g
u
re
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
; 
th
e
re
 a
re
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 

o
b
ta
in
in
g
 f
ig
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 f
ro
m
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
, 
w
h
e
re
 b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 

ra
te
s
 a
re
 h
ig
h
e
r.
  

C
le
a
rl
y
 t
h
is
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 b
e
lo
w
 

ta
rg
e
t,
 a
n
d
 w
h
ile
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 U
N
IC
E
F
 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 g
iv
in
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
s
 y
e
t 
a
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
im
p
a
c
t.

  
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
d
 

132



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w
 r
a
te
 o
f 
b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
 l
o
c
a
lly
 i
s
 

n
o
w
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
m
u
c
h
 c
lo
s
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
a
te
s
 i
n
 

th
is
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 

lif
e
. 
T
h
e
 B
re
a
s
t 
fe
e
d
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 g
ro
u
p
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
, 
le
a
d
 b
y
 p
u
b
lic
 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 

 
1
.1
.3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C
h
ild
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 w
it
h
in
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

c
h
ild
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
N
e
w
 b
ir
th
 v
is
it
 

w
it
h
in
 f
ir
s
t 
1
4
 

d
a
y
s
 9
5
%
 

•
 
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 s
e
e
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 2
 ½
  
y
e
a
r 

c
h
e
c
k
 9
5
%
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

c
h
ild
h
o
o
d
 

im
m
u
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

ra
te
s
; 
ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

H
P
V
 9
0
%
 l
o
c
a
lly
, 

8
5
%
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

o
b
e
s
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
h
ild
h
o
o
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
(N
C
M

P
) 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

S
h
a
ro
n
 

P
a
lm
e
r 

(N
H
S
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 

H
V
’s
) 

J
a
n
e
t 

D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
 

(s
c
h
o
o
l 

N
u
rs
in
g
) 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 H
e
a
lt
h
 V
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
, 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
s
 w
it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 e
a
rl
y
 

y
e
a
rs
’ 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 3
 m
o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
; 
th
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 s
o
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
  

 N
e
w
 b
ir
th
 v
is
it
s
 w
it
h
in
 1
4
 d
a
y
s
 a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 9
4
.3
%
 -
 S
lig
h
tl
y
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 

o
f 
9
5
%
, 
b
u
t 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 o
n
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
’ 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
8
8
%
. 

 2
½
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
t 

7
9
.5
%
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 t
ra
je
c
to
ry
 i
s
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 7
5
%
. 

H
P
V
 i
m
m
u
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 a
re
: 
 

•
 
8
8
.5
%
 1
s
t  d
o
s
e
 

A
m
b
e
r 

133



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

y
e
a
r 
6
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
re
 9
0
%
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 w
e
ig
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
  

 

•
 
8
8
.2
%
  
2
n
d
 d
o
s
e
 

•
 
8
6
.7
%
 3
rd
 d
o
s
e
 

T
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
5
%
 b
u
t 
s
lig
h
tl
y
 b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%
. 
T
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 

tr
a
je
c
to
ry
 o
f 
u
p
ta
k
e
 i
s
 p
re
d
ic
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m
e
t.
  

T
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
  

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 w
h
e
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

3
rd
 d
o
s
e
 w
a
s
 o
n
ly
 j
u
s
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 5
0
%
. 
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
h
il
d
h
o
o
d
 M
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
N
C
M
P
) 

9
5
%
 o
f 
re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 p
u
p
ils
 a
n
d
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 

y
e
a
r 
6
 c
h
ild
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
e
ig
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
e
ig
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 t
h
a
t:
 

•
 
1
0
%
 o
f 
re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 
o
r 

o
b
e
s
e
 

•
 
2
1
%
 o
f 
y
e
a
r 
s
ix
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
s
 o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 
o
r 
o
b
e
s
e
. 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

w
it
h
in
 t
a
rg
e
t 
(1
1
%
) 
fo
r 
re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
d
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 b
u
t 
o
v
e
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
(1
5
%
) 
fo
r 
y
e
a
r 

s
ix
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 

T
h
e
 N
C
M
P
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 s
o
 w
e
 w
ill
 s
h
o
rt
ly
 h
a
v
e
 

134



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 o
u
t 
tu
rn
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 t
h
a
t 

is
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 o
b
e
s
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 
M
o
re
lif
e
 w
e
ig
h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 –
 1
2
 w
e
e
k
 

fa
m
ily
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 

o
r 
o
b
e
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 5
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
 y
e
a
r.
  
2
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

ru
n
n
in
g
, 
1
 f
o
r 
a
g
e
 4
-1
0
 a
n
d
 1
 a
g
e
 1
1
-

1
7
. 
 D
a
ta
 o
n
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 ’
1
4
. 
 1
2
 p
la
c
e
s
 o
n
 

e
a
c
h
 c
o
u
rs
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
/r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

W
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
. 
 F
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

w
ill
 r
u
n
 2
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 

(w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

w
it
h
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
o
b
e
s
e
/o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 

c
h
ild
re
n
) 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
e
a
m
 i
s
 

lo
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
w
a
y
s
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 b
y
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

•
 
M
o
v
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
h
a
k
e
rs
 –
 w
ill
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 

J
a
n
 1
4
 –
 s
e
lf
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
s
 f
o
llo
w
 o
n
 

fr
o
m
 M
o
re
lif
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 w
a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
 i
n
 a
 s
a
fe
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t)
. 
 6
 w
e
e
k
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

O
th
e
r 
m
a
in
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 –
 C
h
a
n
g
e
4
L
if
e
 (
th
ro
u
g
h
 

135



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
).
  
A
ft
e
r 
C
h
ri
s
tm
a
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
e
w
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 –
 F
o
o
d
s
m
a
rt
 –
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 e
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
ig
n
in
g
 u
p
 f
o
r 

re
c
ip
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 v
o
u
c
h
e
rs
. 

 
1
.1
.4
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 m
o
th
e
rs
 

P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
  
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
n
 d
a
ta
 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

L
o
c
a
l 
ra
te
s
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
to
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 h
a
v
e
 r
is
e
n
 

s
h
a
rp
ly
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
2
 f
ro
m
 2
8
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 t
o
 3
8
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 

–
 t
h
is
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 i
n
 

re
c
e
n
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
s
in
c
e
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 

 T
ra
c
k
in
g
 h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 a
 m
a
jo
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 

o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 

T
h
e
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm
e
d
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
. 
K
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 

M
id
w
iv
e
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 m
u
m
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
g
u
n
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

d
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
ill
 a
llo
w
 b
e
tt
e
r 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

tr
e
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 

th
a
n
 r
e
ly
in
g
 o
n
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

a
lw
a
y
s
 v
e
ry
 o
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te
. 
  

O
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
is
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

A
m
b
e
r 

136



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m
u
m
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
 t
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 t
im
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m
u
m
s
 h
a
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro
m
 5
%
 t
o
 1
%
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 
1
.1
.5
 

E
n
s
u
re
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

th
e
 c
h
ild
c
a
re
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 

o
f 
a
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
. 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

c
h
ild
 c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
s
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 c
h
ild
 c
a
re
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
 

c
a
re
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 o
r 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 

O
F
S
T
E
D
. 

P
a
m
 

S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
h
e
 E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 M
a
rk
e
t 
S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 m
o
n
th
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
3
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
 n
e
e
d
 

fo
r 
3
8
0
 n
e
w
 p
la
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
0
-4
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
, 

w
it
h
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 p
la
c
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
A
re
a
s
 o
f 

th
e
 C
it
y
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

s
h
o
rt
a
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 

F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
in
 O
rt
o
n
 w
it
h
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 

w
a
rd
, 
a
n
d
 e
x
tr
a
 1
0
0
 p
la
c
e
s
 w
e
re
 

p
ro
je
c
te
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 3
9
6
 

s
in
c
e
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 –
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

to
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 2
0
1
4
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

a
re
a
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
o
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
o
n
ly
 2
0
 n
e
w
 p
la
c
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

p
a
rt
ly
 o
ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 o
v
e
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 O
rt
o
n
 L
o
n
g
e
u
v
ill
e
 –
 

A
m
b
e
r 

137



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
y
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 i
n
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 w
a
rd
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 O
rt
o
n
 w
it
h
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
p
la
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
re
-s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 V
a
le
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
  

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 5
,4
6
3
 p
la
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
g
e
d
 0
-4
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 –
 4
5
7
5
 a
t 

P
V
I 
s
e
c
to
r 
p
re
-s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
2
3
4
 i
n
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 n
u
rs
e
ry
 a
n
d
 s
im
ila
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 6
5
4
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
-

m
in
d
e
rs
. 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 s
h
o
rt
fa
lls
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
 i
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 

o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
ta
k
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

ty
p
e
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 c
h
ild
 

m
in
d
e
rs
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
O
F
S
T
E
D
’s
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
G
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 A
b
o
v
e
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
ra
ti
n
g
 a
s
 o
f 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 f
o
r 
g
o
o
d
 

a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 i
s
 7
4
%
 -
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 f
ro
m
 

6
9
%
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
, 
7
7
%
 o
f 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 a
re
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 

138



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

g
o
o
d
 o
r 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
. 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 c
lo
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
 w
it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 

d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
 

 A
s
 o
f 
1
s
t  N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
; 

 O
f 
th
e
 1
0
6
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 c
h
ild
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
; 
6
 (
6
%
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l)
 a
re
 

a
w
a
it
in
g
 a
 f
ir
s
t 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

O
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 

•
 
1
8
 (
1
8
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
) 
a
re
 

g
ra
d
e
d
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
6
5
 (
6
5
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
) 
a
re
 

g
ra
d
e
d
 g
o
o
d
 

•
 
1
7
 (
1
7
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
) 
a
re
 

g
ra
d
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 

•
 
4
9
 (
2
7
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
) 
a
re
 

g
ra
d
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 

   
1
.1
.6
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 F
a
m
ily
 N
u
rs
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

T
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

G
e
s
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
o
a
l:
 

6
0
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 

e
n
ro
lle
d
 b
y
 1
6
th
 

w
e
e
k
; 

D
o
s
a
g
e
 G
o
a
l:
 

e
a
c
h
 c
lie
n
t 
to
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 8
0
%
 o
f 

K
ir
s
ty
 

L
y
n
n
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 F
N
P
 

B
o
a
rd
 

 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 U
p
d
a
te
: 

T
h
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 F
N
P
 i
s
 n
o
w
 

w
e
ll 
e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 m
o
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 F
N
P
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

V
is
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 M
id
w
iv
e
s
. 
D
a
ta
 b
e
lo
w
 i
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
to
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

is
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
: 

 

139



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 v
is
it
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
; 

A
tt
ri
ti
o
n
 G
o
a
l:
 

d
ro
p
o
u
t 
ra
te
 o
f 
n
o
 

m
o
re
 t
h
a
t 
4
0
%
 

(1
0
%
 i
n
 

p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
, 
2
0
%
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 i
n
fa
n
c
y
, 

1
0
%
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

in
fa
n
th
o
o
d
. 

 
 

 

•
 
G
e
s
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
o
a
l 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 7
0
.6
 %
 

w
e
ll 
a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
6
0
%
 

•
 
D
o
s
a
g
e
 G
o
a
l:
 a
t 
6
9
.2
%
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 a
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 i
n
 

fi
rs
t 
y
e
a
r 
o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
  

•
 
E
lig
ib
le
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
ro
lle
d
 -
 7
3
.9
%
 

(f
id
e
lit
y
 g
o
a
l 
7
5
%
) 

A
tt
ri
ti
o
n
 G
o
a
l,
 D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
h
o
rt
  
J
u
ly
2
0
1
4
. 

  
 

  

1
.1
.7
 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 M
u
m
s
 

(p
e
ri
-n
a
ta
l)
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 

in
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

S
o
lih
u
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
o
th
e
rs
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
; 

•
 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
. 

F
io
n
a
 

B
a
u
k
e
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

B
a
rn
a
rd
o
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

M
id
w
if
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

S
o
lih
u
ll 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 a
 p
ilo
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 I
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 i
t 
is
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
o
ll 
it
 o
u
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t,
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 p
re
-b
ir
th
 t
o
 2
 

y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 
 

A
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
is
 F
e
n
la
n
d
 M
in
d
 h
a
v
e
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 

p
e
ri
-n
a
ta
lly
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 m
a
te
rn
a
l 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
is
 

w
o
rk
 i
s
 n
o
w
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 5
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
  

1
5
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 M
u
m
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 o
f 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

140



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

1
.1
.8
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
w
o
-y
e
a
r 

fu
n
d
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 t
h
o
s
e
 m
o
s
t 

in
 n
e
e
d
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
w
o
-y
e
a
r 

fu
n
d
in
g
; 

•
 
A
s
 f
ro
m
 S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
3
 

th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 5
7
0
 

tw
o
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
 p
la
c
e
 

•
 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
 p
la
c
e
 

w
h
o
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 o
ff
e
r;
 

•
 
T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 a
ft
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 

c
o
u
n
t 
d
a
y
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

–
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

d
a
ta
 o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 t
o
o
k
 u
p
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 
 

•
 
N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
t 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
 

P
a
m
 

S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 

/ K
a
re
n
 

H
in
g
s
to
n
 

S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
3
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 2
 y
e
a
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
m
e
 o
n
 

s
tr
e
a
m
 f
ro
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
te
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
p
la
c
e
s
. 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
: 
T
o
 h
e
lp
 n
a
rr
o
w
 t
h
e
 

g
a
p
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
t 
fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

s
ta
g
e
, 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 e
a
rl
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
: 

•
 
B
ir
th
 –
 3
 e
a
rl
y
 c
h
ild
h
o
o
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
in
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 

•
 
C
h
ild
h
o
o
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

•
 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 

C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
in
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

to
 h
e
lp
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 

 

 

1
.1
.9
 

E
n
s
u
re
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 t
a
rg
e
t 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 
5
 y
e
a
rs
 

re
g
is
te
re
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

(t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
5
%
  
o
f 

P
a
m
 

S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 

  

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
 r
e
-v
is
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

to
: 

 

141



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

s
e
c
u
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
 

re
a
c
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
) 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 
5
 y
e
a
rs
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
(t
a
rg
e
t 

o
f 
3
0
%
 f
 r
e
a
c
h
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
) 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

(t
a
rg
e
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

3
0
%
 a
n
d
 1
5
%
) 
 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
c
: 
 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

L
o
n
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

F
a
th
e
rs
 

B
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 E
th
n
ic
 

m
in
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

G
y
p
s
y
 a
n
d
 t
ra
v
e
lle
r 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
 C
P
/C
IN
 

p
la
n
 C
h
ild
re
n
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

w
o
rk
le
s
s
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

•
 
T
o
 0
 -
5
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
; 

•
 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

O
fs
te
d
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
; 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
-v
is
io
n
in
g
 w
o
rk
; 

 T
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
rr
iv
a
l 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 f
u
tu
re
  
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
w
ill
 

c
lo
s
e
 o
n
 8
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

  

1
.1
.1
0
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 

ro
u
ti
n
e
ly
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 S
ta
r 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
; 

•
 
D
a
ta
 c
a
p
tu
re
d
 

K
a
re
n
 

H
in
g
s
to
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

A
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

S
ta
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 [
a
s
 o
f 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
] 
a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

A
m
b
e
r 

142



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 
B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 

in
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
ta
rs
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 m
o
re
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 O
F
S
T
E
D
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 
1
.1
.1
1
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
3
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 ‘
tu
rn
e
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
’ 
in
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

W
e
n
d
i 

O
g
le
-

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 

G
re
e
n
 

  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

1
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 o
n
 n
e
w
 B
ir
th
 v
is
it
s
 a
n
d
 H
P
V
 v
a
c
c
in
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

2
. 
0
-2
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 n
o
w
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 H
V
 a
t 
2
2
w
e
e
k
s
. 

3
. 
S
o
lih
u
ll 
p
ilo
t 
s
ta
rt
e
d
. 

4
. 
N
C
M
P
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 1
1
%
 

                

143



 
  P
ri
o
ri
ty
 T
w
o
: 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 i
lln
e
s
s
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
/ 
C
a
th
y
 M
it
c
h
e
ll 

A
im
s
: 

 1
. 
N
a
rr
o
w
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rs
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
, 
w
h
ils
t 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
f 
a
ll.
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

2
.1
.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

S
m
o
k
e
fr
e
e
 P
la
n
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 

•
 
S
m
o
k
in
g
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

•
 
S
m
o
k
in
g
 a
m
o
n
g
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 
S
m
o
k
in
g
 a
m
o
n
g
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
h
a
n
d
 

s
m
o
k
e
  

•
 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 h
a
rm
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 u
s
e
 

•
 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

to
b
a
c
c
o
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

J
u
lia
n
 B
a
s
e
 
D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
 

S
m
o
k
e
fr
e
e
 P
la
n
 p
re
p
a
re
d
, 

S
m
o
k
e
fr
e
e
 A
lli
a
n
c
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 
 

 H
ig
h
e
s
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
m
o
k
in
g
 q
u
it
te
rs
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 s
in
c
e
 2
0
0
0
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
. 
 

 ‘S
to
p
to
b
e
r’
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 o
v
e
r 
3
0
0
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
P
la
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
h
ig
h
 p
ro
fi
le
 “
h
e
a
lt
h
 

h
a
rm
s
” 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
. 
 

 T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
S
m
o
k
in
g
 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 T
ra
in
in
g
 (
N
C
S
C
T
) 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

s
in
c
e
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 1
6
9
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
m
o
k
e
fr
e
e
 

 

144



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
n
k
e
d
 

a
m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
1
5
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
y
 t
h
e
 N
C
S
C
T
, 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
. 

 
2
.1
.2
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 4
 L
if
e
 P
la
n
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n
d
 w
e
ig
h
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 

w
e
ig
h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

•
 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
h
ild
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
a
ta
 

J
u
lia
n
 B
a
s
e
 
D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 4
 L
if
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
, 
C
h
a
n
g
e
 4
 

L
if
e
 A
lli
a
n
c
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 
 

 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 

“L
e
t’
s
 G
e
t 
M
o
v
in
g
” 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
w
it
h
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
 o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 “
L
e
t’
s
 K
e
e
p
 

M
o
v
in
g
” 
is
 v
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t.
 A
ll 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
t 
fu
ll 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 
E
ig
h
t 
m
o
re
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 w
it
h
 

c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 9
2
 

c
lie
n
ts
 

 C
h
ild
 W
e
ig
h
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
M
o
re
lif
e
) 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 t
w
o
 

m
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 (
N
o
v
 

2
0
1
3
) 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 

 

145



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 B
M
I’
s
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
ts
- 
2
9
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
N
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 p
ilo
t 
in
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
N
C
M
P
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
a
ta
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 

a
 h
ig
h
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 

o
b
e
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
- 
4
5
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 1
0
 w
e
e
k
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
O
b
e
s
it
y
 w
e
e
k
 

(J
a
n
 2
0
1
4
),
 L
iv
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 e
a
ti
n
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 1
2
 

p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 

w
ill
 c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
fi
le
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
4
L
if
e
 “
fo
o
d
s
m
a
rt
” 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
. 

P
la
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 

 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 s
h
o
rt
-l
is
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 F
o
o
d
 C
it
y
 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 
  
 

 
2
.1
.3
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
in
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 R
S
P
H
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

J
u
lia
n
 B
a
s
e
 
D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
 

R
S
P
H
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
T
o
 

d
a
te
 3
0
0
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
1
 

a
w
a
rd
 i
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

 

146



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

b
y
 R
S
P
H
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

 •
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

re
g
is
te
re
d
 a
s
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 

 •
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
s
 

s
ig
n
in
g
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 

D
e
a
l 

le
v
e
l 
2
 a
w
a
rd
 i
n
 U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 N
e
w
 R
S
P
H
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 1
 a
n
d
 2
 i
n
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 E
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
D
ie
ts
, 

le
v
e
l 
2
 i
n
 U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
, 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 i
n
 S
m
o
k
in
g
 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 L
e
v
e
l 
2
 i
n
 M
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
. 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

g
a
in
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 2
2
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
7
0
 

Y
P
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 1
5
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 a
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 3
3
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
ru
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
d
. 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
re
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 

o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
’s
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 D
e
a
l 
a
 t
o
ta
l 

o
f 
9
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 p
le
d
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
t 

a
s
 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 

o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
. 

147



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

2
.1
.4
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
n
o
n
-

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
b
le
 d
is
e
a
s
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 N
H
S
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
e
c
k
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 6
0
5
9
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 b
y
 

G
P
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

a
t 
h
ig
h
e
r 
ri
s
k
 o
f 

c
a
rd
io
v
a
s
c
u
la
r 

d
is
e
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 

d
ia
b
e
te
s
, 
a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
lif
e
s
ty
le
 

m
o
d
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 r
is
k
 

•
 
E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 N
u
m
b
e
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

d
is
e
a
s
e
/a
t 
h
ig
h
 

ri
s
k
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
; 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

o
n
w
a
rd
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

to
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t/
 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
s
 G
P
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w
it
h
 

h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

b
u
rd
e
n
 o
f 

C
h
a
s
 R
y
a
n
 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
G
P
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 T
o
 d
a
te
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
4
,1
9
2
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 5
1
7
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

ra
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
. 

2
3
1
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

h
a
v
in
g
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

c
a
rd
io
v
a
s
c
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
s
e
 w
h
ile
 2
4
1
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

p
re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 s
ta
ti
n
s
 t
o
 l
o
w
e
r 

c
h
o
le
s
te
ro
l.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 7
2
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

h
y
p
e
rt
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 2
0
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
s
 d
ia
b
e
ti
c
s
. 
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 

a
lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
f 
c
o
ro
n
a
ry
 

h
e
a
rt
 d
is
e
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
tr
o
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 

 R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 w
it
h
 1
1
1
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 1
2
5
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 

w
e
ig
h
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

  

148



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

c
a
rd
io
v
a
s
c
u
la
r 

d
is
e
a
s
e
 

2
.1
.5
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
s
 

a
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
it
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 F
o
o
d
 

fo
r 
L
if
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

d
ie
t 
a
n
d
 n
u
tr
it
io
n
. 
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
fo
o
d
s
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 f
o
o
d
 

a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
  

J
u
lia
n
 B
a
s
e
 

/ 
P
E
C
T
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 A
p
r 

2
0
1
4
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
it
ie
s
 b
id
 f
o
r 
S
o
il 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 

P
E
C
T
 w
a
s
 u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

a
s
 a
 f
o
u
n
d
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
o
o
d
 f
o
r 
L
if
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5
. 

 

 W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
G
M
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
d
ic
a
l 
o
r 
lo
n
g
 

te
rm
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 (
G
P
A
A
Q
) 
a
s
 a
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
l.
 

•
 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 b
y
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
in
g
 c
le
a
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
ia
n
’s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
c
li
n
ic
a
ll
y
 o
b
e
s
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M
o
re
li
fe
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
B
e
tt
e
r 
u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

a
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
N
C
M
P
 d
a
ta
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
H
 i
n
te
ll
ig
e
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
rw
e
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 o
b
e
s
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
. 

•
 
V
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 b
y
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 o
u
t 
to
 

a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
/c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

         

149



 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 T
h
re
e
: 
H
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
/ 
E
w
a
n
 K
e
ls
a
ll 

A
im
s
: 

 1
. 
E
n
a
b
le
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 e
n
jo
y
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 

  N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

3
.1
.1
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 l
e
a
d
s
 

to
 b
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

•
 
N
e
w
 f
ro
n
t 
d
o
o
r 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 o
ff
e
r 

in
 p
la
c
e
 

•
 
G
re
a
te
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

re
a
b
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
fo
c
u
s
e
d
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

o
ff
e
r 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

T
in
a
 

H
o
rn
s
b
y
, 

D
e
b
b
ie
 

M
c
Q
u
a
d
e
, 
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

 

3
.1
.2
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
a
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
T
h
e
 

C
it
y
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
 

•
 
H
ig
h
e
r 
c
a
re
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

0
1
.0
3
.1
3
 

      

D
R
C
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 

n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
g
in
 i
n
 Q
4
 

1
3
/1
4
 w
it
h
 l
ik
e
ly
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 b
y
 J
u
ly
 

2
0
1
4
 

 

150



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

3
.1
.3
 

A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

jo
in
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 c
a
re
rs
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
c
a
re
rs
 

•
 
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 o
f 

c
a
re
rs
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

•
 
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

c
a
re
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
u
rv
e
y
 

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

3
1
. 
0
3
.1
3
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

(N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
),
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 

C
a
re
rs
 P
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 

g
o
n
e
 L
iv
e
 J
a
n
 1
4
 a
c
ro
s
s
 b
o
th
 L
C
G
;s
 

 

 

3
.1
.4
 

N
e
w
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
A
S
C
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

•
 
M
o
re
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
le
s
s
 

d
o
w
n
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
) 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

a
ll 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 

P
C
C
 

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

3
1
.0
3
.1
3
 

N
e
w
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
g
u
n
 w
it
h
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 p
a
rt
n
e
r.
 

 E
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 m
o
re
 f
u
lly
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 P
C
C
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
. 

 

3
.1
.5
 

T
o
 r
e
-c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 h
o
m
e
 

c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
N
e
w
 h
o
m
e
 c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
, 

T
e
rr
y
 P
ri
o
r,
 

M
u
b
a
ra
k
 

D
a
rb
a
r,
 

S
e
rc
o
 

 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 –
 

n
e
w
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
ta
rt
 d
a
te
 o
f 
2
0
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
. 

 

151



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

te
a
m
 

3
.1
.6
 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 M
a
rk
e
t 

P
o
s
it
io
n
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

A
S
C
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

•
 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 

a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

A
S
C
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 
3
1
.1
2
.1
3
 

M
P
S
 v
e
rs
io
n
 t
h
re
e
 –
 f
in
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 I
n
s
ti
tu
te
 f
o
r 
P
u
b
lic
 C
a
re
 t
o
 

b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 f
in
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
e
in
g
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 3
1
 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
4
. 

 

   W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

D
R
C
 –
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
g
re
e
d
 c
o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
A
S
C
 a
n
d
 V
C
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
  
fo
c
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
jo
in
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
S
C
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 G
P
 C
a
re
rs
 P
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 w
it
h
 A
S
C
 c
a
re
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

H
o
m
e
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
-t
e
n
d
e
r 
–
 m
o
re
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 h
o
m
e
c
a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
m
o
re
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
is
 a
lig
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
S
C
 

tr
a
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
b
e
tt
e
r 
v
a
lu
e
 h
o
m
e
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

          

152



 
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 F
o
u
r:
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
T
e
rr
y
 P
ri
o
r/
 J
o
h
n
 E
lli
s
/C
a
th
y
 M
it
c
h
e
ll/
J
a
n
e
t 
D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
 

A
im
s
: 

 1
. 
E
n
a
b
le
 g
o
o
d
 c
h
ild
 a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
a
p
id
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ig
n
s
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
ill
 h
e
a
lt
h
 o
r 
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

4
.1
.1
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

A
R
C
 s
in
g
le
 

p
o
in
t-
o
f-
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

•
 
C
Q
U
IN
 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
  

J
o
h
n
 E
lli
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 G
ro
u
p
 m
e
e
ts
 m
o
n
th
ly
 –
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
:-
 

- 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
g
u
id
e
lin
e
s
 f
o
r 
G
P
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
R
C
; 

- 
F
o
rm
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 

1
1
1
 l
in
e
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
G
P
 m
h
 l
e
a
d
 D
r 
P
a
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 v
is
it
 

A
R
C
 w
e
e
k
ly
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
ri
a
g
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
G
P
s
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 e
a
rl
y
 

2
0
1
4
 o
n
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 

4
.1
.2
 

R
e
-e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
u
ic
id
e
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

g
ro
u
p
 

•
 
S
u
ic
id
e
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

G
ro
u
p
 

re
c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
r 
P
a
n
d
a
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

L
in
k
s
 t
o
 L
o
c
a
l 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
ty
 W
id
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 

 E
a
s
t 
o
f 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 b
id
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
o
r 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

G
re
e
n
 

153



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

•
 
B
i 
m
o
n
th
ly
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 
H
ig
h
 R
is
k
 

G
ro
u
p
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

C
o
u
rt
 S
ta
ff
 

•
 
L
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 

fo
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 

w
it
h
 s
u
ic
id
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
W
id
e
r 

W
e
llb
e
in
g
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

p
la
n
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
. 

 G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 b
u
t 
m
a
y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 

   

4
.1
.3
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
ir
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 S
H
U
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

p
u
p
ils
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

J
a
n
e
t 
D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
 
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
in
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 

 

 

154



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
s
 

n
o
w
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

n
u
rs
e
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
. 

P
a
th
w
a
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 3
T
’s
 w
h
e
n
 n
e
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

4
.1
.4
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

m
e
n
ta
l 
o
r 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
t 

ti
e
r 
2
, 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 n
e
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
T
ie
r 

3
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

T
ie
r 
2
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

•
 
W
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
o
in
t 

o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

c
h
ild
 f
ir
s
t 

b
e
in
g
 s
e
e
n
 

w
it
h
in
 t
ie
r 
2
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

•
 
W
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
 

fr
o
m
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 

to
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t;
 

•
 
C
lin
ic
a
l 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

s
h
o
w
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

J
a
n
e
t 
D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
G
o
m
m
  

C
P
F
T
. 

C
C
G
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 g
a
p
 i
n
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
ti
e
r 

2
. 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
(C
P
F
T
) 
th
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
 a
n
d
 a
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
C
A
M
H
) 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

ti
e
r 
1
 o
r 
ti
e
r 
2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 A
 C
A
M
H
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
la
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

 T
ie
r 
2
 

3
 T
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
(s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
) 

T
h
e
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 f
o
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 3
T
’s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 

m
u
c
h
 c
le
a
re
r 
a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 g
o
in
g
 o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 b
e
  
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
. 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
s
 c
a
n
 n
o
w
 r
e
fe
r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

in
to
 3
T
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 s
in
g
le
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
. 
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 C
A
M
H
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

C
A
M
H
S
 a
n
d
 3
T
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 c
le
a
re
r.
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
  
s
m
a
ll 
w
it
h
 a
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

A
 

155



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

in
 t
h
e
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
ie
r 

2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 

ti
e
r 
3
 a
n
d
 4
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 

•
 
U
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
h
ild
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
rs
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

S
ta
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
; 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 o
f 
5
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 6
-8
 

c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
 

w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
o
f 
4
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 b
id
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
ta
ff
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 C
P
F
T
  

A
c
ti
o
n
: 
T
ie
r 
2
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 T
ie
r 
3
 (
it
 m
a
y
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
) 
th
u
s
 t
h
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
m
e
n
d
in
g
, 
a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

a
c
u
it
y
 i
s
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
is
s
u
e
. 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
: 
p
la
n
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 T
ie
r 
2
 (
m
in
im
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
) 
/C
A
P
A
/C
Y
P
 I
A
P
T
 a
n
d
 S
in
g
le
 P
o
in
t 

o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 (
A
R
C
) 
a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
; 
C
A
M
H
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
/u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
/s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
it
h
 

T
ie
r 
1
 &
 2
 a
d
v
ic
e
. 
S
O
P
, 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
s
 f
o
r 
S
e
lf
 H
a
rm
 a
n
d
 E
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 

T
ie
r 
2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 o
ff
e
r 
to
 b
e
 c
le
a
r.
 

 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 b
u
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 

a
p
p
e
a
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
la
ri
ty
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
a
re
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
. 

4
.1
.5
 

T
ie
r 
3
 C
A
M
H
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
G
o
m
m
  

C
P
F
T
 

 
C
P
F
T
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
: 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 

C
A
P
A
/C
Y
P
 I
A
P
T
; 
T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
s
 C
Q
U
IN
 i
n
fo
 

&
 C
A
M
H
S
 m
e
t 
C
Q
U
IN
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
ta
rg
e
t 
b
y
 

A
 

156



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 m
o
re
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
ie
r 
3
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 a
 

ti
m
e
ly
 w
a
y
 w
it
h
 

re
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

w
e
llb
e
in
g
 

ti
e
r 
3
 s
e
rv
ic
e
; 

•
 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 

ti
e
r 
3
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 

a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

a
n
d
 k
e
p
t;
 

•
 
W
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
rs
t 

a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
 

•
 
W
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t;
 

•
 
C
lin
ic
a
l 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

s
h
o
w
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
b
le
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
; 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
d
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

3
1
/1
0
/1
3
 

C
A
M
H
S
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 w
it
h
 C
IC
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 Y
O
S
 

H
V
's
 a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 &
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 m
o
th
e
r'
s
 w
it
h
 

P
N
D
; 
T
M
's
 f
ro
m
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

M
A
S
G
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 C
P
F
T
. 

C
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 P
C
H
 w
h
e
n
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
 o
r 
a
re
 a
d
m
it
te
d
 w
it
h
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 &
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 b
u
t 
w
e
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
to
 

la
c
k
 h
a
rd
 d
a
ta
. 

 

157



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 

4
.1
.6
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

P
C
C
/L
C
G
 M
H
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
T
h
is
 

w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

m
a
k
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 

w
it
h
: 

S
u
ic
id
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

M
H
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
o
lic
e
 M
H
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
H
 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

J
o
in
t 
C
C
G
 M
H
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 D
e
s
ir
e
d
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

•
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
s
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

s
ta
te
d
. 

T
. 
P
ri
o
r 
/ 
D
r.
 S
 

P
a
n
d
a
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 
F
in
a
lis
in
g
 o
f 
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

d
e
la
y
e
d
  

 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

b
i 
–
 m
o
n
th
ly
. 

 G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 n
o
w
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 f
in
a
lis
e
 w
it
h
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r’
s
 k
e
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

 

A
 

4
.1
.7
 

R
e
v
is
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

o
n
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
 w
it
h
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 

C
C
G
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

C
P
F
T
/C
C
G
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

J
o
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 P
S
C
B
 a
n
d
 C
a
ro
l 
D
a
v
is
 

C
P
F
T
 t
a
k
in
g
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 

 C
C
G
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
P
F
T
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
. 

 T
a
b
le
 1
 D
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 A
u
d
it
 

N
a
m
e
 

o
f 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

Is
 t
h
e
re
 a
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 

a
u
d
it
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 

 

158



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

W
o
rk
e
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 

w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

(s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 
o
r 

C
A
F
(n
o
n
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 i
n
 

te
rm
s
 o
f 
C
A
F
 

(O
th
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

h
a
v
e
 n
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 i
n
 

te
rm
s
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 o
r 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 C
A
F
))
 

S
W
 1
 

3
 

1
 -
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

2
 

S
W
 2
 

3
 

 
1
 

S
W
 3
 

9
 

2
 –
 C
A
F
 

7
- 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

 

S
W
 4
 

4
 

2
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

2
 

S
W
 5
 

2
 

1
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

C
a
r

e
rs
 

2
 

S
ta
t

u
to
r

y
 

 

S
W
 6
 

2
 

2
-

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

 

S
W
 7
 

2
 

 
1
 

 

P
o
lic
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
u
t 
w
e
 l
a
c
k
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
d
a
ta
 

a
n
d
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

p
o
lic
y
. 

 
4
.1
.8
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
n
d
 

h
o
lis
ti
c
 r
e
-

a
b
le
m
e
n
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 w
it
h
in
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 

•
 
N
o
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
N
o
 o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 b
y
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
w
a
rd
 

C
P
F
T
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
-a
b
le
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
 k
e
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 

u
n
d
e
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
S
C
 a
n
d
 

C
P
F
T
. 

 N
o
 d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

 T
h
is
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

R
 

159



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

B
M
E
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 

to
 r
e
a
c
h
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

m
o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
w
a
rd
s
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

 A
R
C
 R
e
v
ie
w
: 
T
h
e
 A
R
C
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
e
ll 
–
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
u
t 
a
ll 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
o
n
e
 y
e
a
r 
o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
o
w
 i
t 
o
p
e
ra
te
s
, 
h
o
w
 

G
P
s
, 
c
a
re
rs
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 m
ig
h
t 
m
o
re
 e
a
s
ily
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 h
e
lp
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 u
rg
e
n
tl
y
. 

 S
u
ic
id
e
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
: 
T
h
e
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
ts
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
o
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
h
 h
e
lp
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
G
P
s
. 
 

              P
ri
o
ri
ty
 F
iv
e
: 
b
e
tt
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
if
e
-l
o
n
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
T
im
 B
is
h
o
p
/ 
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 –
 W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 /
 J
o
n
 E
lli
s
/S
u
e
 J
e
s
ti
c
e
 

160



 
A
im
s
: 

 1
. 
M
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
if
e
-l
o
n
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
o
b
u
s
t,
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 c
a
re
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
, 
c
a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 i
n
to
 a
d
u
lt
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 o
ld
 a
g
e
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

5
.1
.1
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

s
ta
ff
 o
n
 N
H
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 J
o
in
t 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 T
o
o
l 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
  

S
u
e
 J
e
s
ti
c
e
 

D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
 

1
5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 J
F
T
 a
n
d
 C
H
C
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

(2
0
1
4
) 
2
0
0
 P
e
o
p
le
 t
ra
in
e
d
 w
it
h
 

5
0
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
 J
o
in
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
o
l.
  

 In
c
re
a
s
e
 1
5
%
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 M
H
 

a
n
d
 L
D
P
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 j
o
in
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
.2
0
1
4
 2
0
%
  
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 J
F
. 

 Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
C
H
C
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

b
e
in
g
 f
o
u
n
d
 e
lig
ib
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

C
H
C
 1
0
0
%
 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

G
re
e
n
 

5
.1
.2
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
A
 

a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
1
6
 

a
n
d
 C
H
C
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o
r 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 

1
8
th
 b
ir
th
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
to
 a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
u
e
 J
e
s
ti
c
e
 

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

 S
m
o
o
th
e
r 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 2
0
1
4
. 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

a
n
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
. 

 

5
.1
.3
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 

D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
/C
a
rr
ie
 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
B
a
s
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

G
re
e
n
 

161



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
d
u
c
e
 o
r 

d
e
la
y
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

n
e
e
d
s
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 S
h
o
rt
 

b
re
a
k
s
: 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
S
h
o
rt
 

B
re
a
k
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 

 

G
a
m
b
le
 

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 

o
v
e
r 
3
0
0
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
/a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
: 

•
 
3
2
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 d
ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 
6
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 l
in
k
 c
a
re
 

•
 
2
6
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 

a
t 
C
h
e
rr
y
 L
o
d
g
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 U
p
d
a
te
: 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

m
e
th
o
d
 o
r 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 a
ll 

re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
e
q
u
it
y
 o
f 
o
ff
e
r,
 

a
n
d
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 a
 f
le
x
ib
le
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

is
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 .
 

 '
0
-1
9
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
',
 '8
-1
9
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 

'D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
p
o
rt
s
', 
S
ib
lin
g
s
 

(e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 

b
e
in
g
)'
 a
n
d
 'I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
A
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
’.
 

T
h
e
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 c
a
re
, 
o
n
e
 t
o
 o
n
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 

b
ro
k
e
ra
g
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 

w
h
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 v
ia
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 

m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 a
lig
n
 w
it
h
 A
d
u
lt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

162



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

T
ic
k
e
ts
 a
n
d
 p
a
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
e
n
tr
y
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

w
e
re
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
a
re
n
t/
c
a
re
r 
fo
ru
m
s
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 

m
a
x
im
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 ‘
c
a
p
it
a
l’ 

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
ti
lis
e
d
. 

D
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 a
t 
C
W
D
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
t/
c
a
re
r 

fo
ru
m
s
, 
lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 “
H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
tc
h
”.
  

P
a
re
n
t 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
, 
m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 c
o
-

p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
E
N
D
 r
e
fo
rm
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

S
in
g
le
 (
E
H
C
) 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

O
ff
e
r.
 J
o
in
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
ill
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 

th
e
s
e
 l
in
k
s
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 j
o
in
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
. 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

 
5
.1
.5
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 c
a
re
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

A
S
C
/C
S
C
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
  

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 1
4
-2
5
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
s
 t
e
a
m
 

w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
rt
y
 h
a
s
 m
e
t 

A
m
b
e
r 
 

163



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

n
e
e
d
s
; 

a
t 
1
6
 a
n
d
 

C
H
C
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o
r 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 1
8
th
 

b
ir
th
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
to
 

a
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
S
m
o
o
th
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
4
 

to
 2
5
 

 

a
n
d
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
 F
ir
s
t 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 p
o
s
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 a
n
o
th
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 
 A
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 p
o
s
t 
in
 m
id
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

1
, 
A
S
C
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
s
 u
n
ti
l 
1
7
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 

C
H
C
 a
n
d
 C
S
C
/A
S
C
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

g
ro
u
p
 m
a
k
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

2
. 
A
S
C
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l.
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
. 

5
.1
.6
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 j
o
in
t 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 j
o
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 

c
a
re
 

 
J
a
n
e
t 

D
u
lla
g
h
a
n
/C
C
G
 

N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
lig
n
in
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 
a
 S
e
c
 7
5
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 

5
.1
.7
 

E
lig
ib
le
 a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 a
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
e
c
k
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 N
H
S
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 D
ir
e
c
te
d
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
9
5
%
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
  

D
G
 

3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

Q
1
3
 d
a
ta
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 9
3
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
3
4
3
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

 Q
4
 i
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
re
 d
o
n
e
. 

 

5
.1
.8
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

•
 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
u
b
a
ra
k
 D
a
rb
a
r 

3
0
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
’s
 

 

164



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 i
n
to
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 b
o
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ip
e
lin
e
 r
e
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 

2
0
1
3
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 f
in
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

  

5
.1
.9
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 o
f 
v
is
io
n
in
g
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 d
a
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
e
rs
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 
N
e
w
 m
o
d
e
l 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 b
o
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
h
a
s
e
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 

M
u
b
a
ra
k
 D
a
rb
a
r 

3
1
s
t  M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
th
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 g
o
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
d
e
l 

o
u
td
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
d
a
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 
 

 

5
.1
.1
0
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 S
E
N
 a
n
d
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
in
g
le
 p
la
n
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
ff
e
r.
 

    

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

S
in
g
le
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

L
o
c
a
l 
O
ff
e
r 
 

  B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 D
a
ta
: 

J
u
ly
 ‘
1
2
: 
 

•
 
2
3
.9
%
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

h
a
v
in
g
 S
E
N
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

w
a
s
 1
9
%
; 
s
ta
t 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 w
a
s
 

1
9
.2
%
. 

•
 
4
%
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

    

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

      

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 U
p
d
a
te
: 
 

J
u
ly
 1
3
: 
 

•
 
2
2
.6
%
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

h
a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 S
E
N
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 1
8
.6
%
 

•
 
3
.8
%
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

S
E
N
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 2
.8
%
. 
 

 In
c
lu
s
io
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 D
M
T
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
1
3
. 
 

T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 o
f 
5
.6
%
 

in
 J
u
ly
 ’
1
2
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 

c
it
y
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 (
b
e
lo
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

 

165



 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
d
 a
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
E
N
 

in
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

w
a
s
 2
.8
%
; 
s
ta
t 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 w
a
s
 

2
.9
%
. 

   

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
5
.8
%
 b
u
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 s
ta
t 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
4
.2
%
).
 

 W
o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
E
N
D
 r
e
fo
rm
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
o
rk
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
W
D
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
1
3
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
ff
e
r 
fo
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 S
E
N
D
. 

     
  W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
d
e
 

•
 
C
W
D
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
M
u
lt
ia
g
e
n
c
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 g
ro
u
p
 n
o
w
 h
a
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
M
o
re
 f
le
x
ib
le
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
 o
ff
e
r 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
C
W
D
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
lu
b
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
1
0
%
 i
n
 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 
C
W
D
 p
a
n
e
l 
n
o
w
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
s
 m
e
d
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
m
e
d
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 

 

166



Contacts:   Gemma George, 01733 452268, gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk  
 Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, 01733 863749, wendi.ogle-welbourn@peterborough.gov.uk 

PETERBOROUGH HEALTH AND 

WELLBEING BOARD 

 

MONTHLY NEWSLETTER 
 

ISSUE: NOVEMBER 2013 
 

 

ITEM PAGE 

1. NHS Sustainability Roadshow 2 

2. 111 Service in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 3 

3. CCG Deficit 4 

4. End of Life Care 5-6 

5. Introduction letters from the commissioners and the service providers of 

the new Peterborough Minor Illness and Injury Unit. 

7 

6. Next meeting: Thursday 16 January, 1pm - 

 

  

167



2 

 

  

168



3 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 111 service:  

Important information 
 

We enter a phased launch of the 111 service in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough on 12 November 

2013 from mid-morning.  

 

We received final approval this week to launch the service following strict quality assurance testing and 

approval from the Area Team and NHS England Central Team.  

 

From 12 November 2013 the 111 service has been established to take calls from NHS Direct GP practices 

who currently use UCC as their out of hours provider and anyone dialling 111 from a landline or a mobile.   

 

On 28 November, subject to satisfactory performance, 111 will take calls from GP practices who currently 

use CCS as their out of hours provider.  

 

It is likely that the 0845 46 47 NHS Direct number will be closed down in the near future subject to approval 

from NHS England. Further communication will follow on this. 

 
Further Information 

 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 111 service: 

Important information 

We are gradually launching a 111 service in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough from this week. The service 

will be launched in Cambridgeshire, not including Peterborough, tomorrow (12 November 2013) from mid-

morning.  The service will then be launched in the Peterborough area on 28 November 

  
111 will get you through to a team of fully trained call advisers, who are supported by experienced nurses and 

paramedics. They will ask you questions to assess your symptoms, and give you the healthcare advice you need or 

direct you to the right local service. 

  

The NHS 111 team will, where possible, book you an appointment or transfer you directly to the people you need to 

speak to. If they think you need an ambulance, they will send one immediately – just as if you had originally dialled 

999. 

  

You should use the NHS 111 service if you need medical help or advice urgently but it’s not a life-threatening 

situation. 

You should call 111 if: 

              

·        It’s not a 999 emergency 

·        you think you need to go to A&E or another NHS urgent care service; 

·        you don’t think it can wait for an appointment with your GP; or 

·        you don’t know who to call for medical help.  

 

For less urgent health needs, you should still contact your GP in the usual way.  For immediate, life-threatening 

emergencies, you should continue to call 999. 

  

It is likely that the 0845 46 47 NHS Direct number will be closed down in the near future subject to approval from 

NHS England. We will continue to keep you updated on the 111 service in the Cambridgeshire 

and Peterborough area.  

169



4 

 

  

170



5 

 

171



6 

 

172



7 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Colleagues 
 
Minor Illness and Injury Unit opens on 1st October 2013 
 

Following extensive consultation in 2011 it was agreed in March 2012 to upgrade services provided at the 

Walk-in Centre (in the City Care Centre) to a Minor Illness and Injury Unit (MIIU). 

The unit will be led by staff with both nursing and medical backgrounds with enhanced skills, enabling them 

to see, treat and discharge patients independently and provide a range of urgent care services to patients 

in Peterborough.  

 

The new Minor Illness and Injury Unit (MIIU) will include access to a wider range of treatments and facilities 

including diagnostics such as x-rays, which will reduce the need for people to attend A&E with non-life 

threatening illnesses and injuries.  

 

The new MIIU will be available to the public from 1 October 2013, the services will be delivered by 

Lincolnshire Community Health Services NHS Trust who were awarded the contract in April this year. 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Catherine Mitchell 
Local Chief Officer 
Borderline and Peterborough Local Commissioning Groups 

Lockton House 
Clarendon Road 

Cambridge 

CB2 8FH 
 

Tel: 01223 725400 

Fax: 01223 725401 
Email:  engagement@cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk 

Web: www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk 

173



174

This page is intentionally left blank



U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
8
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 
H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 W

E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 B
O
A
R
D
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
1
4
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
  

IT
E
M
 

C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

2
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 I
n
te
n
ti
o
n
s
: 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 N
H
S
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
T
e
a
m
 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 0
-5
 P
ro
je
c
t 
 

 C
C
G
/L
C
G
 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll
 B
e
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

B
o
a
rd
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

 T
ra
c
e
y
 C
o
g
a
n
, 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 N
H
S
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 E
a
s
t 
A
n
g
li
a
 

      W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

2
3
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
4
 

 
T
B
C
 

  

 

2
2
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

T
B
C
 

  

 

8
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

T
B
C
 

  

 

 

175



176

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 September 2013
	4(a) Primary Care Strategy Update On Progress
	4(b) Surgical Metastatic Liver Resection Services
	5(a) Development of Proposals for use of the Better Care Fund (formerly Integration and Transformation Fund) in Peterborough
	5a. Appendix 1 - Development of Proposals for the use of the Better Care Fund
	5a. Appendix 2 - Development of Proposals for the use of the Better Care Fund
	5a. Appendix 3 - Development of Proposals for the use of the Better Care Fund

	6(a) Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
	7(a) Joint Child Health and Wellbeing Commissioning Unit
	7a. Appendix 1 - Child Health Joint Commissioning Draft Section 75
	7a. Appendix 2 - Child Health Joint Commissioning Draft Section 75

	8(a) Autism Self Evaluation
	8a. Appendix 1 - Autism Self Evaluation Report
	8a. Appendix 2 - Autism Self Evaluation Report

	10 Executive Group Terms of Reference
	10. Appendix 1 - Executive Group Terms Of Reference

	12 Health and Wellbeing Board Delivery Plan Update
	12. Appendix 1 - Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan Update

	13 November Newsletter
	14 Schedule of Future Meetings and Draft Agenda Programme

